
NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 38, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

THE 14TH DAY OF MARCH, 2016 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN the Board of Education of Kenilworth School District Number 38, Cook County, 
Illinois, will hold a Regular Meeting on the 14th day of March, 2016 at 5:00 o’clock p.m., for the Closed Session meeting 
in Room 252 and at 7:30 o’clock p.m. for the Open Session in the Library Technology Center of The Joseph Sears 
School, 542 Abbotsford Road, Kenilworth, Illinois. 
 

AGENDA 
 

Room 252 (Closed Session – 5:00 p.m.) 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

Present     Absent    Present    Absent 
Scott Wallace  ______     ______ Melinda Kelly  ______      ______ 
Suzanne Nelson  ______     ______ Timothy Kollar  ______      ______ 
Danielle Boros  ______     ______ Stacey Van Metre ______      ______ 
Donna Keller  ______      ______ 
   

II. CLOSED SESSION TO CONSIDER INFORMATION REGARDING SPECIFIC EMPLOYEE 
MATTERS, POTENTIAL LITIGATION AND SEMI-ANNUAL REVIEW OF CLOSED SESSION 
MINUTES 

 
Library Technology Center (Open Session – 7:30 p.m.) 

 
III. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

Present     Absent    Present    Absent 
Scott Wallace  ______      ______ Melinda Kelly  ______      ______ 
Suzanne Nelson  ______      ______ Timothy Kollar  ______      ______ 
Danielle Boros  ______      ______ Stacey Van Metre ______      ______ 
Donna Keller  ______      ______ 

 
 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (See posted Rules of Public Comment) 
 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS  

A. Freedom of Information Act Requests 
B. Report from the Superintendent 

➢  PARCC Participation Update 
B. Report from the Chief School Business Officer 

➢ Accounts Payable Review 
➢ Discussion of Student Milk Fees for the 2016-2017 School Year  

C. Report from the Principal  
➢  Master Schedule Update 
➢  Math Curriculum Update 
➢  Curriculum Renewal Plan  
➢  Science Curriculum Update 
➢  Request for Math Intervention Specialist 

D. Report from the Director of Student Services  
➢  No Report 

 
VI. CONSENT AGENDA 



A. Approval of Minutes of the February 8, 2016, Regular Meeting and Closed Session  
B. Approval of Financial Report for January 2016 and February 2016 
C. Approval of Investment Reports for January 2016 and February 2016 
D. Approval of Accounts Payable for February 9, 2016 to March 14, 2016 
E. Acceptance of Certified Employee(s) Request for Resignation 
F. Approval of Job Share Request for 1.0 FTE Art Teacher 
G. Approval for Family Medical Leave Request(s) 
H. Authorization to Destroy Closed Session Recording for September 2014 
I. Approval of Re-employment of Non-Tenured Certified Personnel 
J. Approval of Resolution of Non-Renewal of Non-Tenured Certified Personnel 
K. Approval of Revised Job Description for the Math Facilitator to Math Intervention Specialist  
L. Approval of Revised Job Description for the Junior High RtI/Gifted Coordinator to Differentiation 

Facilitator 
M. Approval of Release of Closed Session Minutes  

 
 

VII. OLD BUSINESS 
A. Board Committee Reports including Comments and Questions 

 
 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Discussion of and Potential Approval of Student Milk Fees for the 2016-2017 School Year  
B. Discussion of and Potential Approval of Revised Job Description and Salary for the Business Services & 

Human Resources Position to the Executive Assistant to Business Services and Human Resources 
C. Discussion of and Potential Approval to Add 1.0 FTE Math Intervention Specialist to the Certified 

Teaching Staff 
D. Discussion of and Potential Approval of the Administrative Restructure to Include a Certified Teacher 

Position, Teacher Resource Coordinator 
E. Discussion of and Potential Approval to Extend Employment Contract for Mrs. Kendra Wallace as 

Principal for 2016-2018 
F. Discussion of and Potential Action to Approve Superintendent/Chief School Business Official Contractual 

Merit Bonus 
 
IX. OTHER BUSINESS 

 
X. PUBLIC COMMENT (See attached Rules of Public Comment) 

 
XI. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Dated the 11th day of March, 2016. 

 
 
 

         
Chike Erokwu 
Secretary, Board of Education 
Kenilworth School District No. 38 

 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIAL  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

To: Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
 
From:  Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO/FOIA Officer 
 
Date: March 14, 2016 
 
Re: Freedom of Information Act Requests 
 
 
 
The following Freedom of Information Act Request has been received and responded to 
since the last Regular Board of Education meeting: 
 
 
From Mr. John Klinger with the Illinois Policy Institute on February 25, 2016 
 
The request was for the following on behalf of the Illinois Policy Institute: 
 

1. A list of all current administrative and all other support staff employed by the 
district office. To clarify, I am requesting district personnel only, not 
administrative or support staff employed by individual schools within the 
district.  For each district employee I request the following: 

1. Full name  
2. Position/Title 
3. Current annual salary 
 

 
The response was provided on March 3, 2016.  The response was developed in 
consultation with our legal counsel, Heidi Katz. It required time on the part of Ms. 
Lascola and myself to research all appropriate documents requested.   
 
 
 
 
From Mr. Brendan Bakala with the Illinois Policy Institute on March 3, 2016 
 
The request was for the following on behalf of the Illinois Policy Institute: 
 

1. Ascertain the name and email address of your school district’s Freedom of 
Information (FOIA) officer. 

 
The response was provided on March 9, 2016.  It required time on the part of myself to 
research all appropriate documents requested.   



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIAL  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

 
 
 
From Mr. Brendan Bakala with the Illinois Policy Institute on March 8, 2016 
 
The request was for the following on behalf of the Illinois Policy Institute: 
 

1. Ascertain the name and email address of your school district’s Freedom of 
Information (FOIA) officer. 

 
The response was provided on March 9, 2016.  It required time on the part of myself to 
research all appropriate documents requested.   
 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIAL  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

To: Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
 
From:  Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/Chief School Business Official 
 
Date: March 14, 2016 
 
Re: Superintendent’s Report 
 
 
 
Partnership for Assessment of Readiness for College and Careers (PARCC) Student 
Participation Rate for the 2014-2015 School Year 
The District is in receipt of a PARCC participation rate notification letter from the Illinois 
State Board of Education (ISBE). Our regional superintendent will contact us to discuss 
how ISBE will proceed with this inquiry. 
 
In the preliminary conversation with ISBE, they indicated that this could be a two-tiered 
process, with one level of inquiry for those districts between 90-94 % in participation, 
and another format for those falling below those numbers.  Our District received an 
80.6% participation rate in English Language Arts and 80.0% in Mathematics.  
 
We have not received any guidelines or materials on how this inquiry process will work. 
However, it was mentioned that ISBE wants a low degree of disruption during this 
year's PARCC testing, so that much of this work will likely take place in the late spring 
or summer. I will follow up with more information as soon as it becomes available. 
 
Should you have any questions or concerns regarding this report, please do not hesitate 
to contact me. 
 
 
 
 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIAL  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

To: Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
 
From:  Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/Chief School Business Official 
 
Date: March 14, 2016 
 
Re: Chief School Business Official Report 
 
 
 
Accounts Payable Review 
 
The following section will highlight any bills that are beyond the regular monthly bills 
list or require an explanation: 
 
 
Explanation: District Sponsored Faculty and Staff Event  

 
 
 
Explanation: Special Education Tuition   

 
 

Explanation: New Science Curriculum Materials   

 
 
Explanation: Balance Transfer from Chase Bank to First Bank and Trust   

 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIAL  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

 
2016-2017 Milk Fee Recommendation 

 

Background 

Based on parent interest, in the 2014-2015 school year, the District began offering an 
organic milk option. In comparison to the District’s non-organic milk options, organic 
milk is very expensive. Despite the difference in fee structure, the organic milk option has 
been very well received.  Nearly half of the milk program participants select organic milk.  

 

2016-2017 Milk Fee Structure 

Based on the projected cost of milk for the 2016-17 school year, the current structure will 
continue to maintain a breakeven program. Therefore, it is my recommendation that we 
continue with the same fee structure as follows: 

 
The Administration recommends your favorable approval of the Proposed 2016-17 Milk 
Program Fees.  The Building and Finance Committee has reviewed this proposal and has 
favorably endorsed this recommendation.   

 
Should you have any questions or concerns regarding this report, please do not hesitate 
to contact me. 
 
 
 

2016%2017'Milk'Program'Fees'

1%#White,#Skim#White,#Skim#Chocolate# Annual#Amount#
## ##
1#Carton#of#milk#per#week/per#year# $13.00#
2#Cartons#of#milk#per#week/per#year# $26.00#
3#Cartons#of#milk#per#week/per#year# $39.00#
4#Cartons#of#milk#per#week/per#year# $52.00#
5#Cartons#of#milk#per#week/per#year# $65.00#
Actual'Cost'per'carton'='$.2895.299' ''
Average'Charge'per'carton'='$.373' ''
## ##
Organic#Milk:#1%#White#&#1%#Chocolate## Annual#Amount#
## ##
1#Carton#of#milk#per#week/per#year# $40.00#
2#Cartons#of#milk#per#week/per#year# $80.00#
3#Cartons#of#milk#per#week/per#year# $120.00#
4#Cartons#of#milk#per#week/per#year# $160.00#
5#Cartons#of#milk#per#week/per#year# $200.00#
Actual'Cost'per'carton'='$1.08' ''
Average'Charge'per'carton'='$1.15' ''
'' ''

 



DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIAL  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL  MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org

To:  Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/Chief School Business Official 

From: Mrs. Kendra Wallace, Principal 

Date: March 14, 2016 

Re: Principal’s Report 

Master Schedule 
A draft of the Master Schedule is being reviewed. The draft will be the focus of our Team 
Coordinators planning session on March 17. We need to look at the breakdown of classes 
and the feasibility with passing time. We also need to solidify RTI options. We are 
beginning to create a draft of the elementary schedule and imbed feedback from 
teachers. 

The faculty has identified some definite shifts for the Master Schedule: 
• Common lunch time will remain at 40 minutes
• Advisory will be at the start of the day for Junior High
• We will remove the weekly science lab, but we are working to create a schedule 

that gives flexibility of needed
• We will keep 5th grade on the elective wheel
• English and mathematics classes will be 40 minutes
• Science and social studies will be 60 minutes 

The goals is to have the final Master Schedule in place by April with teachers receiving 
their draft schedules by May 1. Please note that a Master Schedule is a fluid document 
and depending on enrollment, we may need to adjust the schedule to meet the needs of 
the respective grade level. 

Math Curriculum and Course Offerings 
The scope and sequence for math is completed and Common Core-aligned. Elementary 
teachers are completing their pre- and post-tests for all units. The Junior High math 
continuum is outlined and course offerings and course progressions have been defined. 
A draft flow chart for K-8th Grade has been constructed. A full math committee will be 
developed to review and publish this document. 

The math matrix for placement in 6th grade math is under review and we are working to 
refine it. A letter will be sent home in April and parents will be notified of placements in 
August. 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIAL  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

 
Curriculum Renewal Cycle 
A draft of the curriculum renewal cycle has been constructed. The document is included 
in the board packet. 
 
Science 
The scope and sequence for science is completed and it will be presented at the April 
board meeting for approval. Elementary grade levels are piloting their second unit of 
FOSS. A sample second grade FOSS unit can be found here. 
 
Request for Math Intervention Specialist Position 
Currently we have two reading facilitators to support students and provide RTI 
intervention, co-teaching support and differentiation recommendations for teachers to 
support learners.  Our current Math Facilitator has seen an increased demand in 
providing this kind of support for students 1st-8th grade. Her schedule is filled daily, 
including before school and during lunch.  In working to establish a program that 
supports early intervention and support for learners throughout their time at Sears, 
establishing a math support program that mirrors the resources provided for Reading 
would strengthen our ability to do this. 
 
The job description for the proposed Math Intervention Specialist position is included in 
the board packet. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Kenilworth School District No. 38 
Curriculum Renewal Plan 

 
 By statute, all districts are required to evaluate and, if necessary, revise all district curricula 

every 5 years.  The Joseph Sears School intends to meet and exceed this standard. Additionally, 

changes in state and national standards, state and national assessment practices, available 

curriculum materials, district leadership, and trends in the field may cause more frequent 

modifications to district programs.  
  
It is absolutely critical that teachers are provided the support, training, instructional resources 

and positive educational climate to successfully implement district programs in all content areas.  

This is why we have a systematic process in place to evaluate, develop, and implement all 

curricula in a manner that allocates  resources wisely and effectively.  The Joseph Sears School 

5-Year Curriculum Renewal Cycle is a systematic process. 
 

Overview 

  
Curriculum renewal is a 4-step cyclical process by which all curricula is analyzed and designed 

in a systematic and collaborative manner.  The process provides for a comprehensive evaluation 

of each program’s content, and inclusive development process, a thoughtful and careful 

implementation, revision based on experience, and time for program effectiveness to be realized.  
  
This model will assure that only one major content area is revised or developed in a given year.  

This has several benefits.  The model will facilitate effective and fiscally responsible use of  

resources.  Budget allocations for supplies and materials, textbooks and staff development can be 

focused on the successful implementation of the revisions or new program.  Additionally, this 

phased approach to curriculum renewal will facilitate teachers’ focus in implementing new 

programs by allowing them to concentrate on one major content area at a time rather than 

attempting to manage multiple initiatives. This model will be phased in according to the 

following table.  
 

 15-16 16-17 17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21 

English - Writing - Elementary M/R/W      



 

 

/I 

English - Writing - Junior High W-I      

English- Reading - Elementary M/R/I      

English - Reading - Junior High W-I      

Math - Elementary M/I-2      

Math - Junior High M      

Science - Elementary W/R      

Science - Junior High I-2      

Social Studies- Elementary R/M      

Social Studies- Junior High R      

World Language -Elementary  
French 

M      

World Language -Elementary  
Spanish 

M      

World Language - Junior High 
French 

M      

World Language - Junior High 
Spanish 

M      

World Language - Junior High 
Latin 

M      

Physical Education- Elementary M      

Physical Education- Junior High M      

Health I      

Music 
Band 

R(5-8) 
W (4) 

     

Music Orchestra W (4-
8) 

     

Visual Arts R(K) 
R/W 
(3-8) 

     



 

 

M (1-
2) 

Practical Arts       

Technology Education R/W      

Keyboarding M      

Media Center/Library - Elementary W      

Media Center/Library - JH W      

Makers R/W      

Social Emotional M/I      

Student Services 
*See notes 

R      

RtI       

**BOLDED = Majority of grade levels identified this stage 
R – Review and Research  - A committee representing all levels of education under review at The Joseph Sears 
School is formed.  It meets to assess existing curriculum, research outstanding practices and national/state trends in 
the content area.  It reviews the literature and may make visitations.  This group decides on the extent of the revision 
needed.  They may begin to write a Mission/Vision statement if one is needed. 
 
W – Writing – The committee then writes the components of the curriculum with alignment to current Nationally 
State Standards, best practice in the field and our programmatic philosophy and vision.  Writing will occur during 
the summer and continue into the next school year, as materials are matched to the curriculum.  During the school 
year, sections of the curriculum will be piloted in grade levels. 
  
I – Implementation  - Full implementation at all grade levels will be expected in September of the indicated school 
year. 
  
M – Monitor – The curriculum will continue to be monitored for its effectiveness.  “Mid-course” adjustments will 
be recommended by staff and discussed by administration prior to any changes. 
 

5-Year Curriculum Renewal Cycle 

The renewal cycle includes five key stages.  
 

1.      Review and Research (R)- This is the process of comparing the actual current program to 

ideal programs that may exist in other districts, in the nation or new programs aligned to new 



 

 

standards or best practice in the field and supporting the elements of learning desired in our 

school.  
 

The ideal program will be determined by conducting a comprehensive review of research and 

recommendations of best practice, reviewing state and national standards in the given field and 

conducting a complete scope and sequence of the standards.   A variety of data is gathered and 

reviewed in determining what the  actual, new program may look like.  This data might include, 

but would not be limited to: 

·        Review of current curriculum documents 

·        Results of curriculum mapping/scope and sequence exercises 

·        Curriculum audits of materials 

·        Assessment of staff development 

·        Feedback from staff, parents and students 

·        Review of standardized assessment data 

·        Review of school assessment data 

·        Analysis of the interrelationship between the area and other content areas 

The evaluation is the systematic comparison of the ideal program that has been identified 

through research and the actual program that has been described and assessed by collecting data.  

The evaluation reveals areas of strength in the current program as well as the deficiencies that 

need to be addressed during the curriculum development.  
  
Budget Focus:  During this phase, resources are budgeted for curriculum development during the 

following year.  Thus, we work on the curriculum the year prior to program and material 

purchase and implementation of the new curriculum  and provide professional development over 

the summer and throughout the school year. 
  
2.      Curriculum Development (W) – This process begins with establishing a shared vision for 

the program content, mission statements that will lead to the fulfillment of the vision and a 

completed scope and sequence/curriculum map.  The vision/goal of the program describes the 

shared values the school community holds regarding the program as well as those areas our 

students need to know to be successful upon completion of their education in Kenilworth. The 

mission statements describe what needs to be accomplished on the path to fulfilling the 



 

 

vision/goal.  While the vision/goal is simple, enduring and never fully attained, the mission 

statements provide a focal point of every effort, are clear and compelling, and provide more of a 

short-term focus.   The vision/mission should exemplify what a 21st century learner in that field 

embodies. 
  
During the curriculum development process, all program options are considered and 

investigated.  Pilots may take place to determine the effectiveness of options.  When pilots are 

used they are carefully evaluated and research-based decisions are made regarding content, 

scope, and sequence.  
  

This is the stage in which actual curriculum is written.  Involvement of staff and administration 

is absolutely critical at this stage.  A curriculum format that details the components and 

requirements of curriculum documents will be identified and used by all stakeholders during the 

process. Curriculum will be written and completed before the end of June of the calendar school 

school year before it is to be implemented to assure sufficient planning  This provides teachers 

with an opportunity to study the curriculum and plan over the summer.  
  

This is also the time we plan for the program evaluation.  The foundations of program evaluation 

should be established during this stage.  Benchmarks for program success and student success 

indicators have to be established during the scope and sequence portion of this process and assist 

us in determining if the program is working.  
  

Curriculum Review and Development Timeline: 
  

Curriculum Review and Development Committee Established  (The spring prior to in-depth 

curriculum review) – The composition and scope of the committee will be at the discretion of the 

Superintendent.  
  

The Curriculum Committees may be composed as follows: 

★ Principal or Director of Student Services 

★ Curriculum Facilitator 

★ Teacher(s) from target grade/subject levels 

★ Technology support as needed 



 

 

★  Student services representative(s), as needed 

  

Major tasks of the Curriculum Review and Development Committee 

  

a)      Establishes vision and missions of program  

b)      Completes vision and missions of program  

c)      Reviews evaluation data and conclusions  

d)      Establishes guidelines for writing of curriculum  

         Scope and Sequence 

         Identifies content to be taught 

         Identifies units 

 Common summative assessments for each unit (rubrics, prompts, tests)  
  

e)      Researches instructional materials/programs  

f)        Identifies, pilots and selects instructional materials/programs  

g)      Recommends implementation budget to the Principal  

h)      Proposes and presents new course(s) to Board when necessary 

i)        Reviews curriculum writing products  

·        Reviews/revises curriculum 

·        Coordinates sequence of material 

·        Assures coverage of skills across curriculum and grades 

·        Establishes benchmarks for program evaluation (example eQuip Rubric) 

j)        Assigns curriculum writing tasks 

·        By units, themes 

·        Identifies, pilots, and recommends materials to support units/curricula 

·        Teams of teachers write units when appropriate 

h)     Presents curriculum to staff 
  
A plan for dissemination of the curriculum is critical to successful implementation.   This 

includes training for the program.  The actual initial training is part of the next stage (Initial 

Implementation).  Systems for proper materials purchasing, distribution and support are 

established prior to implementation.    



 

 

  
Budget Focus:  Prior to the final budget being established by the Board of Education, materials 

acquisition and staff development is planned for program implementation.  Early in this stage, 

planning and budgeting of resources is done for program implementation the following year.  
  
3.      Initial Curriculum and Program Implementation (I) – This is the stage when the 

curriculum is put into practice in classrooms. 
  
Staff development is the major focus during this stage.  Workshops are planned during the school 

year and/or summer to support the implementation.   School staff development time, grade level 

meetings and/or department meetings will be used to provide staff training for successful 

implementation.  Other support systems for teachers are put in place. These might include, but 

are not limited to, email support, a mentor system, a buddy system, or other innovative strategies.  

Time is allocated from department/team level meetings to articulate about the new curriculum 

and share strategies that work.  
  
Checkpoints are established to gather feedback from teachers.  Adjustments in implementation 

and staff development are made along the way.   Program observations are conducted during this 

year.  Observation of teacher performance in implementing the new curriculum is emphasized 

since teachers are teaching brand new material.  Emphasis in observation is placed on the 

program by looking for correct implementation and interpretation of the curriculum, continuity 

in delivery, and other important aspects of implementation. Lesson plans and unit plans are 

assessed to obtain understanding of program implementation.  This information is used to impact 

the staff development program to provide continued support.  
            
4.      Curriculum revisions (I) – Based on input gathered during the school year and feedback 

from teachers and administrators some revisions to the curriculum may be necessary.  
  
Budget Focus:  Continued support of the successful program.  Budgeting for replenishment of 

materials and purchase of materials to accommodate enrollment growth and new staff.  
  
5.      Full implementation (M) – At this point, the program is fully operational in all the target 

classrooms.  Teachers are implementing curriculum and instruction in direct alignment with the 



 

 

newly established program.  This full implementation continues throughout the curriculum 

evaluation and development years.  This is a stage to continue to collect data for comprehensive 

program evaluation the following year.  Staff development could be done in needed areas.  

Observation of teacher performance is appropriate during this stage.  
  
Budget Focus: Continued support of the successful program.  Budgeting for replenishment of 

materials and purchase of materials to accommodate enrollment growth and new staff.  
 
Glossary of Terms - DRAFT: 
 
Assessment: wide variety of methods or tools that educators use to evaluate, measure, 
and document the academic readiness, learning progress, skill acquisition, or 
educational needs of students. 
● Pre-assessments are administered before students begin a lesson, unit, course, 

or academic program. They are used to (1) establish a baseline against which 
educators measure learning progress over the duration of a program, course, or 
instructional period, or (2) determine general academic readiness for a course, 
program, grade level, or new academic program that student may be transferring 
into. 

● Formative assessments (check up) are in-process evaluations of student 
learning that are typically administered multiple times during a unit, course, or 
academic program. Formative assessments are usually not scored or graded, 
and they may take a variety of forms, from more formal quizzes and assignments 
to informal questioning techniques and in-class discussions with students. 

● Summative assessments are used to evaluate student learning at the 
conclusion of a specific instructional period—typically at the end of a unit, course, 
semester, program, or school year. Summative assessments are typically scored 
and graded tests, assignments, or projects that are used to determine whether 
students have learned what they were expected to learn during the defined 
instructional period. 

●  
Curriculum: The lessons and academic content taught in a school or in a specific 
course or program.It is the knowledge and skills students are expected to learn, which 
includes the learning standards or learning objectives they are expected to meet; the 
units and lessons that teachers teach; the assignments and projects given to students; 
the books, materials, videos, presentations, and readings used in a course; and the 
tests, assessments, and other methods used to evaluate student learning. 
 



 

 

Curriculum Alignment: to create a more consistent and coherent academic program by 
making sure that teachers teach the most important content and eliminate learning gaps 
that may exist between sequential courses and grade levels. Coherent curriculum, or 
aligned curriculum, refers to an academic program that is (1) well organized and 
purposefully designed to facilitate learning, (2) free of academic gaps and unintentional 
repetitions, and (3) aligned across lessons, courses, subject areas, and grade levels. 
 
Learning objectives/targets: brief statements that describe what students will be 
expected to learn by the end of school year, course, unit, lesson, project, or class 
period. 
● “I can” statements: Teachers may choose to express learning objectives as “I 

can” statements as a way to frame the objectives from a student standpoint. The 
basic idea is that “I can” statements encourage students to identify with the 
learning goals, visualize themselves achieving the goals, or experience a greater 
sense of personal accomplishment when the learning objectives are achieved. 
For example: I can explain how the Constitution establishes the separation of 
powers among the three branches of the United States government—legislative, 
executive, and judicial—and I can articulate the primary powers held by each 
branch. 

 
Learning standards: concise, written descriptions of what students are expected to 
know and be able to do at a specific stage of their education. Learning standards 
describe educational objectives—i.e., what students should have learned by the end of 
a course, grade level, or grade span—but they do not describe any particular teaching 
practice, curriculum, or assessment method  



H:\2015-2016\Enrollment Report          
          
  03-09-16       

 
 

ENROLLMENT REPORT 2015-2016 
March 9, 2016 

  

 Historical Comparison  

 
 

Grade 

Beginning 
2013-2014 

School Year 
(08-28-13) 

Beginning 
2014-2015 

School Year 
(08-18-14) 

Enrollment 
Close of 

School Year 
(2014-2015) 

Enrollment  for 
2015-2016 

as of  
03-09-16 

Kasarda 
December 2014 

Projections 
2015-2016 

 

Fall 2015 
Census Numbers 

 

JK 7 12 13 10 NA 21 

K 43 43 44 39 41/46/50 24 

1 50 46 45 (46)* 46 43/45/47 27 

2 49 51 51 52 (53)* 45/47/49 39 

3 66 50 52 53 48/50/52 45 

4 47 67 65 (66)* 58 47/49/51 43 

5 67 42 42 67 63/65/67 62 

6 60  67 68 44(45)* 40/42/44 52 

7 75 56 56 72 66/68/70 56 

8 51 74* 71 (73)* 57 (58)* 55/55/57 69 

Total 518 508 507 (511)* 498 (501)* 448/467/487 438 

 

 
2015-2016 ENROLLMENT SUMMARY WITH CLASS SECTIONS 

 

School JK K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 Total 

The Joseph Sears School 10 

 

  39 

 

46 52 53 58 67 44  72 57 498 

No. of Current Sections 

No. Advisory Sections 

1 2 3 3 3 3 4 

4 5 5 

19 

14 

 
 
 

* Includes alternate student placement  
 



H:\2016-17\Enrollment Projection Report          
          
  03-09-16       

 
 

ENROLLMENT PROJECTION REPORT 2016-2017 
March 09, 2016 

  
 

 
PROJECTED 

2016-2017 
ENROLLMENT SUMMARY 
WITH CLASS SECTIONS 

 

School JK K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 Total 

The Joseph Sears School 

Projected Enrollment 16-17 

11 

 

  28 

 

43 47 56 53 60 68 45 73 484 

No. of Proposed Sections 

No. Advisory Sections 

1 2 3 3 3 3 4 

5 4 5 

19 

14 

 
 
 

* Includes alternate student placement 
 

 Historical Comparison 

 
 

Grade 

Beginning 
2014-2015 

School Year 
(08-18-14) 

Beginning 
2015-2016 

School Year 
(08-12-15) 

Current 
Enrollment 
March 9, 

2016 
(2015-2016) 

Projected 
Enrollment  for 

2016-2017 

Kasarda 
December 2014 

Projections 
2016-2017 

 

JK 12 10 10 11 NA 

K 43 37 39 28 41/45/549 

1 46 46  46 43 41/48/54 

2 51 49 (50)* 52 (53)* 47 42/46/50 

3 50 49 53 56 (57)* 43/47/51 

4 67 56 58 53 45/49/53 

5 42 66 (67)*  67 60 44/48/52 

6 67 42 44(45)* 68 61/65/69 

7 56 71 72 45 (46)* 39/43/47 

8 74* 56 57 (58)* 73 65/67/71 

Total 508 482 (484)* 498 (501)* 484 (486)* 421/458/496 



Kenilworth School District No. 38 

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
February 8, 2016 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 1 of 4 
 

MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 38, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

THE 8TH DAY OF FEBRUARY 2016 
 
The meeting was called to order by President Scott Wallace at 6:05 p.m. Upon Roll Call, the following 
board members answered as being present: Mr. Scott Wallace, Mrs. Suzanne Nelson, Mrs. Melinda Kelly, 
Mrs. Donna Keller and Mrs. Danielle Boros. Mrs. Stacey Van Metre and Mr. Tim Kollar were absent. 
 
Mr. Scott Wallace entertained a motion to go into Closed Session. 
 
CLOSED SESSION TO CONSIDER INFORMATION REGARDING SPECIFIC EMPLOYEE 
MATTERS AND THE PURCHASE OR LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY FOR USE OF THE PUBLIC 
BODY 
 
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson moved, seconded by Mrs. Mindy Kelly, to go into Closed Session at 6:05 p.m. to consider 
Information Regarding Specific Employee Matters and the Purchase or Lease of Real Property for use of the Public 
Body. 
 
Roll Call: 

Yes      No      Absent   Abstain 
Mr. Scott Wallace 
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson 

Mrs. Stacey Van Metre 
Mrs. Danielle Boros 

Mr. Timothy Kollar 
Mrs. Donna Keller 
Mrs. Melinda Kelly 

 
The motion carried with a vote of 5 to 0 with one member absent. 
 
The Board entered Closed Session at 6:05 p.m. 
        
The Board returned to Open Session at 7:54 p.m. 
 
Upon Roll Call, the following board members answered as being present:  Mr. Scott Wallace, Mrs. 
Suzanne Nelson, Mrs. Danielle Boros, Mrs. Melinda Kelly, Mrs. Donna Keller and Mrs. Stacey Van 
Metre. Mr. Timothy Kollar was absent. 
 
Also in attendance were: 
 
Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO  
Ms. Julia Jones, Director of Student Services;  
Mr. Chike Erokwu, Communication Coordinator 
 
Faculty: Ms. Caryn Friedman, Mrs. Lindsay Kaplan, Mrs. Liz Gordon, Mr. Jim Beavin, Mrs. Caitlin 
Phillips, Mrs. Cathy Quigley, Mrs. Toula Sideris, Mrs. Justyna Hendry, Mrs. Allison Drew, 
(Videographer) and Mrs. Enza Fox (Videographer) 
 



Kenilworth School District No. 38 

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
February 8, 2016 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 2 of 4 
 

Community: Mrs. Eleanor Prince, Mrs. Melissa Ross, Mrs. Carrie Matlock and Mr. Steven Wright (DLA 
Architects) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Mr. Scott Wallace invited public comment. There was none. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 
 
 
Report from the Superintendent – Dr. LeRoy discussed the Spring Community Forum. The District will 
host a forum on May 9 in an attempt to engage the Kenilworth community and provide an update on the 
state of the District. The forum will also serve as an opportunity for the District to receive feedback on 
upcoming facilities projects. Dr. LeRoy said that through the forum, the District will attempt to engage 
alumni and Kenilworth residents without children at Sears. The District’s newly-created 
Alumni/Heritage Committee will meet soon to brainstorm ways on how to engage those populations. 
 
Dr. LeRoy reviewed the enrollment report. Dr. LeRoy said that 14 new students arrived at Sears, 
however there were no more than two students per grade level and there were no sections that tipped. 
Enrollment numbers for the 2015-2016 school year are close to last year’s numbers and have exceeded 
Kasarda Report projections. 
 
Report from the Chief School Business Officer – After highlighting significant expenses in her accounts 
payable review, Dr. LeRoy introduced the District’s new architectural firm, DLA Architects. Mrs. Carrie 
Matlock and Mr. Steven Wright presented an overview of DLA Architecture’s firm, vision and past 
projects. Mrs. Matlock said she hopes to meet with faculty/staff toward the end of February to solicit 
feedback on the facilities before doing the same with students and community members. Mrs. Matlock 
said cost estimating for the facilities project would occur in May and a final presentation of the facilities 
project will be presented to the Board in June for approval. 
 
Report from the Principal – Mrs. Keller presented an overview of the February Education Committee 
meeting in Mrs. Wallace’s absence. The District’s Curriculum Committee gave an update on the process 
made in establishing a curriculum renewal cycle as well as the shifts that have occurred in curriculum to 
align with state standards. Ms. Jones discussed the efforts undertaken to differentiate academically 
throughout all grade levels. 
 
Report from the Director of Student Services – Ms. Jones informed the Board that NSSED named Dr. 
Kurt Schneider new Superintendent. 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Mr. Wallace asked if there were any questions regarding the Consent Agenda. There being no questions, 
Mr. Wallace asked for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda: 
 
Mrs. Melinda Kelly moved to approve the Consent Agenda to include approval for: Minutes of the January 19, 
2016 Regular Meeting and Closed Session; Approval of Accounts Payable for January 20, 2016 to February 8, 



Kenilworth School District No. 38 

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
February 8, 2016 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 3 of 4 
 

2016; Approval of Certified Employee Request(s) for Resignation; and the Destruction of Closed Session 
Recordings from July 2014 and August 2014 
 
The motion was seconded by Mrs. Suzanne Nelson. 
 
Roll Call: 

Yes      No      Absent   Abstain 
Mr. Scott Wallace 
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson 
Mrs. Stacey Van Metre 
Mrs. Danielle Boros 

Mr. Timothy Kollar 
Mrs. Donna Keller 
Mrs. Melinda Kelly 

 
The motion carried with a vote of 6 to 0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Discussion of the 2015-2016 School Climate Survey – Mrs. Donna Keller presented a draft of the 
executive summary to the 2015-2016 Faculty/Staff School Climate Survey Summary. In her analysis, 
Mrs. Keller said there was plenty of positive data that came out of the survey that should help guide 
discussions about school climate.  
 
The Board discussed the potential actions that the Administration can take based upon the survey 
results. Dr. LeRoy said she would present some of the findings and the action items from the survey to 
the Board at the next meeting. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
There was none. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
There was none. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Mr. Wallace invited public comment. There was none. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business Mr. Wallace entertained a motion to adjourn. 
 
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson moved, seconded by Mrs. Donna Keller, to adjourn the meeting at 8:38 p.m. 
 
The motion carried with all yeses. 



Kenilworth School District No. 38 

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
February 8, 2016 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 4 of 4 
 

 
Attest for Distribution: ___________________________________ 
     Chike Erokwu, Secretary    

 
Approved: ____________________________________ 

           Scott Wallace, President 
 
ATTEST: _____________________________________________ 
     Chike Erokwu, Secretary 



Kenilworth	
  School	
  District	
  38	
  

Monthly	
  Financials	
  
January	
  31,	
  2016	
  



Kenilworth	
  School	
  District	
  No.	
  38
Monthly	
  Financials	
  -­‐	
  January	
  2016

3/12/16

Fund	
  Balance	
  as	
  of	
  July	
  1,	
  2015 15,792,685.67

Revenues	
  by	
  Fund
2014-­‐15	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Budget

2014-­‐2015	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Unaudited	
  Actuals

2015-­‐2016	
  
Proposed	
  Budget

Budget	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Balance

2015-­‐2016	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
YTD

Education	
   9,869,872.00 10,076,447.30 10,191,090.00 5,427,399.38 4,763,690.62
Operations	
  &	
  Maintenance 1,518,939.00 1,603,097.51 1,624,932.00 897,525.09 727,406.91
Debt	
  Service	
   990,048.00 1,026,958.02 1,056,069.00 532,398.44 523,670.56
Transportation 42,870.00 12,454.67 12,315.00 6,495.51 5,819.49
IMRF	
  &	
  Social	
  Security 271,357.00 269,721.28 276,872.00 134,332.46 142,539.54
Capital	
  Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Working	
  Cash 14,615.00 80,898.37 85,000.00 189,515.41 -­‐104,515.41	
  
Tort	
  Fund 165,856.00 137,451.58 172,482.00 90,335.26 82,146.74
Fire	
  Prevention	
  &	
  Life	
  Safety 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total	
  Revenue	
  -­‐	
  All	
  Funds 12,873,557.00 13,207,028.73 13,418,760.00 7,278,001.55 6,140,758.45

Expenditures	
  by	
  Fund
2014-­‐15	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Budget

2014-­‐2015	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Unaudited	
  Actuals

2015-­‐2016	
  
Proposed	
  Budget

Budget	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Balance

2015-­‐2016	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
YTD

Education	
   9,840,276.00 9,806,168.71 9,928,551.29 5,315,766.29 4,612,785.00
Operations	
  &	
  Maintenance 1,796,445.00 1,029,580.88 1,072,142.00 696,476.73 375,665.27
Debt	
  Service	
   1,028,500.00 991,808.14 1,021,562.00 180,317.62 841,244.38
Transportation 52,015.00 23,559.73 24,738.00 -­‐1,605.72	
   26,343.72
IMRF	
  &	
  Social	
  Security 289,286.00 237,214.75 254,243.00 166,368.07 87,874.93
Capital	
  Projects 0.00 0.00 3,300,000.00 3,300,000.00 0.00
Working	
  Cash 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Tort	
  Fund 156,676.00 85,359.79 89,628.00 88,147.37 1,480.63
Fire	
  Prevention	
  &	
  Life	
  Safety 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total	
  Expenditures	
  -­‐	
  All	
  Funds 13,163,197.00 12,173,692.00 15,690,864.29 9,745,470.36 5,945,393.93

Fund	
  Balance	
  as	
  of	
  January	
  31,	
  2016 16,008,648.24



Kenilworth	
  School	
  District	
  No.	
  38
Monthly	
  Financials	
  -­‐	
  January	
  2016

3/12/16

2014-­‐15	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Budget

2014-­‐2015	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Unaudited	
  Actuals

2015-­‐2016	
  
Proposed	
  Budget

Budget	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Balance

2015-­‐2016	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
YTD

Revenues	
  by	
  Source
Tax	
  Levy 11,938,274.00 11,943,341.48 12,178,918.00 6,300,795.13 5,878,122.87
Other	
  Local	
  Revenue 544,873.00 933,382.04 895,342.00 825,304.06 70,037.94
State	
  Revenue 304,445.00 238,193.20 239,500.00 92,492.36 147,007.64
Federal	
  Revenue 85,965.00 92,112.01 105,000.00 59,410.00 45,590.00
Other	
  Financial	
  Sources 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total	
  revenues	
  -­‐	
  All	
  Funds 12,873,557.00 13,207,028.73 13,418,760.00 7,278,001.55 6,140,758.45

2014-­‐15	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Budget

2014-­‐2015	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Unaudited	
  Actuals

2015-­‐2016	
  
Proposed	
  Budget

Budget	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Balance

2015-­‐2016	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
YTD

Expenditures	
  by	
  Object
Salaries 7,407,791.00 7,288,548.00 7,172,208.41 3,894,061.66 3,278,146.75
Benefits	
   1,325,327.00 1,400,474.03 1,463,060.00 886,121.61 576,938.39
Purchased	
  Services 1,294,940.00 1,200,763.90 1,935,802.09 1,338,964.28 596,837.81
Supplies 687,998.00 642,083.79 642,083.79 147,685.43 494,398.36
Capital	
  Outlay 1,175,825.00 414,273.23 3,434,544.00 3,418,432.40 16,111.60
Other	
  Expenses 1,271,316.00 1,227,549.05 1,043,166.00 60,204.98 982,961.02
Total	
  Expenditures	
  -­‐	
  All	
  Funds 13,163,197.00 12,173,692.00 15,690,864.29 9,745,470.36 5,945,393.93

Excess	
  or	
  (Deficit)	
  Revenues -­‐289,640.00	
   1,033,336.73 -­‐2,272,104.29	
   195,364.52
Over	
  Expenditures

Fund	
  Balance	
  As	
  of	
  July	
  1st 14,751,934.00 14,462,294.00 16,577,793.49

Budgeted	
  Fund	
  Balance	
  -­‐	
  June	
  30th 14,462,294.00 15,495,630.73 14,305,689.20



Cash and Investments Summary10.0000.0100.000.00.000 $0.00 ($891,543.46) $7,527,875.73 ($7,527,875.73) $0.00 ($7,527,875.73) 0.00%

Due From Activity Acct/Fixed A10.0000.0200.000.00.000 $0.00 $0.00 $23,777.20 ($23,777.20) $0.00 ($23,777.20) 0.00%

Current Liabilities Summary10.0000.0400.000.00.000 $0.00 $34,403.76 $125,352.51 ($125,352.51) $348.40 ($125,700.91) 0.00%

Reserve and Fund Balance Summa10.0000.0700.000.00.000 $0.00 $0.00 ($7,526,099.82) $7,526,099.82 $0.00 $7,526,099.82 0.00%

FUND:  EDUCATIONAL FUND                           - 10 $0.00 ($857,139.70) $150,905.62 ($150,905.62) $348.40 ($151,254.02) 0.00%

Cash and Investments Summary20.0000.0100.000.00.000 $0.00 ($50,158.88) $3,693,384.66 ($3,693,384.66) $0.00 ($3,693,384.66) 0.00%

Current Liabilities Summary20.0000.0400.000.00.000 $0.00 $32.22 ($8,240.90) $8,240.90 $0.00 $8,240.90 0.00%

Reserve and Fund Balance Summa20.0000.0700.000.00.000 $0.00 $0.00 ($3,333,402.12) $3,333,402.12 $0.00 $3,333,402.12 0.00%

FUND:  OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE FUND            - 20 $0.00 ($50,126.66) $351,741.64 ($351,741.64) $0.00 ($351,741.64) 0.00%

Cash and Investments Summary30.0000.0100.000.00.000 $0.00 $3,613.49 $638,194.34 ($638,194.34) $0.00 ($638,194.34) 0.00%

Reserve and Fund Balance Summa30.0000.0700.000.00.000 $0.00 $0.00 ($955,768.16) $955,768.16 $0.00 $955,768.16 0.00%

FUND:  DEBT SERVICE FUND - 30 $0.00 $3,613.49 ($317,573.82) $317,573.82 $0.00 $317,573.82 0.00%

Cash and Investments Summary40.0000.0100.000.00.000 $0.00 ($10,177.34) $169,840.93 ($169,840.93) $0.00 ($169,840.93) 0.00%

Current Liabilities Summary40.0000.0400.000.00.000 $0.00 $0.00 ($0.24) $0.24 $0.00 $0.24 0.00%

Reserve and Fund Balance Summa40.0000.0700.000.00.000 $0.00 $0.00 ($190,364.92) $190,364.92 $0.00 $190,364.92 0.00%

FUND:  TRANSPORTATION FUND                      - 40 $0.00 ($10,177.34) ($20,524.23) $20,524.23 $0.00 $20,524.23 0.00%

Cash and Investments Summary50.0000.0100.000.00.000 $0.00 $15,152.84 $399,148.37 ($399,148.37) $0.00 ($399,148.37) 0.00%

Current Liabilities Summary50.0000.0400.000.00.000 $0.00 ($9,357.67) ($9,197.20) $9,197.20 $67,099.26 ($57,902.06) 0.00%

Reserve and Fund Balance Summa50.0000.0700.000.00.000 $0.00 $0.00 ($335,286.56) $335,286.56 $0.00 $335,286.56 0.00%

FUND:  MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT/SS FUND             - 50 $0.00 $5,795.17 $54,664.61 ($54,664.61) $67,099.26 ($121,763.87) 0.00%

Cash and Investments Summary70.0000.0100.000.00.000 $0.00 $8,291.73 $2,895,031.09 ($2,895,031.09) $0.00 ($2,895,031.09) 0.00%

Reserve and Fund Balance Summa70.0000.0700.000.00.000 $0.00 $0.00 ($2,999,546.50) $2,999,546.50 $0.00 $2,999,546.50 0.00%

FUND:  WORKING CASH                             - 70 $0.00 $8,291.73 ($104,515.41) $104,515.41 $0.00 $104,515.41 0.00%

Cash and Investments Summary80.0000.0100.000.00.000 $0.00 $467.38 $532,883.70 ($532,883.70) $0.00 ($532,883.70) 0.00%

Reserve and Fund Balance Summa80.0000.0700.000.00.000 $0.00 $0.00 ($452,217.59) $452,217.59 $0.00 $452,217.59 0.00%

FUND:  TORT FUND - 80 $0.00 $467.38 $80,666.11 ($80,666.11) $0.00 ($80,666.11) 0.00%

End of Report

$0.00 ($899,275.93) $195,364.52 ($195,364.52) $67,447.66 ($262,812.18)Grand Total: 0.00%

Kenilworth School District 38

Account Number

Balance Sheet 1/1/2016From Date:

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1/31/2016To Date:

GL Budget Range To Date YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Balance % Bud

Print accounts with zero balanceInclude pre encumbrance

Description

Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date RangeSubtotal by Collapse Mask

Exclude Inactive Accounts with zero balance

Printed: 03/10/2016 5:21:13 PM rptGLGenRptReport: 2016.1.06 Page: 1

leroy
Highlight



3/12/16

Beg	
  Fund	
  Balance	
  
(January	
  1,	
  2016) Receipts Disbursements

Ending	
  Fund	
  Balance	
  
(January	
  31,	
  2016)

Education	
   8,410,681.68 200,135.67 990,658.05 7,620,159.30
Operations	
  &	
  Maintenance 4,103,608.72 27,694.77 68,085.48 4,063,218.01
Debt	
  Service	
   634,580.85 3,613.49 0.00 638,194.34
Transportation 180,018.27 4,095.24 14,272.58 169,840.93
IMRF	
  &	
  Social	
  Security 383,995.53 10,521.96 0.00 394,517.49
Capital	
  Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Working	
  Cash 2,886,739.36 8,291.73 0.00 2,895,031.09
Tort	
  Fund 532,416.32 592.38 125.00 532,883.70
Life	
  Safety 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

17,132,040.73 254,945.24 1,073,141.11 16,313,844.86

FY15	
  Year	
  End	
  Audit	
  Adjustments 0.00

Less	
  Outstanding	
  Checks 197,160.62

Plus	
  Deposits	
  In	
  Transit 0.00

Total	
  Cash	
  and	
  Investments 16,116,684.24

Ending	
  Fund	
  Balance	
  
(January	
  31,	
  2016)

Investments 11,963,899.41
Checking	
  Account 4,152,784.83
Total	
  Cash	
  and	
  Investments 16,116,684.24

Monthly	
  Balance	
  Sheet
January	
  1,	
  2016	
  -­‐	
  January	
  31,	
  2016



Cash - Main Account10.0000.0101.000.00.000 $0.00 ($787,558.94) ($2,919,699.62) $2,919,699.62 $0.00 $2,919,699.62 0.00%

Cash - Main Account20.0000.0101.000.00.000 $0.00 ($40,358.49) $4,063,250.23 ($4,063,250.23) $0.00 ($4,063,250.23) 0.00%

Cash - Main Account30.0000.0101.000.00.000 $0.00 $3,613.49 $638,194.34 ($638,194.34) $0.00 ($638,194.34) 0.00%

Cash - Main Account40.0000.0101.000.00.000 $0.00 ($10,177.34) $169,840.93 ($169,840.93) $0.00 ($169,840.93) 0.00%

Cash - Main Account50.0000.0101.000.00.000 $0.00 $10,521.96 $394,517.49 ($394,517.49) $0.00 ($394,517.49) 0.00%

Cash - Main Account70.0000.0101.000.00.000 $0.00 $41.73 $1,469,045.59 ($1,469,045.59) $0.00 ($1,469,045.59) 0.00%

Cash - Main Account80.0000.0101.000.00.000 $0.00 $467.38 $532,883.70 ($532,883.70) $0.00 ($532,883.70) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  000 - 000 $0.00 ($823,450.21) $4,348,032.66 ($4,348,032.66) $0.00 ($4,348,032.66) 0.00%

Revolving Bank Account10.0000.0101.000.00.001 $0.00 ($3,954.99) $1,045.01 ($1,045.01) $0.00 ($1,045.01) 0.00%

00020.0000.0101.000.00.001 $0.00 ($32.22) ($32.22) $32.22 $0.00 $32.22 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  001 - 001 $0.00 ($3,987.21) $1,012.79 ($1,012.79) $0.00 ($1,012.79) 0.00%

FUNCTION:  CASH - 0101 $0.00 ($827,437.42) $4,349,045.45 ($4,349,045.45) $0.00 ($4,349,045.45) 0.00%

Petty Cash10.0000.0102.000.00.000 $0.00 $0.00 $900.00 ($900.00) $0.00 ($900.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  000 - 000 $0.00 $0.00 $900.00 ($900.00) $0.00 ($900.00) 0.00%

FUNCTION:  PETTY CASH - 0102 $0.00 $0.00 $900.00 ($900.00) $0.00 ($900.00) 0.00%

PMA - Liquid General Fund10.0000.0103.000.00.501 $0.00 $1,057.78 $4,206,930.68 ($4,206,930.68) $0.00 ($4,206,930.68) 0.00%

PMA - Liquid General Fund70.0000.0103.000.00.501 $0.00 $8,250.00 $8,250.00 ($8,250.00) $0.00 ($8,250.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Liquid General Fund - 501 $0.00 $9,307.78 $4,215,180.68 ($4,215,180.68) $0.00 ($4,215,180.68) 0.00%

PMA - Max General Fund10.0000.0103.000.00.502 $0.00 $241.95 $2,501,125.38 ($2,501,125.38) $0.00 ($2,501,125.38) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Max General Fund - 502 $0.00 $241.95 $2,501,125.38 ($2,501,125.38) $0.00 ($2,501,125.38) 0.00%

PMA - Capital Bank NA 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.508 $0.00 $0.00 $248,100.00 ($248,100.00) $0.00 ($248,100.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Capital Bank NA 12/2014 - 508 $0.00 $0.00 $248,100.00 ($248,100.00) $0.00 ($248,100.00) 0.00%

PMA - Bank of East Asia10.0000.0103.000.00.509 $0.00 $0.00 $248,300.00 ($248,300.00) $0.00 ($248,300.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Bank of East Asia - 509 $0.00 $0.00 $248,300.00 ($248,300.00) $0.00 ($248,300.00) 0.00%

PMA - Bank of the Ozarks 12/2010.0000.0103.000.00.510 $0.00 $0.00 $248,500.00 ($248,500.00) $0.00 ($248,500.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Bank of the Ozarks 12/2014 - 510 $0.00 $0.00 $248,500.00 ($248,500.00) $0.00 ($248,500.00) 0.00%

PMA - United Texas Bank 12/20110.0000.0103.000.00.511 $0.00 $0.00 $248,700.00 ($248,700.00) $0.00 ($248,700.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - United Texas Bank 12/2014 - 511 $0.00 $0.00 $248,700.00 ($248,700.00) $0.00 ($248,700.00) 0.00%

PMA - Sonabank 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.512 $0.00 $0.00 $248,300.00 ($248,300.00) $0.00 ($248,300.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Sonabank 12/2014 - 512 $0.00 $0.00 $248,300.00 ($248,300.00) $0.00 ($248,300.00) 0.00%

PMA - Pacific Alliance 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.513 $0.00 $0.00 $247,400.00 ($247,400.00) $0.00 ($247,400.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Pacific Alliance 12/2014 - 513 $0.00 $0.00 $247,400.00 ($247,400.00) $0.00 ($247,400.00) 0.00%

PMA - Pulaski Bank 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.514 $0.00 $0.00 $247,400.00 ($247,400.00) $0.00 ($247,400.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Pulaski Bank 12/2014 - 514 $0.00 $0.00 $247,400.00 ($247,400.00) $0.00 ($247,400.00) 0.00%

PMA - Bank of New England 12/210.0000.0103.000.00.515 $0.00 $0.00 $248,500.00 ($248,500.00) $0.00 ($248,500.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Bank of New England 12/2014 - 515 $0.00 $0.00 $248,500.00 ($248,500.00) $0.00 ($248,500.00) 0.00%

PMA - Premier Bank, Na 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.516 $0.00 $0.00 $248,500.00 ($248,500.00) $0.00 ($248,500.00) 0.00%

Kenilworth School District 38

Account Number

Cash and Investments 1/1/2016From Date:

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1/31/2016To Date:

GL Budget Range To Date YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Balance % Bud

Print accounts with zero balanceInclude pre encumbrance

Description

Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date RangeSubtotal by Collapse Mask

Exclude Inactive Accounts with zero balance

Printed: 03/12/2016 11:17:52 AM rptGLGenRptReport: 2016.1.06 Page: 1



SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Premier Bank, Na 12/2014 - 516 $0.00 $0.00 $248,500.00 ($248,500.00) $0.00 ($248,500.00) 0.00%

PMA - Bank 7 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.517 $0.00 $0.00 $248,600.00 ($248,600.00) $0.00 ($248,600.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Bank 7 12/2014 - 517 $0.00 $0.00 $248,600.00 ($248,600.00) $0.00 ($248,600.00) 0.00%

PMA - Bofi Federal Bank 12/20110.0000.0103.000.00.518 $0.00 $0.00 $248,700.00 ($248,700.00) $0.00 ($248,700.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Bofi Federal Bank 12/2014 - 518 $0.00 $0.00 $248,700.00 ($248,700.00) $0.00 ($248,700.00) 0.00%

PMA - Rockford B&TC 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.519 $0.00 $0.00 $248,700.00 ($248,700.00) $0.00 ($248,700.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Rockford B&TC 12/2014 - 519 $0.00 $0.00 $248,700.00 ($248,700.00) $0.00 ($248,700.00) 0.00%

PMA - Goldman Sachs Bank Certi10.0000.0103.000.00.520 $0.00 $0.00 $249,305.26 ($249,305.26) $0.00 ($249,305.26) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Goldman Sachs Bank Certificate of Deposit
- 520

$0.00 $0.00 $249,305.26 ($249,305.26) $0.00 ($249,305.26) 0.00%

PMA - Safra National Bank Cert10.0000.0103.000.00.521 $0.00 $0.00 $249,681.09 ($249,681.09) $0.00 ($249,681.09) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Safra National Bank Certificate of Deposit -
521

$0.00 $0.00 $249,681.09 ($249,681.09) $0.00 ($249,681.09) 0.00%

PMA - First Niagra Bank Certif10.0000.0103.000.00.522 $0.00 $0.00 $249,741.50 ($249,741.50) $0.00 ($249,741.50) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - First Niagra Bank Certificate of Deposit -
522

$0.00 $0.00 $249,741.50 ($249,741.50) $0.00 ($249,741.50) 0.00%

PMA - Washtenaw Cnty Mi Ltd Go10.0000.0103.000.00.523 $0.00 $0.00 $101,430.00 ($101,430.00) $0.00 ($101,430.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Washtenaw Cnty Mi Ltd Go 12/2015 - 523 $0.00 $0.00 $101,430.00 ($101,430.00) $0.00 ($101,430.00) 0.00%

PMA - Erie Cnty Ny Revenue 12/70.0000.0103.000.00.524 $0.00 $0.00 $101,710.00 ($101,710.00) $0.00 ($101,710.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Erie Cnty Ny Revenue 12/2015 - 524 $0.00 $0.00 $101,710.00 ($101,710.00) $0.00 ($101,710.00) 0.00%

PMA - Harris City Texas Ltd Go70.0000.0103.000.00.525 $0.00 $0.00 $103,410.00 ($103,410.00) $0.00 ($103,410.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Harris City Texas Ltd Go 12/2015 - 525 $0.00 $0.00 $103,410.00 ($103,410.00) $0.00 ($103,410.00) 0.00%

PMA - Glendale Az Ltd Go 12/2070.0000.0103.000.00.526 $0.00 $0.00 $104,740.00 ($104,740.00) $0.00 ($104,740.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Glendale Az Ltd Go 12/2015 - 526 $0.00 $0.00 $104,740.00 ($104,740.00) $0.00 ($104,740.00) 0.00%

PMA - Miami-Dade Cnty Fl Utl G70.0000.0103.000.00.527 $0.00 $0.00 $116,457.00 ($116,457.00) $0.00 ($116,457.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Miami-Dade Cnty Fl Utl Go 12/2015 - 527 $0.00 $0.00 $116,457.00 ($116,457.00) $0.00 ($116,457.00) 0.00%

PMA - Clark Cnty Nv Ltd Go 12/70.0000.0103.000.00.528 $0.00 $0.00 $69,023.50 ($69,023.50) $0.00 ($69,023.50) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Clark Cnty Nv Ltd Go 12/2015 - 528 $0.00 $0.00 $69,023.50 ($69,023.50) $0.00 ($69,023.50) 0.00%

PMA - Cook Kane Lake & McHenry70.0000.0103.000.00.529 $0.00 $0.00 $90,202.00 ($90,202.00) $0.00 ($90,202.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Cook Kane Lake & McHenry Cnty 12/2015
- 529

$0.00 $0.00 $90,202.00 ($90,202.00) $0.00 ($90,202.00) 0.00%

PMA - Outgamie Cnty Wi Ult Go 70.0000.0103.000.00.530 $0.00 $0.00 $136,971.00 ($136,971.00) $0.00 ($136,971.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Outgamie Cnty Wi Ult Go 12/2015 - 530 $0.00 $0.00 $136,971.00 ($136,971.00) $0.00 ($136,971.00) 0.00%

PMA - West Des Moines Ia Ult G70.0000.0103.000.00.531 $0.00 $0.00 $104,070.00 ($104,070.00) $0.00 ($104,070.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - West Des Moines Ia Ult Go 12/2015 - 531 $0.00 $0.00 $104,070.00 ($104,070.00) $0.00 ($104,070.00) 0.00%

PMA - Schertz/Seguin Tx Govt C70.0000.0103.000.00.532 $0.00 $0.00 $78,810.00 ($78,810.00) $0.00 ($78,810.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Schertz/Seguin Tx Govt Contract Revs
12/2015 - 532

$0.00 $0.00 $78,810.00 ($78,810.00) $0.00 ($78,810.00) 0.00%

PMA - Hamilton Cnty In Ltd Go 70.0000.0103.000.00.533 $0.00 $0.00 $100,140.00 ($100,140.00) $0.00 ($100,140.00) 0.00%

Kenilworth School District 38

Account Number

Cash and Investments 1/1/2016From Date:

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1/31/2016To Date:

GL Budget Range To Date YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Balance % Bud

Print accounts with zero balanceInclude pre encumbrance

Description

Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date RangeSubtotal by Collapse Mask

Exclude Inactive Accounts with zero balance

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Hamilton Cnty In Ltd Go 12/2015 - 533 $0.00 $0.00 $100,140.00 ($100,140.00) $0.00 ($100,140.00) 0.00%

Printed: 03/12/2016 11:17:52 AM rptGLGenRptReport: 2016.1.06 Page: 2



SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Hamilton Cnty In Ltd Go 12/2015 - 533 $0.00 $0.00 $100,140.00 ($100,140.00) $0.00 ($100,140.00) 0.00%

PMA - King City Wa Ult Go 12/270.0000.0103.000.00.534 $0.00 $0.00 $119,311.50 ($119,311.50) $0.00 ($119,311.50) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - King City Wa Ult Go 12/2015 - 534 $0.00 $0.00 $119,311.50 ($119,311.50) $0.00 ($119,311.50) 0.00%

PMA - New York City Transition70.0000.0103.000.00.535 $0.00 $0.00 $147,826.00 ($147,826.00) $0.00 ($147,826.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - New York City Transitional Revs 12/2015 -
535

$0.00 $0.00 $147,826.00 ($147,826.00) $0.00 ($147,826.00) 0.00%

PMA - Evanston, Il Ult Go 12/270.0000.0103.000.00.536 $0.00 $0.00 $74,497.50 ($74,497.50) $0.00 ($74,497.50) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Evanston, Il Ult Go 12/2015 - 536 $0.00 $0.00 $74,497.50 ($74,497.50) $0.00 ($74,497.50) 0.00%

PMA - South Huntington Ny Sd U70.0000.0103.000.00.537 $0.00 $0.00 $49,815.00 ($49,815.00) $0.00 ($49,815.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - South Huntington Ny Sd Ult Go 12/2015 -
537

$0.00 $0.00 $49,815.00 ($49,815.00) $0.00 ($49,815.00) 0.00%

PMA - Clark Cnty Nv Go Ltd 12/70.0000.0103.000.00.538 $0.00 $0.00 $20,752.00 ($20,752.00) $0.00 ($20,752.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Clark Cnty Nv Go Ltd 12/2015 - 538 $0.00 $0.00 $20,752.00 ($20,752.00) $0.00 ($20,752.00) 0.00%

Illinois Funds10.0000.0103.000.00.600 $0.00 ($308.18) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  Illinois Funds - 600 $0.00 ($308.18) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

FUNCTION:  UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENTS - 0103 $0.00 $9,241.55 $11,963,899.41 ($11,963,899.41) $0.00 ($11,963,899.41) 0.00%

End of Report

$0.00 ($818,195.87) $16,313,844.86 ($16,313,844.86) $0.00 ($16,313,844.86)Grand Total: 0.00%

Kenilworth School District 38

Account Number

Cash and Investments 1/1/2016From Date:

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1/31/2016To Date:

GL Budget Range To Date YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Balance % Bud

Print accounts with zero balanceInclude pre encumbrance

Description

Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date RangeSubtotal by Collapse Mask

Exclude Inactive Accounts with zero balance

Printed: 03/12/2016 11:17:52 AM rptGLGenRptReport: 2016.1.06 Page: 3

leroy
Highlight

leroy
Highlight



	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  

Kenilworth	
  School	
  District	
  38	
  
	
   	
   	
   	
   	
   	
  

	
  
Monthly	
  Financials	
  
February	
  29,	
  2016	
  



Kenilworth	
  School	
  District	
  No.	
  38
Monthly	
  Financials	
  -­‐	
  January	
  2016

3/12/16

Fund	
  Balance	
  as	
  of	
  July	
  1,	
  2015 15,792,685.67

Revenues	
  by	
  Fund
2014-­‐15	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Budget

2014-­‐2015	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Unaudited	
  Actuals

2015-­‐2016	
  
Proposed	
  Budget

Budget	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Balance

2015-­‐2016	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
YTD

Education	
   9,869,872.00 10,076,447.30 10,191,090.00 3,742,735.90 6,448,354.10
Operations	
  &	
  Maintenance 1,518,939.00 1,603,097.51 1,624,932.00 635,927.16 989,004.84
Debt	
  Service	
   990,048.00 1,026,958.02 1,056,069.00 532,403.08 523,665.92
Transportation 42,870.00 12,454.67 12,315.00 1,772.66 10,542.34
IMRF	
  &	
  Social	
  Security 271,357.00 269,721.28 276,872.00 96,303.30 180,568.70
Capital	
  Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Working	
  Cash 14,615.00 80,898.37 85,000.00 188,015.41 -­‐103,015.41	
  
Tort	
  Fund 165,856.00 137,451.58 172,482.00 60,233.31 112,248.69
Fire	
  Prevention	
  &	
  Life	
  Safety 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total	
  Revenue	
  -­‐	
  All	
  Funds 12,873,557.00 13,207,028.73 13,418,760.00 5,257,390.82 8,161,369.18

Expenditures	
  by	
  Fund
2014-­‐15	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Budget

2014-­‐2015	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Unaudited	
  Actuals

2015-­‐2016	
  
Proposed	
  Budget

Budget	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Balance

2015-­‐2016	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
YTD

Education	
   9,840,276.00 9,806,168.71 9,928,551.29 4,645,904.99 5,282,646.30
Operations	
  &	
  Maintenance 1,796,445.00 1,029,580.88 1,072,142.00 686,552.91 385,589.09
Debt	
  Service	
   1,028,500.00 991,808.14 1,021,562.00 180,317.62 841,244.38
Transportation 52,015.00 23,559.73 24,738.00 -­‐1,605.72	
   26,343.72
IMRF	
  &	
  Social	
  Security 289,286.00 237,214.75 254,243.00 161,149.12 93,093.88
Capital	
  Projects 0.00 0.00 3,300,000.00 3,300,000.00 0.00
Working	
  Cash 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Tort	
  Fund 156,676.00 85,359.79 89,628.00 88,147.37 1,480.63
Fire	
  Prevention	
  &	
  Life	
  Safety 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total	
  Expenditures	
  -­‐	
  All	
  Funds 13,163,197.00 12,173,692.00 15,690,864.29 9,060,466.29 6,630,398.00

Investment	
  Balance 11,966,000.63
Checking	
  Account	
  Balance 5,578,533.12
Less	
  Outstanding	
  Checks 120,594.92
Plus	
  Deposits	
  In-­‐Transit 0.00
Fund	
  Balance	
  as	
  of	
  February	
  29,	
  2016 17,423,938.83



Kenilworth	
  School	
  District	
  No.	
  38
Monthly	
  Financials	
  -­‐	
  January	
  2016

3/12/16

2014-­‐15	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Budget

2014-­‐2015	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Unaudited	
  Actuals

2015-­‐2016	
  
Proposed	
  Budget

Budget	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Balance

2015-­‐2016	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
YTD

Revenues	
  by	
  Source
Tax	
  Levy 11,938,274.00 11,943,341.48 12,178,918.00 4,333,742.36 7,845,175.64
Other	
  Local	
  Revenue 544,873.00 933,382.04 895,342.00 804,930.10 90,411.90
State	
  Revenue 304,445.00 238,193.20 239,500.00 92,492.36 147,007.64
Federal	
  Revenue 85,965.00 92,112.01 105,000.00 26,226.00 78,774.00
Other	
  Financial	
  Sources 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total	
  revenues	
  -­‐	
  All	
  Funds 12,873,557.00 13,207,028.73 13,418,760.00 5,257,390.82 8,161,369.18

2014-­‐15	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Budget

2014-­‐2015	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Unaudited	
  Actuals

2015-­‐2016	
  
Proposed	
  Budget

Budget	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Balance

2015-­‐2016	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
YTD

Expenditures	
  by	
  Object
Salaries 7,407,791.00 7,288,548.00 7,172,208.41 3,311,277.79 3,860,930.62
Benefits	
   1,325,327.00 1,400,474.03 1,463,060.00 785,082.14 677,977.86
Purchased	
  Services 1,294,940.00 1,200,763.90 1,935,802.09 1,338,511.14 597,290.95
Supplies 687,998.00 642,083.79 642,083.79 147,163.10 494,920.69
Capital	
  Outlay 1,175,825.00 414,273.23 3,434,544.00 3,418,432.40 16,111.60
Other	
  Expenses 1,271,316.00 1,227,549.05 1,043,166.00 59,999.72 983,166.28
Total	
  Expenditures	
  -­‐	
  All	
  Funds 13,163,197.00 12,173,692.00 15,690,864.29 9,060,466.29 6,630,398.00

Excess	
  or	
  (Deficit)	
  Revenues -­‐289,640.00	
   1,033,336.73 -­‐2,272,104.29	
   1,530,971.18
Over	
  Expenditures

Fund	
  Balance	
  As	
  of	
  July	
  1st 14,751,934.00 14,462,294.00 16,577,793.49

Budgeted	
  Fund	
  Balance	
  -­‐	
  June	
  30th 14,462,294.00 15,495,630.73 14,305,689.20



Cash and Investments Summary10.0000.0100.000.00.000 $0.00 $1,044,489.87 $8,572,365.60 ($8,572,365.60) $0.00 ($8,572,365.60) 0.00%

Due From Activity Acct/Fixed A10.0000.0200.000.00.000 $0.00 $0.00 $23,777.20 ($23,777.20) $0.00 ($23,777.20) 0.00%

Current Liabilities Summary10.0000.0400.000.00.000 $0.00 ($29,687.69) $95,664.82 ($95,664.82) $278.72 ($95,943.54) 0.00%

Reserve and Fund Balance Summa10.0000.0700.000.00.000 $0.00 $0.00 ($7,526,099.82) $7,526,099.82 $0.00 $7,526,099.82 0.00%

FUND:  EDUCATIONAL FUND                           - 10 $0.00 $1,014,802.18 $1,165,707.80 ($1,165,707.80) $278.72 ($1,165,986.52) 0.00%

Cash and Investments Summary20.0000.0100.000.00.000 $0.00 $251,674.11 $3,945,058.77 ($3,945,058.77) $0.00 ($3,945,058.77) 0.00%

Current Liabilities Summary20.0000.0400.000.00.000 $0.00 $0.00 ($8,240.90) $8,240.90 $0.00 $8,240.90 0.00%

Reserve and Fund Balance Summa20.0000.0700.000.00.000 $0.00 $0.00 ($3,333,402.12) $3,333,402.12 $0.00 $3,333,402.12 0.00%

FUND:  OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE FUND            - 20 $0.00 $251,674.11 $603,415.75 ($603,415.75) $0.00 ($603,415.75) 0.00%

Cash and Investments Summary30.0000.0100.000.00.000 $0.00 ($4.64) $638,189.70 ($638,189.70) $0.00 ($638,189.70) 0.00%

Reserve and Fund Balance Summa30.0000.0700.000.00.000 $0.00 $0.00 ($955,768.16) $955,768.16 $0.00 $955,768.16 0.00%

FUND:  DEBT SERVICE FUND - 30 $0.00 ($4.64) ($317,578.46) $317,578.46 $0.00 $317,578.46 0.00%

Cash and Investments Summary40.0000.0100.000.00.000 $0.00 $4,722.85 $174,563.78 ($174,563.78) $0.00 ($174,563.78) 0.00%

Current Liabilities Summary40.0000.0400.000.00.000 $0.00 $0.00 ($0.24) $0.24 $0.00 $0.24 0.00%

Reserve and Fund Balance Summa40.0000.0700.000.00.000 $0.00 $0.00 ($190,364.92) $190,364.92 $0.00 $190,364.92 0.00%

FUND:  TRANSPORTATION FUND                      - 40 $0.00 $4,722.85 ($15,801.38) $15,801.38 $0.00 $15,801.38 0.00%

Cash and Investments Summary50.0000.0100.000.00.000 $0.00 $5,526.71 $404,675.08 ($404,675.08) $0.00 ($404,675.08) 0.00%

Current Liabilities Summary50.0000.0400.000.00.000 $0.00 $27,283.50 $18,086.30 ($18,086.30) $54,696.95 ($72,783.25) 0.00%

Reserve and Fund Balance Summa50.0000.0700.000.00.000 $0.00 $0.00 ($335,286.56) $335,286.56 $0.00 $335,286.56 0.00%

FUND:  MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT/SS FUND             - 50 $0.00 $32,810.21 $87,474.82 ($87,474.82) $54,696.95 ($142,171.77) 0.00%

Cash and Investments Summary70.0000.0100.000.00.000 $0.00 $1,500.00 $2,896,531.09 ($2,896,531.09) $0.00 ($2,896,531.09) 0.00%

Reserve and Fund Balance Summa70.0000.0700.000.00.000 $0.00 $0.00 ($2,999,546.50) $2,999,546.50 $0.00 $2,999,546.50 0.00%

FUND:  WORKING CASH                             - 70 $0.00 $1,500.00 ($103,015.41) $103,015.41 $0.00 $103,015.41 0.00%

Cash and Investments Summary80.0000.0100.000.00.000 $0.00 $30,101.95 $562,985.65 ($562,985.65) $0.00 ($562,985.65) 0.00%

Reserve and Fund Balance Summa80.0000.0700.000.00.000 $0.00 $0.00 ($452,217.59) $452,217.59 $0.00 $452,217.59 0.00%

FUND:  TORT FUND - 80 $0.00 $30,101.95 $110,768.06 ($110,768.06) $0.00 ($110,768.06) 0.00%

End of Report

$0.00 $1,335,606.66 $1,530,971.18 ($1,530,971.18) $54,975.67 ($1,585,946.85)Grand Total: 0.00%

Kenilworth School District 38

Account Number

Balance Sheet 2/1/2016From Date:

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

2/29/2016To Date:

GL Budget Range To Date YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Balance % Bud

Print accounts with zero balanceInclude pre encumbrance

Description

Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date RangeSubtotal by Collapse Mask

Exclude Inactive Accounts with zero balance

Printed: 03/12/2016 11:00:26 AM rptGLGenRptReport: 2016.1.06 Page: 1

leroy
Highlight



3/12/16

Beg	
  Fund	
  Balance	
  
(February	
  1,	
  2016) Receipts Disbursements

Ending	
  Fund	
  Balance	
  
(February	
  29,	
  2016)

Education	
   7,620,159.30 1,688,540.67 693,833.48 8,614,866.49
Operations	
  &	
  Maintenance 4,063,218.01 261,597.93 155.64 4,324,660.30
Debt	
  Service	
   638,194.34 0.00 4.64 638,189.70
Transportation 169,840.93 4,722.85 0.00 174,563.78
IMRF	
  &	
  Social	
  Security 394,517.49 38,029.16 0.00 432,546.65
Capital	
  Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Working	
  Cash 2,895,031.09 1,511.11 11.11 2,896,531.09
Tort	
  Fund 532,883.70 30,101.95 0.00 562,985.65
Life	
  Safety 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

16,313,844.86 2,024,503.67 694,004.87 17,644,343.66

FY15	
  Year	
  End	
  Audit	
  Adjustments

Less	
  Outstanding	
  Checks 120,594.92

Plus	
  Deposits	
  In	
  Transit 0.00

Total	
  Cash	
  and	
  Investments 17,523,748.74

Ending	
  Fund	
  Balance	
  
(February	
  29,	
  2016)

Investments 11,966,000.63
Checking	
  Account 5,557,748.11
Total	
  Cash	
  and	
  Investments 17,523,748.74

Monthly	
  Balance	
  Sheet
February	
  1,	
  2016	
  -­‐	
  February	
  29,	
  2016



Cash - Main Account10.0000.0101.000.00.000 $0.00 $991,341.43 ($1,928,358.19) $1,928,358.19 $0.00 $1,928,358.19 0.00%

Cash - Main Account20.0000.0101.000.00.000 $0.00 $261,597.93 $4,324,848.16 ($4,324,848.16) $0.00 ($4,324,848.16) 0.00%

Cash - Main Account30.0000.0101.000.00.000 $0.00 ($4.64) $638,189.70 ($638,189.70) $0.00 ($638,189.70) 0.00%

Cash - Main Account40.0000.0101.000.00.000 $0.00 $4,722.85 $174,563.78 ($174,563.78) $0.00 ($174,563.78) 0.00%

Cash - Main Account50.0000.0101.000.00.000 $0.00 $38,029.16 $432,546.65 ($432,546.65) $0.00 ($432,546.65) 0.00%

Cash - Main Account70.0000.0101.000.00.000 $0.00 $0.00 $1,469,045.59 ($1,469,045.59) $0.00 ($1,469,045.59) 0.00%

Cash - Main Account80.0000.0101.000.00.000 $0.00 $30,101.95 $562,985.65 ($562,985.65) $0.00 ($562,985.65) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  000 - 000 $0.00 $1,325,788.68 $5,673,821.34 ($5,673,821.34) $0.00 ($5,673,821.34) 0.00%

Revolving Bank Account10.0000.0101.000.00.001 $0.00 $2,764.54 $3,809.55 ($3,809.55) $0.00 ($3,809.55) 0.00%

00020.0000.0101.000.00.001 $0.00 ($155.64) ($187.86) $187.86 $0.00 $187.86 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  001 - 001 $0.00 $2,608.90 $3,621.69 ($3,621.69) $0.00 ($3,621.69) 0.00%

FUNCTION:  CASH - 0101 $0.00 $1,328,397.58 $5,677,443.03 ($5,677,443.03) $0.00 ($5,677,443.03) 0.00%

Petty Cash10.0000.0102.000.00.000 $0.00 $0.00 $900.00 ($900.00) $0.00 ($900.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  000 - 000 $0.00 $0.00 $900.00 ($900.00) $0.00 ($900.00) 0.00%

FUNCTION:  PETTY CASH - 0102 $0.00 $0.00 $900.00 ($900.00) $0.00 ($900.00) 0.00%

PMA - Liquid General Fund10.0000.0103.000.00.501 $0.00 $302.38 $4,207,233.06 ($4,207,233.06) $0.00 ($4,207,233.06) 0.00%

PMA - Liquid General Fund70.0000.0103.000.00.501 $0.00 $1,500.00 $9,750.00 ($9,750.00) $0.00 ($9,750.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Liquid General Fund - 501 $0.00 $1,802.38 $4,216,983.06 ($4,216,983.06) $0.00 ($4,216,983.06) 0.00%

PMA - Max General Fund10.0000.0103.000.00.502 $0.00 $298.84 $2,501,424.22 ($2,501,424.22) $0.00 ($2,501,424.22) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Max General Fund - 502 $0.00 $298.84 $2,501,424.22 ($2,501,424.22) $0.00 ($2,501,424.22) 0.00%

PMA - Capital Bank NA 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.508 $0.00 $0.00 $248,100.00 ($248,100.00) $0.00 ($248,100.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Capital Bank NA 12/2014 - 508 $0.00 $0.00 $248,100.00 ($248,100.00) $0.00 ($248,100.00) 0.00%

PMA - Bank of East Asia10.0000.0103.000.00.509 $0.00 $0.00 $248,300.00 ($248,300.00) $0.00 ($248,300.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Bank of East Asia - 509 $0.00 $0.00 $248,300.00 ($248,300.00) $0.00 ($248,300.00) 0.00%

PMA - Bank of the Ozarks 12/2010.0000.0103.000.00.510 $0.00 $0.00 $248,500.00 ($248,500.00) $0.00 ($248,500.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Bank of the Ozarks 12/2014 - 510 $0.00 $0.00 $248,500.00 ($248,500.00) $0.00 ($248,500.00) 0.00%

PMA - United Texas Bank 12/20110.0000.0103.000.00.511 $0.00 $0.00 $248,700.00 ($248,700.00) $0.00 ($248,700.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - United Texas Bank 12/2014 - 511 $0.00 $0.00 $248,700.00 ($248,700.00) $0.00 ($248,700.00) 0.00%

PMA - Sonabank 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.512 $0.00 $0.00 $248,300.00 ($248,300.00) $0.00 ($248,300.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Sonabank 12/2014 - 512 $0.00 $0.00 $248,300.00 ($248,300.00) $0.00 ($248,300.00) 0.00%

PMA - Pacific Alliance 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.513 $0.00 $0.00 $247,400.00 ($247,400.00) $0.00 ($247,400.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Pacific Alliance 12/2014 - 513 $0.00 $0.00 $247,400.00 ($247,400.00) $0.00 ($247,400.00) 0.00%

PMA - Pulaski Bank 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.514 $0.00 $0.00 $247,400.00 ($247,400.00) $0.00 ($247,400.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Pulaski Bank 12/2014 - 514 $0.00 $0.00 $247,400.00 ($247,400.00) $0.00 ($247,400.00) 0.00%

PMA - Bank of New England 12/210.0000.0103.000.00.515 $0.00 $0.00 $248,500.00 ($248,500.00) $0.00 ($248,500.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Bank of New England 12/2014 - 515 $0.00 $0.00 $248,500.00 ($248,500.00) $0.00 ($248,500.00) 0.00%

PMA - Premier Bank, Na 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.516 $0.00 $0.00 $248,500.00 ($248,500.00) $0.00 ($248,500.00) 0.00%

Kenilworth School District 38

Account Number

Cash and Investments 2/1/2016From Date:

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

2/29/2016To Date:

GL Budget Range To Date YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Balance % Bud

Print accounts with zero balanceInclude pre encumbrance

Description

Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date RangeSubtotal by Collapse Mask

Exclude Inactive Accounts with zero balance

Printed: 03/12/2016 11:20:46 AM rptGLGenRptReport: 2016.1.06 Page: 1



SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Premier Bank, Na 12/2014 - 516 $0.00 $0.00 $248,500.00 ($248,500.00) $0.00 ($248,500.00) 0.00%

PMA - Bank 7 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.517 $0.00 $0.00 $248,600.00 ($248,600.00) $0.00 ($248,600.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Bank 7 12/2014 - 517 $0.00 $0.00 $248,600.00 ($248,600.00) $0.00 ($248,600.00) 0.00%

PMA - Bofi Federal Bank 12/20110.0000.0103.000.00.518 $0.00 $0.00 $248,700.00 ($248,700.00) $0.00 ($248,700.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Bofi Federal Bank 12/2014 - 518 $0.00 $0.00 $248,700.00 ($248,700.00) $0.00 ($248,700.00) 0.00%

PMA - Rockford B&TC 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.519 $0.00 $0.00 $248,700.00 ($248,700.00) $0.00 ($248,700.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Rockford B&TC 12/2014 - 519 $0.00 $0.00 $248,700.00 ($248,700.00) $0.00 ($248,700.00) 0.00%

PMA - Goldman Sachs Bank Certi10.0000.0103.000.00.520 $0.00 $0.00 $249,305.26 ($249,305.26) $0.00 ($249,305.26) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Goldman Sachs Bank Certificate of Deposit
- 520

$0.00 $0.00 $249,305.26 ($249,305.26) $0.00 ($249,305.26) 0.00%

PMA - Safra National Bank Cert10.0000.0103.000.00.521 $0.00 $0.00 $249,681.09 ($249,681.09) $0.00 ($249,681.09) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Safra National Bank Certificate of Deposit -
521

$0.00 $0.00 $249,681.09 ($249,681.09) $0.00 ($249,681.09) 0.00%

PMA - First Niagra Bank Certif10.0000.0103.000.00.522 $0.00 $0.00 $249,741.50 ($249,741.50) $0.00 ($249,741.50) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - First Niagra Bank Certificate of Deposit -
522

$0.00 $0.00 $249,741.50 ($249,741.50) $0.00 ($249,741.50) 0.00%

PMA - Washtenaw Cnty Mi Ltd Go10.0000.0103.000.00.523 $0.00 $0.00 $101,430.00 ($101,430.00) $0.00 ($101,430.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Washtenaw Cnty Mi Ltd Go 12/2015 - 523 $0.00 $0.00 $101,430.00 ($101,430.00) $0.00 ($101,430.00) 0.00%

PMA - Erie Cnty Ny Revenue 12/70.0000.0103.000.00.524 $0.00 $0.00 $101,710.00 ($101,710.00) $0.00 ($101,710.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Erie Cnty Ny Revenue 12/2015 - 524 $0.00 $0.00 $101,710.00 ($101,710.00) $0.00 ($101,710.00) 0.00%

PMA - Harris City Texas Ltd Go70.0000.0103.000.00.525 $0.00 $0.00 $103,410.00 ($103,410.00) $0.00 ($103,410.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Harris City Texas Ltd Go 12/2015 - 525 $0.00 $0.00 $103,410.00 ($103,410.00) $0.00 ($103,410.00) 0.00%

PMA - Glendale Az Ltd Go 12/2070.0000.0103.000.00.526 $0.00 $0.00 $104,740.00 ($104,740.00) $0.00 ($104,740.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Glendale Az Ltd Go 12/2015 - 526 $0.00 $0.00 $104,740.00 ($104,740.00) $0.00 ($104,740.00) 0.00%

PMA - Miami-Dade Cnty Fl Utl G70.0000.0103.000.00.527 $0.00 $0.00 $116,457.00 ($116,457.00) $0.00 ($116,457.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Miami-Dade Cnty Fl Utl Go 12/2015 - 527 $0.00 $0.00 $116,457.00 ($116,457.00) $0.00 ($116,457.00) 0.00%

PMA - Clark Cnty Nv Ltd Go 12/70.0000.0103.000.00.528 $0.00 $0.00 $69,023.50 ($69,023.50) $0.00 ($69,023.50) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Clark Cnty Nv Ltd Go 12/2015 - 528 $0.00 $0.00 $69,023.50 ($69,023.50) $0.00 ($69,023.50) 0.00%

PMA - Cook Kane Lake & McHenry70.0000.0103.000.00.529 $0.00 $0.00 $90,202.00 ($90,202.00) $0.00 ($90,202.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Cook Kane Lake & McHenry Cnty 12/2015
- 529

$0.00 $0.00 $90,202.00 ($90,202.00) $0.00 ($90,202.00) 0.00%

PMA - Outgamie Cnty Wi Ult Go 70.0000.0103.000.00.530 $0.00 $0.00 $136,971.00 ($136,971.00) $0.00 ($136,971.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Outgamie Cnty Wi Ult Go 12/2015 - 530 $0.00 $0.00 $136,971.00 ($136,971.00) $0.00 ($136,971.00) 0.00%

PMA - West Des Moines Ia Ult G70.0000.0103.000.00.531 $0.00 $0.00 $104,070.00 ($104,070.00) $0.00 ($104,070.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - West Des Moines Ia Ult Go 12/2015 - 531 $0.00 $0.00 $104,070.00 ($104,070.00) $0.00 ($104,070.00) 0.00%

PMA - Schertz/Seguin Tx Govt C70.0000.0103.000.00.532 $0.00 $0.00 $78,810.00 ($78,810.00) $0.00 ($78,810.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Schertz/Seguin Tx Govt Contract Revs
12/2015 - 532

$0.00 $0.00 $78,810.00 ($78,810.00) $0.00 ($78,810.00) 0.00%

PMA - Hamilton Cnty In Ltd Go 70.0000.0103.000.00.533 $0.00 $0.00 $100,140.00 ($100,140.00) $0.00 ($100,140.00) 0.00%

Kenilworth School District 38

Account Number

Cash and Investments 2/1/2016From Date:

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

2/29/2016To Date:

GL Budget Range To Date YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Balance % Bud

Print accounts with zero balanceInclude pre encumbrance

Description

Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date RangeSubtotal by Collapse Mask

Exclude Inactive Accounts with zero balance

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Hamilton Cnty In Ltd Go 12/2015 - 533 $0.00 $0.00 $100,140.00 ($100,140.00) $0.00 ($100,140.00) 0.00%

Printed: 03/12/2016 11:20:46 AM rptGLGenRptReport: 2016.1.06 Page: 2



SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Hamilton Cnty In Ltd Go 12/2015 - 533 $0.00 $0.00 $100,140.00 ($100,140.00) $0.00 ($100,140.00) 0.00%

PMA - King City Wa Ult Go 12/270.0000.0103.000.00.534 $0.00 $0.00 $119,311.50 ($119,311.50) $0.00 ($119,311.50) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - King City Wa Ult Go 12/2015 - 534 $0.00 $0.00 $119,311.50 ($119,311.50) $0.00 ($119,311.50) 0.00%

PMA - New York City Transition70.0000.0103.000.00.535 $0.00 $0.00 $147,826.00 ($147,826.00) $0.00 ($147,826.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - New York City Transitional Revs 12/2015 -
535

$0.00 $0.00 $147,826.00 ($147,826.00) $0.00 ($147,826.00) 0.00%

PMA - Evanston, Il Ult Go 12/270.0000.0103.000.00.536 $0.00 $0.00 $74,497.50 ($74,497.50) $0.00 ($74,497.50) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Evanston, Il Ult Go 12/2015 - 536 $0.00 $0.00 $74,497.50 ($74,497.50) $0.00 ($74,497.50) 0.00%

PMA - South Huntington Ny Sd U70.0000.0103.000.00.537 $0.00 $0.00 $49,815.00 ($49,815.00) $0.00 ($49,815.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - South Huntington Ny Sd Ult Go 12/2015 -
537

$0.00 $0.00 $49,815.00 ($49,815.00) $0.00 ($49,815.00) 0.00%

PMA - Clark Cnty Nv Go Ltd 12/70.0000.0103.000.00.538 $0.00 $0.00 $20,752.00 ($20,752.00) $0.00 ($20,752.00) 0.00%

SUB ACCOUNT:  PMA - Clark Cnty Nv Go Ltd 12/2015 - 538 $0.00 $0.00 $20,752.00 ($20,752.00) $0.00 ($20,752.00) 0.00%

FUNCTION:  UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENTS - 0103 $0.00 $2,101.22 $11,966,000.63 ($11,966,000.63) $0.00 ($11,966,000.63) 0.00%

End of Report

$0.00 $1,330,498.80 $17,644,343.66 ($17,644,343.66) $0.00 ($17,644,343.66)Grand Total: 0.00%

Kenilworth School District 38

Account Number

Cash and Investments 2/1/2016From Date:

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

2/29/2016To Date:

GL Budget Range To Date YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Balance % Bud

Print accounts with zero balanceInclude pre encumbrance

Description

Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date RangeSubtotal by Collapse Mask

Exclude Inactive Accounts with zero balance

Printed: 03/12/2016 11:20:46 AM rptGLGenRptReport: 2016.1.06 Page: 3

leroy
Highlight

leroy
Highlight



KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38 
 

Kenilworth District No. 38      542 Abbotsford Road     Kenilworth, Illinois 60043     Phone 847-256-5006     Fax 847-256-4418     

www.kenilworth38.org 

 

 

 
 

Investment Certification Statement 
 

 
 
All investments listed with PMA (ISDLAF) comply with the Kenilworth School District No. 38 
Investment Policy. 
 
       
 
 
            

Dr. Crystal LeRoy 
Superintendent/Chief School Business Official 
Kenilworth School District # 38 

 
March 14, 2016   
Date 

 



PMA - Liquid General Fund10.0000.0103.000.00.501 $0.00 $1,057.78 $4,206,930.68 ($4,206,930.68) $0.00 ($4,206,930.68) 0.00%

PMA - Max General Fund10.0000.0103.000.00.502 $0.00 $241.95 $2,501,125.38 ($2,501,125.38) $0.00 ($2,501,125.38) 0.00%

PMA - Capital Bank NA 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.508 $0.00 $0.00 $248,100.00 ($248,100.00) $0.00 ($248,100.00) 0.00%

PMA - Bank of East Asia10.0000.0103.000.00.509 $0.00 $0.00 $248,300.00 ($248,300.00) $0.00 ($248,300.00) 0.00%

PMA - Bank of the Ozarks 12/2010.0000.0103.000.00.510 $0.00 $0.00 $248,500.00 ($248,500.00) $0.00 ($248,500.00) 0.00%

PMA - United Texas Bank 12/20110.0000.0103.000.00.511 $0.00 $0.00 $248,700.00 ($248,700.00) $0.00 ($248,700.00) 0.00%

PMA - Sonabank 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.512 $0.00 $0.00 $248,300.00 ($248,300.00) $0.00 ($248,300.00) 0.00%

PMA - Pacific Alliance 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.513 $0.00 $0.00 $247,400.00 ($247,400.00) $0.00 ($247,400.00) 0.00%

PMA - Pulaski Bank 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.514 $0.00 $0.00 $247,400.00 ($247,400.00) $0.00 ($247,400.00) 0.00%

PMA - Bank of New England 12/210.0000.0103.000.00.515 $0.00 $0.00 $248,500.00 ($248,500.00) $0.00 ($248,500.00) 0.00%

PMA - Premier Bank, Na 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.516 $0.00 $0.00 $248,500.00 ($248,500.00) $0.00 ($248,500.00) 0.00%

PMA - Bank 7 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.517 $0.00 $0.00 $248,600.00 ($248,600.00) $0.00 ($248,600.00) 0.00%

PMA - Bofi Federal Bank 12/20110.0000.0103.000.00.518 $0.00 $0.00 $248,700.00 ($248,700.00) $0.00 ($248,700.00) 0.00%

PMA - Rockford B&TC 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.519 $0.00 $0.00 $248,700.00 ($248,700.00) $0.00 ($248,700.00) 0.00%

PMA - Goldman Sachs Bank Certi10.0000.0103.000.00.520 $0.00 $0.00 $249,305.26 ($249,305.26) $0.00 ($249,305.26) 0.00%

PMA - Safra National Bank Cert10.0000.0103.000.00.521 $0.00 $0.00 $249,681.09 ($249,681.09) $0.00 ($249,681.09) 0.00%

PMA - First Niagra Bank Certif10.0000.0103.000.00.522 $0.00 $0.00 $249,741.50 ($249,741.50) $0.00 ($249,741.50) 0.00%

PMA - Washtenaw Cnty Mi Ltd Go10.0000.0103.000.00.523 $0.00 $0.00 $101,430.00 ($101,430.00) $0.00 ($101,430.00) 0.00%

PMA - Liquid General Fund70.0000.0103.000.00.501 $0.00 $8,250.00 $8,250.00 ($8,250.00) $0.00 ($8,250.00) 0.00%

PMA - Erie Cnty Ny Revenue 12/70.0000.0103.000.00.524 $0.00 $0.00 $101,710.00 ($101,710.00) $0.00 ($101,710.00) 0.00%

PMA - Harris City Texas Ltd Go70.0000.0103.000.00.525 $0.00 $0.00 $103,410.00 ($103,410.00) $0.00 ($103,410.00) 0.00%

PMA - Glendale Az Ltd Go 12/2070.0000.0103.000.00.526 $0.00 $0.00 $104,740.00 ($104,740.00) $0.00 ($104,740.00) 0.00%

PMA - Miami-Dade Cnty Fl Utl G70.0000.0103.000.00.527 $0.00 $0.00 $116,457.00 ($116,457.00) $0.00 ($116,457.00) 0.00%

PMA - Clark Cnty Nv Ltd Go 12/70.0000.0103.000.00.528 $0.00 $0.00 $69,023.50 ($69,023.50) $0.00 ($69,023.50) 0.00%

PMA - Cook Kane Lake & McHenry70.0000.0103.000.00.529 $0.00 $0.00 $90,202.00 ($90,202.00) $0.00 ($90,202.00) 0.00%

PMA - Outgamie Cnty Wi Ult Go 70.0000.0103.000.00.530 $0.00 $0.00 $136,971.00 ($136,971.00) $0.00 ($136,971.00) 0.00%

PMA - West Des Moines Ia Ult G70.0000.0103.000.00.531 $0.00 $0.00 $104,070.00 ($104,070.00) $0.00 ($104,070.00) 0.00%

PMA - Schertz/Seguin Tx Govt C70.0000.0103.000.00.532 $0.00 $0.00 $78,810.00 ($78,810.00) $0.00 ($78,810.00) 0.00%

PMA - Hamilton Cnty In Ltd Go 70.0000.0103.000.00.533 $0.00 $0.00 $100,140.00 ($100,140.00) $0.00 ($100,140.00) 0.00%

PMA - King City Wa Ult Go 12/270.0000.0103.000.00.534 $0.00 $0.00 $119,311.50 ($119,311.50) $0.00 ($119,311.50) 0.00%

PMA - New York City Transition70.0000.0103.000.00.535 $0.00 $0.00 $147,826.00 ($147,826.00) $0.00 ($147,826.00) 0.00%

PMA - Evanston, Il Ult Go 12/270.0000.0103.000.00.536 $0.00 $0.00 $74,497.50 ($74,497.50) $0.00 ($74,497.50) 0.00%

PMA - South Huntington Ny Sd U70.0000.0103.000.00.537 $0.00 $0.00 $49,815.00 ($49,815.00) $0.00 ($49,815.00) 0.00%

PMA - Clark Cnty Nv Go Ltd 12/70.0000.0103.000.00.538 $0.00 $0.00 $20,752.00 ($20,752.00) $0.00 ($20,752.00) 0.00%

End of Report

$0.00 $9,549.73 $11,963,899.41 ($11,963,899.41) $0.00 ($11,963,899.41)Grand Total: 0.00%

Kenilworth School District 38

Account Number

Investment Balances 1/1/2016From Date:

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1/31/2016To Date:

GL Budget Range To Date YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Balance % Bud

Print accounts with zero balanceInclude pre encumbrance

Description

Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date RangeSubtotal by Collapse Mask

Exclude Inactive Accounts with zero balance

Printed: 03/11/2016 6:45:34 PM rptGLGenRptReport: 2016.1.06 Page: 1



KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38 
 

Kenilworth District No. 38      542 Abbotsford Road     Kenilworth, Illinois 60043     Phone 847-256-5006     Fax 847-256-4418     

www.kenilworth38.org 

 

 

 
 

Investment Certification Statement 
 

 
 
All investments listed with PMA (ISDLAF) comply with the Kenilworth School District No. 38 
Investment Policy. 
 
       
 
 
            

Dr. Crystal LeRoy 
Superintendent/Chief School Business Official 
Kenilworth School District # 38 

 
Mach 14, 2016   
Date 

 



PMA - Liquid General Fund10.0000.0103.000.00.501 $0.00 $302.38 $4,207,233.06 ($4,207,233.06) $0.00 ($4,207,233.06) 0.00%

PMA - Max General Fund10.0000.0103.000.00.502 $0.00 $298.84 $2,501,424.22 ($2,501,424.22) $0.00 ($2,501,424.22) 0.00%

PMA - Capital Bank NA 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.508 $0.00 $0.00 $248,100.00 ($248,100.00) $0.00 ($248,100.00) 0.00%

PMA - Bank of East Asia10.0000.0103.000.00.509 $0.00 $0.00 $248,300.00 ($248,300.00) $0.00 ($248,300.00) 0.00%

PMA - Bank of the Ozarks 12/2010.0000.0103.000.00.510 $0.00 $0.00 $248,500.00 ($248,500.00) $0.00 ($248,500.00) 0.00%

PMA - United Texas Bank 12/20110.0000.0103.000.00.511 $0.00 $0.00 $248,700.00 ($248,700.00) $0.00 ($248,700.00) 0.00%

PMA - Sonabank 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.512 $0.00 $0.00 $248,300.00 ($248,300.00) $0.00 ($248,300.00) 0.00%

PMA - Pacific Alliance 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.513 $0.00 $0.00 $247,400.00 ($247,400.00) $0.00 ($247,400.00) 0.00%

PMA - Pulaski Bank 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.514 $0.00 $0.00 $247,400.00 ($247,400.00) $0.00 ($247,400.00) 0.00%

PMA - Bank of New England 12/210.0000.0103.000.00.515 $0.00 $0.00 $248,500.00 ($248,500.00) $0.00 ($248,500.00) 0.00%

PMA - Premier Bank, Na 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.516 $0.00 $0.00 $248,500.00 ($248,500.00) $0.00 ($248,500.00) 0.00%

PMA - Bank 7 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.517 $0.00 $0.00 $248,600.00 ($248,600.00) $0.00 ($248,600.00) 0.00%

PMA - Bofi Federal Bank 12/20110.0000.0103.000.00.518 $0.00 $0.00 $248,700.00 ($248,700.00) $0.00 ($248,700.00) 0.00%

PMA - Rockford B&TC 12/201410.0000.0103.000.00.519 $0.00 $0.00 $248,700.00 ($248,700.00) $0.00 ($248,700.00) 0.00%

PMA - Goldman Sachs Bank Certi10.0000.0103.000.00.520 $0.00 $0.00 $249,305.26 ($249,305.26) $0.00 ($249,305.26) 0.00%

PMA - Safra National Bank Cert10.0000.0103.000.00.521 $0.00 $0.00 $249,681.09 ($249,681.09) $0.00 ($249,681.09) 0.00%

PMA - First Niagra Bank Certif10.0000.0103.000.00.522 $0.00 $0.00 $249,741.50 ($249,741.50) $0.00 ($249,741.50) 0.00%

PMA - Washtenaw Cnty Mi Ltd Go10.0000.0103.000.00.523 $0.00 $0.00 $101,430.00 ($101,430.00) $0.00 ($101,430.00) 0.00%

PMA - Liquid General Fund70.0000.0103.000.00.501 $0.00 $1,500.00 $9,750.00 ($9,750.00) $0.00 ($9,750.00) 0.00%

PMA - Erie Cnty Ny Revenue 12/70.0000.0103.000.00.524 $0.00 $0.00 $101,710.00 ($101,710.00) $0.00 ($101,710.00) 0.00%

PMA - Harris City Texas Ltd Go70.0000.0103.000.00.525 $0.00 $0.00 $103,410.00 ($103,410.00) $0.00 ($103,410.00) 0.00%

PMA - Glendale Az Ltd Go 12/2070.0000.0103.000.00.526 $0.00 $0.00 $104,740.00 ($104,740.00) $0.00 ($104,740.00) 0.00%

PMA - Miami-Dade Cnty Fl Utl G70.0000.0103.000.00.527 $0.00 $0.00 $116,457.00 ($116,457.00) $0.00 ($116,457.00) 0.00%

PMA - Clark Cnty Nv Ltd Go 12/70.0000.0103.000.00.528 $0.00 $0.00 $69,023.50 ($69,023.50) $0.00 ($69,023.50) 0.00%

PMA - Cook Kane Lake & McHenry70.0000.0103.000.00.529 $0.00 $0.00 $90,202.00 ($90,202.00) $0.00 ($90,202.00) 0.00%

PMA - Outgamie Cnty Wi Ult Go 70.0000.0103.000.00.530 $0.00 $0.00 $136,971.00 ($136,971.00) $0.00 ($136,971.00) 0.00%

PMA - West Des Moines Ia Ult G70.0000.0103.000.00.531 $0.00 $0.00 $104,070.00 ($104,070.00) $0.00 ($104,070.00) 0.00%

PMA - Schertz/Seguin Tx Govt C70.0000.0103.000.00.532 $0.00 $0.00 $78,810.00 ($78,810.00) $0.00 ($78,810.00) 0.00%

PMA - Hamilton Cnty In Ltd Go 70.0000.0103.000.00.533 $0.00 $0.00 $100,140.00 ($100,140.00) $0.00 ($100,140.00) 0.00%

PMA - King City Wa Ult Go 12/270.0000.0103.000.00.534 $0.00 $0.00 $119,311.50 ($119,311.50) $0.00 ($119,311.50) 0.00%

PMA - New York City Transition70.0000.0103.000.00.535 $0.00 $0.00 $147,826.00 ($147,826.00) $0.00 ($147,826.00) 0.00%

PMA - Evanston, Il Ult Go 12/270.0000.0103.000.00.536 $0.00 $0.00 $74,497.50 ($74,497.50) $0.00 ($74,497.50) 0.00%

PMA - South Huntington Ny Sd U70.0000.0103.000.00.537 $0.00 $0.00 $49,815.00 ($49,815.00) $0.00 ($49,815.00) 0.00%

PMA - Clark Cnty Nv Go Ltd 12/70.0000.0103.000.00.538 $0.00 $0.00 $20,752.00 ($20,752.00) $0.00 ($20,752.00) 0.00%

End of Report

$0.00 $2,101.22 $11,966,000.63 ($11,966,000.63) $0.00 ($11,966,000.63)Grand Total: 0.00%

Kenilworth School District 38

Account Number

Investment Balances 2/1/2016From Date:

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

2/29/2016To Date:

GL Budget Range To Date YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Balance % Bud

Print accounts with zero balanceInclude pre encumbrance

Description

Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date RangeSubtotal by Collapse Mask

Exclude Inactive Accounts with zero balance

Printed: 03/11/2016 6:40:24 PM rptGLGenRptReport: 2016.1.06 Page: 1



Summary Accounts Payable February 5th to March 14th 2016

10.  Educational Fund Accounts Payable $4,124,255.95

20. Operations & Maint Fund Accounts Payable $45,831.75

30.  Bond & Interest Fund Accounts Payable $0.00

40.  Transportation Fund Accounts Payable $6,791.63

50.  Municipal Retirement Fund $0.00

60. Site & Construction Accounts Payable $0.00

70.  Working Cash Fund Transfer of Interest $0.00

80. Tort Fund Accounts Payable $0.00

90.  Life Safety Fund Accounts Payable $0.00

Total A/P Disbursements $4,176,879.33

A/P Check Numbers 133460-133552
Void Check Numbers 133458-133459

10. Educational Fund Payroll $678,097.03

20. Operations & Maint Fund Payroll $9,768.17

50.  Municipal Retirement Fund Payroll $8,210.75

Total Payroll Disbursements $696,075.95

Total Cash Disbursements $4,872,955.28

Submitted by: Trish Culhane
Approved by:

Date:3/04/16 _________________________________



303 Transportation THREE

Check Group:

Student Transportation 0 12/1-12/18/16 40.0000.2550.331.00.000 $315.001

Student Transportation2/24/2016

Student Transportation/1/4-1/29/16 0 2000201447 40.0000.2550.331.00.000 $399.001

Student Transportation3/2/2016

Check #: 133460

$714.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$714.00Vendor Total:

ABM Janitorial Midwest ABM

Check Group:

ABM-Custodial Labor 0 9066870 20.0000.2540.322.00.000 $6,123.281

ABM-Custodial Labor2/3/2016

ABM-Custodial Labor 0 9066878 20.0000.2540.322.00.000 $7,057.001

ABM-Custodial Labor2/3/2016

ABM-Custodial Labor/Snow Removal 0 V278105 20.0000.2540.322.00.000 $143.101

ABM-Custodial Labor2/25/2016

Check #: 133461

$13,323.38PO/InvoiceTotal:

$13,323.38Vendor Total:

ADVANCED DISPOSAL-NORTHBROOK- T4 ADVDISPO
S

Check Group:

Garbage Disposal 0 T40001828483 20.0000.2540.467.00.000 $1,100.001

Garbage Disposal2/9/2016

Check #: 133462

$1,100.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$1,100.00Vendor Total:

Alarm Detection Systems I ALARMDE
TEC

Check Group:

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 1



Care and Upkeep - EquipPanic Button Zone 14 0 SI-427628 20.0000.2544.310.00.000 $440.601

Care and Upkeep - Equip2/25/2016

Check #: 133463

$440.60PO/InvoiceTotal:

$440.60Vendor Total:

All Covered ALLCOVER
ED

Check Group:

All Covered 0 709886 10.0000.2225.300.02.000 $4,379.001

All Covered2/9/2016

Check #: 133464

$4,379.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$4,379.00Vendor Total:

Amazon/GE Money Bank AMAZONC
OM

Check Group:

General Supplies 0 234834158263 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 $62.531

General Supplies2/21/2016

Check #: 133465

$62.53PO/InvoiceTotal:

$62.53Vendor Total:

Angela Lascola LASCOLA

Check Group:

Professional Growth/Licensure Workshop 0 3/9/16 10.0000.2330.300.00.000 $15.001

Professional Growth2/24/2016

Check #: 133466

$15.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$15.00Vendor Total:

AT&T ATTCAROL
S

Check Group:

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 2



Communication 0 12/29-01/28 20.0000.2540.340.00.000 $593.361

Communication2/21/2016

Communication 0 9822470300 20.0000.2540.340.00.000 $876.691

Communication2/24/2016

Check #: 133467

$1,470.05PO/InvoiceTotal:

$1,470.05Vendor Total:

AT&T GA ATTGA

Check Group:

Communication 0 01/27/16 20.0000.2540.340.00.000 $23.221

Communication3/14/2016

Check #: 133468

$23.22PO/InvoiceTotal:

$23.22Vendor Total:

Benefit Advantage.

Check Group:

403B Administrative Services 0 395286 10.0000.2520.311.01.000 $200.001

403B Administrative Services2/21/2016

Check #: 133469

$200.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$200.00Vendor Total:

Blick's BLICK

Check Group:

Art Supplies 0 5690312 10.0000.1120.410.01.000 $680.721

Art Supplies2/29/2016

Check #: 133470

$680.72PO/InvoiceTotal:

$680.72Vendor Total:

Bob's Dairy Service BOBSDAIR
Y

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 3



Check Group:

Lunch Milk Expense 0 197053 10.0000.2560.490.01.000 $190.461

Lunch Milk Expense2/24/2016

Lunch Milk Expense 0 197283 10.0000.2560.490.01.000 $190.461

Lunch Milk Expense2/24/2016

Lunch Milk Expense 0 197545 10.0000.2560.490.01.000 $127.971

Lunch Milk Expense2/24/2016

Lunch Milk Expense 0 197684 10.0000.2560.490.01.000 $190.461

Lunch Milk Expense2/24/2016

Lunch Milk Expense 0 197907 10.0000.2560.490.01.000 $190.461

Lunch Milk Expense2/29/2016

Check #: 133471

$889.81PO/InvoiceTotal:

$889.81Vendor Total:

Book Stall BOOKSTA
LL

Check Group:

Library Books 0 127268 10.0000.1110.410.05.000 $78.321

5th Grade Supplies2/3/2016

Library Books 0 127894 10.0000.2220.430.00.000 $39.961

Library Books2/24/2016

Library Books 0 129790 10.0000.2220.430.00.000 $76.801

Library Books2/26/2016

Check #: 133472

$195.08PO/InvoiceTotal:

$195.08Vendor Total:

CAMCOR, INC. CAMCORI
NC

Check Group:

Tech Repair & Maintenance 0 2382302 10.0000.2225.323.00.000 $1,199.001

Tech Repair & Maintenance3/2/2016

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 4



Check #: 133473

$1,199.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$1,199.00Vendor Total:

CDW Government, Inc CDW

Check Group:

Tech Material & Supplies 0 BTJ0022 10.0000.2225.400.00.000 $187.001

Tech Material & Supplies2/2/2016

JSSPVA Purchased Services Maker Space 0 BTL3744 10.0000.1110.300.01.000 $201.931

JSSPVA Purchased Services2/2/2016

Tech Material & Supplies 0 BTL4087 10.0000.2225.400.00.000 $201.931

Tech Material & Supplies2/2/2016

Tech Repair & Maintenance 0 CBF6613 10.0000.2225.323.00.000 $281.001

Tech Repair & Maintenance2/25/2016

Check #: 133474

$871.86PO/InvoiceTotal:

$871.86Vendor Total:

CHICAGO TRIBUNE SUBSCRIPN CHGOTRIB

Check Group:

Tribune Subscription 0 10548450payto5/
8/16

10.0000.2220.440.00.000 $63.921

Library Periodicals2/25/2016

Check #: 133475

$63.92PO/InvoiceTotal:

$63.92Vendor Total:

Comcast COMCAST

Check Group:

Comcast Network 0 40660126 10.0000.2225.300.01.000 $2,990.001

Comcast Network2/9/2016

Check #: 133476

$2,990.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 5



$2,990.00Vendor Total:

Committee For Children COMMITTE
E

Check Group:

Inservice Materials 0 265843 10.0000.2210.410.00.000 $999.001

Inservice Materials2/2/2016

Check #: 133477

$999.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$999.00Vendor Total:

Computer Drive COMPUTE
RDR

Check Group:

Tech Repair & Maintenance 0 226959 10.0000.2225.323.00.000 $2,631.001

Tech Repair & Maintenance3/14/2016

Check #: 133478

$2,631.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$2,631.00Vendor Total:

CORNER BAKERY CORNERB
AKE

Check Group:

Lunch Expense 0 11006266030125 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $57.581

Lunch Expense2/9/2016

Dinner P/T Conferences 0 11007246050125 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $1,292.301

Lunch Expense2/24/2016

Lunch Expense 0 11007656060125 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $52.681

Lunch Expense2/3/2016

Lunch Expense 0 11007806060125 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $56.121

Lunch Expense2/4/2016

Lunch Expense 0 11007856060125 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $59.631

Lunch Expense2/9/2016

Lunch Expense/Pera Mtg 0 11008926090125 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $173.001

Lunch Expense3/2/2016

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 6



Check #: 133479

$1,691.31PO/InvoiceTotal:

$1,691.31Vendor Total:

DALE LUKSHA LUKSHA

Check Group:

Health Insurance Board Portion 0 PB01110133 10.0000.2410.220.00.000 $860.001

Health Insurancee Board Portion2/26/2016

Check #: 133480

$860.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$860.00Vendor Total:

Delta School Specialty DELTA

Check Group:

Science Supplies 0 202501276955 10.0000.1110.410.10.000 $12,621.191

Science Supplies2/9/2016

Science Supplies 0 202501277817 10.0000.1110.410.10.000 $2,396.951

Science Supplies2/8/2016

Science Supplies 0 202501279386 10.0000.1110.410.10.000 $1,046.521

Science Supplies2/24/2016

Science Supplies 0 202501279648 10.0000.1110.410.10.000 $4,041.361

Science Supplies2/21/2016

Science Supplies 0 202501279975 10.0000.1120.410.09.000 $225.951

Science Supplies2/21/2016

Check #: 133481

$20,331.97PO/InvoiceTotal:

$20,331.97Vendor Total:

Demco DEMCO

Check Group:

Library General Supplies 0 5806124 10.0000.2220.410.00.000 $223.601

Library General Supplies2/25/2016

Check #: 133482

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 7



$223.60PO/InvoiceTotal:

$223.60Vendor Total:

Evanston Imprintables EVANSTO
NIM

Check Group:

Tech Material & Supplies 0 9076 10.0000.2225.400.00.000 $577.851

Tech Material & Supplies2/24/2016

Check #: 133483

$577.85PO/InvoiceTotal:

$577.85Vendor Total:

Fed Ex FEDERALE
X

Check Group:

Shipping Service 0 5-300-85133 10.0000.2410.340.00.000 $59.961

Shipping Service2/2/2016

Shipping Service 0 5-330-77437 10.0000.2410.340.00.000 $45.861

Shipping Service2/29/2016

Check #: 133484

$105.82PO/InvoiceTotal:

$105.82Vendor Total:

First Student, Inc

Check Group:

Field Trips/The Grove A. Lopuszynski 0 80150984 40.0000.2550.335.00.000 $395.001

Field Trips2/29/2016

Field Trips/ The Grove A. Lopuszynski 0 9116763 40.0000.2550.335.00.000 $395.001

Field Trips2/29/2016

Field Trips/The Grove A. Lopuszynski 0 9116864 40.0000.2550.335.00.000 $395.001

Field Trips2/29/2016

Check #: 133485

$1,185.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$1,185.00Vendor Total:

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 8



Flinn Scientific Inc FLINN

Check Group:

Science Supplies 0 1945771 10.0000.1110.410.10.000 $371.241

Science Supplies2/21/2016

Check #: 133486

$371.24PO/InvoiceTotal:

$371.24Vendor Total:

Follett School Solutions, Inc FOLLETTS
CH

Check Group:

General Supplies 0 307057F-4 10.0000.2410.410.00.000 $48.101

General Supplies2/26/2016

Library Books 0 334494-1 10.0000.2220.430.00.000 $955.101

Library Books3/2/2016

Library Books 0 799878F-5 10.0000.2220.430.00.000 $481.791

Library Books2/25/2016

Check #: 133487

$1,484.99PO/InvoiceTotal:

$1,484.99Vendor Total:

Fun and Function

Check Group:

2nd Grade Supplies 0 158382 10.0000.1110.410.02.000 $43.941

2nd Grade Supplies2/25/2016

Check #: 133488

$43.94PO/InvoiceTotal:

$43.94Vendor Total:

General Binding GBC

Check Group:

General Supplies 0 2488327 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 $570.841

General Supplies2/3/2016

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Check #: 133489

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 9



Check #: 133489

$570.84PO/InvoiceTotal:

$570.84Vendor Total:

General Technology Distributors

Check Group:

General Supplies 0 08500 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 $508.561

General Supplies3/2/2016

Check #: 133490

$508.56PO/InvoiceTotal:

$508.56Vendor Total:

Genesis Technologies GENESIS

Check Group:

Printer Ink/Toner 0 14090 10.0000.2225.400.02.000 ($220.69)1

Printer Ink/Toner3/2/2016

Printer Ink/Toner 0 538078 10.0000.2225.400.02.000 $1,109.861

Printer Ink/Toner2/8/2016

Printer Ink/Toner 0 538127 10.0000.2225.400.02.000 $282.141

Printer Ink/Toner2/8/2016

Printer Ink/Toner 0 538610 10.0000.2225.400.02.000 $391.001

Printer Ink/Toner2/24/2016

Genesis Copier supplies 0 539560 10.0000.2225.400.02.000 $214.511

Printer Ink/Toner2/21/2016

Check #: 133491

$1,776.82PO/InvoiceTotal:

$1,776.82Vendor Total:

Genesis Technologies Inc GENESIST
EC

Check Group:

Copier 0 18324603 10.0000.2410.390.00.000 $2,811.561

Copier2/23/2016

Check #: 133492

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 10



$2,811.56PO/InvoiceTotal:

$2,811.56Vendor Total:

Gordon Food Service, Inc GORDONF
OOD

Check Group:

Organic Milk Expense 0 168393436 10.0000.2560.490.04.000 $1,746.901

Organic Milk Expense2/24/2016

Check #: 133493

$1,746.90PO/InvoiceTotal:

$1,746.90Vendor Total:

Grand Food Center GRAND

Check Group:

Grand Food Center Cookies 0 03326707 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $103.141

Lunch Expense2/24/2016

Check #: 133494

$103.14PO/InvoiceTotal:

$103.14Vendor Total:

Grand Stage Company

Check Group:

Oper and Maint Supplies 0 0329415-IN 20.0000.2540.410.00.000 $191.251

Oper and Maint Supplies2/21/2016

Check #: 133495

$191.25PO/InvoiceTotal:

$191.25Vendor Total:

HARMONY WATSON WATSONH
AR

Check Group:

3rd Grade Supplies/Positive Behavior Rewards 0 12/11-2/16/16 10.0000.1110.410.03.000 $94.861

3rd Grade Supplies2/25/2016

Check #: 133496

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 11



$94.86PO/InvoiceTotal:

$94.86Vendor Total:

IEC Nextera Energy Services IECNEXTE
RA

Check Group:

Electricity 0 01242016 20.0000.2540.466.00.000 $7,626.521

Electricity2/2/2016

Electricity 0 02222016 20.0000.2540.466.00.000 $7,912.711

Electricity2/29/2016

Check #: 133497

$15,539.23PO/InvoiceTotal:

$15,539.23Vendor Total:

IXL LEARNING IXL

Check Group:

Tech Subscriptions 0 S284408 10.0000.2225.300.03.000 $129.001

Tech Subscriptions2/26/2016

Check #: 133498

$129.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$129.00Vendor Total:

J W Pepper PEPPER

Check Group:

Orchestra Materials & Supplies 0 11B55213 10.0000.1120.410.16.000 $115.001

Orchestra Materials & Supplies2/21/2016

Check #: 133499

$115.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$115.00Vendor Total:

Janet Brothers BROTHER
SJ

Check Group:

General Supplies 0 02/01/16 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 $78.101

General Supplies2/4/2016

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 12



Check #: 133500

$78.10PO/InvoiceTotal:

$78.10Vendor Total:

Jason Hahnstadt HAHNSTA
DT

Check Group:

 Phys Ed Supplies/Magazines for Health Unit  0 02/08/16 10.0000.1110.410.12.000 $24.211

Elem Phys Ed Supplies2/25/2016

Check #: 133501

$24.21PO/InvoiceTotal:

$24.21Vendor Total:

Julie Campanaro CAMPANA
R24

Check Group:

Snacks for Education Commitee 0 2/4/16 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $18.071

Lunch Expense2/24/2016

Professional Growth/Licensure Workshop 0 2/4/16 10.0000.2330.300.00.000 $15.001

Professional Growth2/24/2016

Check #: 133502

$33.07PO/InvoiceTotal:

$33.07Vendor Total:

Kenilworth School District No. 38

Check Group:

Ck # 5417 ICE Conference, Comiza & LeBris 0 03/14/16 10.0000.2330.300.00.000 $330.001

Professional Growth3/2/2016

CK # 5418 Sam's Club Ck # 5419 VOID 0 03/14/16 20.0000.2540.410.00.000 $32.061

Oper and Maint Supplies3/2/2016

CK # 5415 The Charmm'D Foundation 0 03/14/16 10.0000.2330.300.00.000 $25.001

Professional Growth3/2/2016

Ck # 5420 Patrick Fajardo 0 03/14/16 10.0000.1500.305.02.000 $50.001

Referee3/2/2016

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 13



CK # 5421 Neighbors of Kenilworth 0 03/14/16 10.0000.2330.300.00.000 $35.001

Professional Growth3/2/2016

Ck # 5422 Menards 0 03/14/16 20.0000.2540.410.00.000 $155.641

Oper and Maint Supplies3/2/2016

Ck # 5423 Patricia Culhane Convention Airfare
Reimbursement

0 03/14/16 10.0000.2330.300.00.000 $304.701

Professional Growth3/2/2016

CK # 5425 Pin Stripes Northbrook 0 03/14/16 10.0000.2330.300.00.000 $1,500.001

Professional Growth3/2/2016

Ck # 5424 Anfela Lascola Conference Airfare
Reimbursement

0 03/14/16 10.0000.2330.300.00.000 $372.961

Professional Growth3/2/2016

Ck # 5414 Office Depot W2 Envelopes 0 03/14/16 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 $101.431

General Supplies3/2/2016

Ck # 5416 Julie Campanaro 0 03/14/16 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 $489.181

General Supplies3/2/2016

Check #: 133503

$3,395.97PO/InvoiceTotal:

$3,395.97Vendor Total:

Kevin Plunkett

Check Group:

Athletic Fee / Charlie Plunkett 0 02/27/16 10.1790.0000.000.00.001 $225.001

Athletic Fees2/26/2016

Check #: 133504

$225.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$225.00Vendor Total:

LAFORCE INC LAFORCE

Check Group:

Repair and Maint Service 0 917077 RI 20.0000.2540.323.00.000 $540.001

Repair and Maint Service2/2/2016

Check #: 133505

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 14



$540.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$540.00Vendor Total:

Lakeland/Larson Elevator LAKELAND

Check Group:

Care and Upkeep - Equip 0 67946 20.0000.2544.310.00.000 $184.951

Care and Upkeep - Equip2/2/2016

Oper and Maint-Salaries 0 68155 20.0000.2540.118.00.000 $184.951

Oper and Maint-Salaries3/2/2016

Check #: 133506

$369.90PO/InvoiceTotal:

$369.90Vendor Total:

Leslie Richmond RICHMON
D

Check Group:

Math Supplies 0 02/05/16 10.0000.1120.410.00.000 $98.371

Math Supplies2/9/2016

Check #: 133507

$98.37PO/InvoiceTotal:

$98.37Vendor Total:

Lisa Lehman LEHMAN

Check Group:

Professional Growth/ILMEA Conference and Membership 0 01/27-01/30 10.0000.2330.300.00.000 $201.001

Professional Growth2/8/2016

Check #: 133508

$201.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$201.00Vendor Total:

MailFinance_MAILFINANC MAILFINAN
C

Check Group:

Postage Meter/Lease Payment 0 N5768458 10.0000.2410.390.01.000 $506.851

Postage Meter2/24/2016

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 15



Check #: 133509

$506.85PO/InvoiceTotal:

$506.85Vendor Total:

MAKEMUSIC MAKEMUSI
C

Check Group:

Elem Music Supplies 0 NS2340577 10.0000.1110.410.07.000 $140.001

Elem Music Supplies2/21/2016

Check #: 133510

$140.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$140.00Vendor Total:

Master Brew MASTERB
REW

Check Group:

Water/Soda/Coffee 0 1336911 10.0000.2410.410.04.000 $379.301

Water/Soda/Coffee2/3/2016

Check #: 133511

$379.30PO/InvoiceTotal:

$379.30Vendor Total:

Menards-Morton Grove MENARDS

Check Group:

Maintenance Supplies 0 14798 20.0000.2540.410.00.000 $89.901

Oper and Maint Supplies2/2/2016

Oper and Maint Supplies 0 15227 20.0000.2540.410.00.000 $31.741

Oper and Maint Supplies2/9/2016

Oper and Maint Supplies 0 16764 20.0000.2540.410.00.000 $174.581

Oper and Maint Supplies2/24/2016

Oper and Maint Supplies 0 17109 20.0000.2540.410.00.000 $21.841

Oper and Maint Supplies2/29/2016

Check #: 133512

$318.06PO/InvoiceTotal:

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 16



$318.06Vendor Total:

Michiana LLC DBA Marla's Lunch

Check Group:

Lunch Expense/BOE Bargaining Planning Meeting 0 2055 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $415.001

Lunch Expense2/24/2016

Lunch Expense/Institute Day Snacks 0 2056 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $60.001

Lunch Expense2/24/2016

Check #: 133513

$475.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$475.00Vendor Total:

NASSP Illinois Principals Association

Check Group:

Dues and Fees/Illinois Principal Association 0 9000743387 10.0000.2410.640.00.000 $600.001

Dues and Fees2/25/2016

Check #: 133514

$600.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$600.00Vendor Total:

No Suburban Special Education District NSSED

Check Group:

Spec Program Tuition 0 161124 10.0000.4120.600.00.000 $29,557.001

Spec Program Tuition2/21/2016

NSSED Spec Ed Tuition 0 161349 10.0000.4120.600.00.000 $229.681

Spec Program Tuition2/21/2016

Check #: 133515

$29,786.68PO/InvoiceTotal:

$29,786.68Vendor Total:

North American Paper Co. NORTHAM
ERI

Check Group:

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 17



Oper and Maint Supplies 0 7850544 20.0000.2540.410.00.000 $405.751

Oper and Maint Supplies3/2/2016

Check #: 133516

$405.75PO/InvoiceTotal:

$405.75Vendor Total:

North Shore Transit Inc.

Check Group:

Student Transportation 0 N041-RTINV1001
114

40.0000.2550.331.00.000 $4,048.381

Student Transportation2/24/2016

Check #: 133517

$4,048.38PO/InvoiceTotal:

$4,048.38Vendor Total:

North Suburban Special Ed Org NSSEO

Check Group:

Spec Ed Purchased Svc 0 8432 10.0000.1200.390.00.000 $950.001

Spec Ed Purchased Svc2/29/2016

Check #: 133518

$950.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$950.00Vendor Total:

Northern Illinois Gas NICOR

Check Group:

Natural Gas 0 1/0-2/1-16 20.0000.2540.465.00.000 $969.311

Natural Gas2/8/2016

Check #: 133519

$969.31PO/InvoiceTotal:

$969.31Vendor Total:

Office Depot OFFICEDE
PO

Check Group:

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 18



General Supplies 0 816846191002 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 $75.901

General Supplies2/3/2016

Check #: 133520

$75.90PO/InvoiceTotal:

$75.90Vendor Total:

Olson Transportation, Inc OLSON

Check Group:

Field Trip Bus 0 18617 40.0000.2550.335.00.000 $552.601

Field Trips2/2/2016

Field Trips 0 18721 40.0000.2550.335.00.000 $291.651

Field Trips2/21/2016

Check #: 133521

$844.25PO/InvoiceTotal:

$844.25Vendor Total:

Other World Computing

Check Group:

Tech Repair & Maintenance 0 SI-4815511 10.0000.2225.323.00.000 $197.941

Tech Repair & Maintenance2/26/2016

Check #: 133522

$197.94PO/InvoiceTotal:

$197.94Vendor Total:

Panera Bread/St Louis Bread Co PANERA

Check Group:

Lunch Expense 0 60063900491 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $75.991

Lunch Expense3/14/2016

Lunch Expense 0 60063900493 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $61.961

Lunch Expense2/3/2016

Dinner for BOE Meeting 2/8/16 0 60063900495 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $116.441

Lunch Expense2/24/2016

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 19



Lunch Expense 0 60063900501 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $113.041

Lunch Expense2/21/2016

Lunch Expense 0 60063900514 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $48.951

Lunch Expense3/2/2016

Check #: 133523

$416.38PO/InvoiceTotal:

$416.38Vendor Total:

Paoli Clay Company LLC PAOLICLA
Y

Check Group:

Art Supplies 0 19737 10.0000.1120.410.01.000 $239.001

Art Supplies2/21/2016

Check #: 133524

$239.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$239.00Vendor Total:

Pathway Innovations and Technologies PATHWAYI
NN

Check Group:

Science Supplies 0 27392 10.0000.1110.410.10.000 $387.081

Science Supplies3/14/2016

Check #: 133525

$387.08PO/InvoiceTotal:

$387.08Vendor Total:

Paxton/Patterson PAXTON

Check Group:

Indust Tech Supplies 0 321542 10.0000.1120.410.06.000 $815.461

Indust Tech Supplies2/25/2016

Check #: 133526

$815.46PO/InvoiceTotal:

$815.46Vendor Total:

Peapod PEAPOD

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 20



Check Group:

Home Ec Supplies 0 a74775731-20 10.0000.1120.410.07.000 $157.951

Home Ec Supplies2/9/2016

Home Ec Supplies 0 a75950958-21 10.0000.1120.410.07.000 $159.561

Home Ec Supplies2/24/2016

Home Ec Supplies 0 a76433122-22 10.0000.1120.410.07.000 $286.131

Home Ec Supplies2/24/2016

Home Ec Supplies/Peapod Order 0 A76930212-23 10.0000.1120.410.07.000 $143.101

Home Ec Supplies2/29/2016

Check #: 133527

$746.74PO/InvoiceTotal:

$746.74Vendor Total:

Phonak, LLC

Check Group:

Tech Repair & Maintenance 0 5153179105 10.0000.2225.323.00.000 $157.391

Tech Repair & Maintenance2/26/2016

Check #: 133528

$157.39PO/InvoiceTotal:

$157.39Vendor Total:

Piero's Pizza PIEROS

Check Group:

Tech Night Pizza 0 195287 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $267.201

Lunch Expense2/26/2016

Lunch Expense 0 195390 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $46.001

Lunch Expense3/2/2016

Lunch Expense 0 277046 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $103.001

Lunch Expense2/2/2016

Parent Teacher Conferences 0 277360 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $562.001

Lunch Expense2/29/2016

Check #: 133529

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 21



Check Group: 03/14/16

Training Lunch 0 552293 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $42.661

Lunch Expense2/29/2016

Check #: 133530

Check Group:

Lunch Expense 0 552416 10.0000.2560.490.00.000 $48.001

Lunch Expense2/29/2016

Check #: 133529

$1,068.86PO/InvoiceTotal:

$1,068.86Vendor Total:

QUILL.COM QUILLCOM

Check Group:

General Supplies 0 2654596 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 $37.771

General Supplies2/2/2016

General Supplies 0 2727589 10.0000.2410.410.00.000 $37.231

General Supplies2/2/2016

Supplies 0 2967582 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 $38.221

General Supplies2/24/2016

General Supplies 0 3012572 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 $8.821

General Supplies2/24/2016

General Supplies 0 3014441 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 $424.151

General Supplies2/24/2016

General Supplies 0 3014520 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 $30.581

General Supplies2/24/2016

General Supplies 0 3015553 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 $15.291

General Supplies2/24/2016

General Supplies 0 330363 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 ($37.77)1

General Supplies2/24/2016

General Supplies 0 3583570 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 $365.921

General Supplies3/2/2016

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 22



Paper Supplies 0 3583570 10.0000.2410.410.02.000 $1,276.001

Paper Supplies3/2/2016

Check #: 133531

$2,196.21PO/InvoiceTotal:

$2,196.21Vendor Total:

Quinlan & Fabish Music QUINLAN

Check Group:

Elem Music Supplies 0 8845095 10.0000.1110.410.07.000 $60.301

Elem Music Supplies2/25/2016

Check #: 133532

$60.30PO/InvoiceTotal:

$60.30Vendor Total:

Rainbow Book Company RAINBOW

Check Group:

Library Books 0 0118985 10.0000.2220.430.00.000 $3,248.141

Library Books2/25/2016

Check #: 133533

$3,248.14PO/InvoiceTotal:

$3,248.14Vendor Total:

Raymond Geddes GEDDES

Check Group:

Library 0 563466 10.0000.2222.430.90.000 $344.761

State Library Grant Books2/21/2016

Check #: 133534

$344.76PO/InvoiceTotal:

$344.76Vendor Total:

Robbins,Schwartz,Nicholas ROBBIN

Check Group:

Board Legal Service 0 266357 10.0000.2310.318.00.000 $3,782.501

Board Legal Service3/2/2016

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 23



Check #: 133535

$3,782.50PO/InvoiceTotal:

$3,782.50Vendor Total:

ROSE PEST SOLUTIONS ROSEPES
T

Check Group:

Repair and Maint Service/Pest Control 0 1741741 20.0000.2540.323.00.000 $93.001

Repair and Maint Service2/21/2016

Check #: 133536

$93.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$93.00Vendor Total:

Savocchi Glass Co, Inc SAVOCCHI

Check Group:

Oper and Maint Supplies/Glass 0 18472 20.0000.2540.410.00.000 $165.001

Oper and Maint Supplies2/25/2016

Bronze Insulationg Glass Unit 0 18474 20.0000.2544.323.00.000 $1,275.001

Repair Services2/25/2016

Check #: 133537

$1,440.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$1,440.00Vendor Total:

Scholastic SCHOLIBP
UB

Check Group:

Library Books 0 11461357 10.0000.2220.430.00.000 $156.001

Library Books2/25/2016

Tech Subscriptions 0 11461578 10.0000.2225.300.03.000 $546.001

Tech Subscriptions2/25/2016

Check #: 133538

$702.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$702.00Vendor Total:

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 24



School Health Corp SCHHEALT
H

Check Group:

Nurse General Supplies 0 3095218-00 10.0000.2134.410.00.000 $393.531

Nurse General Supplies2/2/2016

Nurse General Supplies 0 3095218-01 10.0000.2134.410.00.000 $15.861

Nurse General Supplies2/9/2016

Check #: 133539

$409.39PO/InvoiceTotal:

$409.39Vendor Total:

School Speciality SCHOOLS
PEC

Check Group:

General Supplies 0 208115759534 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 $86.361

General Supplies2/2/2016

General Supplies 0 208115797861 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 $47.261

General Supplies2/8/2016

General Supplies 0 208115849116 10.0000.2140.410.00.000 $146.831

General Supplies2/21/2016

Indust Tech Supplies 0 208115863020 10.0000.1120.410.06.000 $172.791

Indust Tech Supplies2/24/2016

Indust Tech Supplies 0 208115865743 10.0000.1120.410.06.000 $141.701

Indust Tech Supplies2/26/2016

Spanish Material & Supplies 0 208115869092 10.0000.1120.410.28.000 $127.391

Spanish Material & Supplies2/26/2016

Check #: 133540

$722.33PO/InvoiceTotal:

$722.33Vendor Total:

Spelling City.Com, Inc.

Check Group:

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 25



Tech Subscriptions 0 433404 10.0000.2225.300.03.000 $120.001

Tech Subscriptions2/3/2016

Check #: 133541

$120.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$120.00Vendor Total:

SPRINT SPRINT

Check Group:

Communication 0 01/04-02/03 20.0000.2540.340.00.000 $512.661

Communication2/9/2016

Check #: 133542

$512.66PO/InvoiceTotal:

$512.66Vendor Total:

Sue Johnson JOHNSON
SUE

Check Group:

Year Book 0 11/16-11/20/15 10.0000.2210.300.00.000 $464.001

Consultant Fees2/26/2016

Year Book 0 2/16-2/26/16 10.0000.2210.300.00.000 $880.001

Consultant Fees2/26/2016

Year Book 0 2/2-2/9/16 10.0000.2210.300.00.000 $528.001

Consultant Fees2/26/2016

Check #: 133543

$1,872.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$1,872.00Vendor Total:

Tennant Sales and Service Company

Check Group:

Oper and Maint Supplies 0 913647075 20.0000.2540.410.00.000 $233.501

Oper and Maint Supplies3/3/2016

Oper and Maint Supplies 0 913647076 20.0000.2540.410.00.000 $68.101

Oper and Maint Supplies3/3/2016

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Check #: 133544

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 26



Check #: 133544

$301.60PO/InvoiceTotal:

$301.60Vendor Total:

The Cove School

Check Group:

Special Ed Purchased Services 0 SD38-0116 10.0000.1200.390.00.000 $4,303.441

Spec Ed Purchased Svc2/8/2016

Check #: 133545

$4,303.44PO/InvoiceTotal:

$4,303.44Vendor Total:

The Omni Group OMNIGRO
UP

Check Group:

403B Administrative Services 0 1602-7911 10.0000.2520.311.01.000 $21.001

403B Administrative Services2/3/2016

403B Administrative Services 0 1603-7911 10.0000.2520.311.01.000 $21.001

403B Administrative Services3/2/2016

Check #: 133546

$42.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$42.00Vendor Total:

Tru-Link TRULINK

Check Group:

Grounds Services 0 39548 20.0000.2540.329.00.000 $1,898.001

Grounds Services3/2/2016

Check #: 133547

$1,898.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$1,898.00Vendor Total:

Tyler Technologies, Inc TYLERTEC
HN

Check Group:

Computer Software Tyler Technologies 0 025-146626 10.0000.2223.470.00.000 $3,200.001

Computer Software2/2/2016

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 27



Computer Software 0 025-146851 10.0000.2223.470.00.000 $4,023.751

Computer Software2/8/2016

Computer Software Tyler Tech 0 025-147008 10.0000.2223.470.00.000 $300.001

Computer Software2/21/2016

Computer Software Tyler 0 025-148528 10.0000.2223.470.00.000 $300.001

Computer Software2/21/2016

Computer Software/Tyler Technologies 0 025-148802 10.0000.2223.470.00.000 $6,034.411

Computer Software2/25/2016

Project anager Fees 0 025-149123 10.0000.2223.470.00.000 $200.001

Computer Software3/2/2016

Professional Growth/Crystal, Angela & Trish Tyler
Convention

0 045-153922 10.0000.2330.300.00.000 $2,608.001

Professional Growth3/2/2016

Check #: 133548

$16,666.16PO/InvoiceTotal:

$16,666.16Vendor Total:

Vanguard Energy Services LLC VANGUAR
D

Check Group:

Natural Gas 0 400-1601-3104 20.0000.2540.465.00.000 $4,423.261

Natural Gas2/9/2016

Check #: 133549

$4,423.26PO/InvoiceTotal:

$4,423.26Vendor Total:

W. W. Grainger GRAINGER

Check Group:

Oper and Maint Supplies 0 9013844924 20.0000.2540.410.00.000 $1,606.791

Oper and Maint Supplies2/9/2016

Oper and Maint Supplies 0 9014904354 20.0000.2540.410.00.000 $319.901

Oper and Maint Supplies2/9/2016

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 28



Oper and Maint Supplies 0 9019235192 20.0000.2540.410.00.000 $19.961

Oper and Maint Supplies2/24/2016

Oper and Maint Supplies 0 9019858902 20.0000.2540.410.00.000 $188.131

Oper and Maint Supplies2/24/2016

Oper and Maint Supplies 0 9027824680 20.0000.2540.410.00.000 $150.001

Oper and Maint Supplies2/25/2016

Check #: 133550

$2,284.78PO/InvoiceTotal:

$2,284.78Vendor Total:

Wards Natural Science WARDS

Check Group:

Science Supplies 0 8043868767 10.0000.1110.410.10.000 $251.801

Science Supplies2/8/2016

Check #: 133551

$251.80PO/InvoiceTotal:

$251.80Vendor Total:

End of Report

$176,879.33Grand Total:

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1052 03/14/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/03/2016 3:17:17 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 29



First Bank & Trust

Check Group:

Cash - Main Account/To Transfer Funds to New Bank
Account

0 03/09/14 10.0000.0101.000.00.000 $4,000,000.001

Cash - Main Account3/8/2016

Check #: 133552

$4,000,000.00PO/InvoiceTotal:

$4,000,000.00Vendor Total:

End of Report

$4,000,000.00Grand Total:

Voucher Batch Number:

Kenilworth School District 38

Vendor Remit Name
Description

Voucher Detail Listing

Fiscal Year:   2015-2016

1054 03/08/2016

PO No. Invoice Account Amount
Vendor #

QTY
Invoice Date

Printed: 03/08/2016 4:26:05 PM rptAPVoucherDetailReport: 2015.4.14 Page: 1



KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38 

Business Services and Human Resources Coordinator 

	
  

Approved	
  by	
  the	
  Kenilworth	
  Board	
  of	
  Education	
  on	
  3-­‐14-­‐16	
  

Administrative Support Personnel  
Job Description 

	
  	
   	
   	
   	
  
JOB	
  TITLE:	
  	
   Executive	
  Assistant	
  to	
  Business	
  Services	
  and	
  

Human	
  Resources	
  
	
  
ORGANIZATIONAL	
  UNIT:	
  	
   	
   	
   Business	
  Services	
  
	
  
ORGANIZATIONAL	
  RELATIONSHIPS:	
   	
  
Reports	
  to:	
   Superintendent/Chief	
  School	
  Business	
  Official	
  

(CSBO)	
  
	
  
LENGTH	
  OF	
  POSITION:	
   Twelve	
  Months	
  –	
  8	
  Hour	
  Workday	
  with	
  .5	
  hour	
  

unpaid	
  lunch	
  
	
  
TYPE	
  OF	
  POSITION:	
   	
   	
   	
   Non-­‐Exempt	
  
	
  	
  
GENERAL	
  RESPONSIBILITIES:	
  
The	
  Executive	
  Assistant	
  to	
  Business	
  Services	
  and	
  Human	
  Resources	
  is	
  responsible	
  for	
  all	
  
personnel,	
  payroll	
  and	
  executive	
  assistant	
  duties	
  related	
  to	
  Business	
  Services.	
  
	
  
QUALIFICATIONS:	
  	
  The	
  following	
  skills	
  and	
  certifications/licensures	
  are	
  preferred	
  for	
  this	
  
position:	
  	
  

• Keyboarding,	
  	
  
• Strong	
  organizational	
  skills,	
  	
  
• Proficient	
  with	
  technology,	
  	
  
• Good	
  rapport	
  with	
  others,	
  	
  
• Collaborative	
  and	
  Flexible,	
  
• Minimum	
  of	
  bachelor’s	
  degree	
  and	
  five	
  years	
  of	
  office	
  experience,	
  preferred,	
  	
  
• Review	
  of	
  credit	
  history	
  may	
  be	
  implemented.	
  

	
  
SPECIFIC	
  DUTIES:	
  

1. Provides	
  administrative	
  structure	
  assistance	
  to	
  the	
  Superintendent/CSBO	
  
2. Prepares	
  and	
  maintains	
  payroll	
  and	
  related	
  records.	
  	
  
3. Reconciles	
  payroll	
  and	
  benefit	
  reports	
  
4. Prepares	
  files	
  and	
  information	
  for	
  the	
  internal	
  auditing	
  of	
  District	
  payroll	
  accounts.	
  	
  
5. Serves	
  as	
  a	
  technology	
  resource	
  for	
  the	
  accounting	
  software.	
  
6. Serves	
  as	
  initial	
  contact	
  with	
  new	
  personnel	
  providing	
  information	
  and	
  

administering	
  compliance	
  items	
  related	
  to	
  federal,	
  state,	
  District	
  requirements.	
  
7. Provides	
  information	
  and	
  facilitates	
  employee	
  enrollment	
  in	
  District	
  benefit	
  

programs;	
  i.e.	
  medical,	
  dental,	
  short/long	
  term	
  disability,	
  403B,	
  flex	
  plan.	
  	
  
8. Ensures	
  compliance	
  and	
  maintains	
  all	
  employee	
  records.	
  
9. Ensures	
  enrollment	
  in	
  the	
  appropriate	
  pension	
  program	
  (i.e.	
  Teachers’	
  Retirement	
  

System	
  -­‐	
  TRS	
  or	
  Illinois	
  Municipal	
  Retirement	
  Fund	
  -­‐	
  IMRF)	
  
10. Completes	
  reports	
  related	
  to	
  staff	
  attendance.	
  	
  
11. Maintains	
  information	
  for	
  filing	
  reports	
  required	
  by	
  Illinois	
  State	
  Board	
  of	
  Education	
  	
  



KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38 

Business Services and Human Resources Coordinator 

	
  

Approved	
  by	
  the	
  Kenilworth	
  Board	
  of	
  Education	
  on	
  3-­‐14-­‐16	
  

Administrative Support Personnel  
Job Description 

12. Assists	
  and	
  acts	
  in	
  a	
  confidential	
  capacity	
  providing	
  information	
  related	
  to	
  labor	
  
relations	
  and	
  collective	
  bargaining.	
  	
  

13. Processes	
  documents	
  for	
  required	
  federal	
  and	
  state	
  financial	
  reporting.	
  	
  
14. Responds	
  to	
  requests	
  related	
  to	
  employment	
  and	
  salary	
  verification.	
  
15. Develops	
  and	
  maintains	
  a	
  cadre	
  of	
  substitute	
  teachers	
  and	
  provides	
  orientation	
  and	
  

training	
  for	
  substitutes.	
  
16. Maintains	
  best	
  practice	
  expectations	
  including	
  participation	
  in	
  professional	
  

development	
  experiences,	
  as	
  appropriate.	
  
17. Responsible	
  for	
  executive	
  assistant	
  duties	
  related	
  to	
  the	
  Business	
  Services	
  Office	
  
18. Performs	
  other	
  duties	
  as	
  assigned	
  by	
  the	
  Superintendent/CSBO.	
  

	
  
	
  	
  



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIAL  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

To: Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
 
From: Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/Chief School Business Official 
 Mrs. Kendra Wallace, Principal 
 Ms. Julia Jones, Director of Student Services 
 
Date: March 14, 2016 
 
Re: Revised Job Description and Salary for the Business Services and Human 

Resources Position  
 
 
 
Business & Human Resources Coordinator Position 
 
Ms. Angela Lascola is currently the Business & Human Resources Coordinator. The 
position has continued to increase in both the number of job responsibilities, as well as 
the level of responsibilities. During the year past three years, the position has evolved 
into the following: 
 

• 2013-2014: Business Services Coordinator  
• Payroll 

• 2014-2015  Business Services and Human Resources Coordinator 
• Payroll and Human Resources 

• 2015-2016  Business Services and Human Resources Coordinator 
• Payroll, Human Resources and Executive Assistant 

Responsibilities 
• Proposed   Executive Assistant to Business Services and Human Resources 

• Payroll, Human Resources and Executive Assistant 
Responsibilities 

 
 
The combination of Business Services and Human Resources responsibilities has been 
very efficient. The addition of the executive assistant responsibilities is a direct result of 
the Administrative Restructure.  With the combination of the Superintendent and Chief 
School Business Official positions, Ms. Lascola has picked up some overflow duties, 
including some at a higher level. Other additional responsibilities are a simple result of 
her proximity to the Superintendent Office.  
 
 
Recommendation 
 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIAL  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

After reviewing similar positions within the North Cook area, it was determined that a 
position and salary adjustment should be considered.  Although each district has their 
own customized job description, the overall roles are similar.  Based on this data, we 
would like to recommend that the position be upgraded to an Executive Assistant level 
with increase in salary to $58,500. This adjustment will bring the position within the 
average salary among the North Cook Area. 
 
While this memo addresses the Business Services and Human Resources Coordinator 
position, it also speaks to the District’s commitment to the support staff.  Over the last 
three years, the Administration has worked diligently to implement and sustain the 
following: 
 

• Annual evaluations for support staff 
• Quarterly support staff meetings 
• Inclusion of relevant training for support staff employees during Teacher Institute 

Days 
• Actively promoting additional training and professional development to the 

support staff  
• Creation and compliance with the support staff handbook 

 
This change reflects our commitment as a District to retain high quality employees, to 
ensure excellent delivery of services, efficiency of operation and adherence to consistent 
policies and protocols. In this spirit, aligning compensation to the quantity and quality of 
work to ensure equity and fair treatment of all of our employees is paramount. This 
adjustment in compensation reflects continuity in our practice for all employee groups. 
 
We recommend your favorable approval to revise the job description and salary for the 
Business Services and Human Resources Position to the Executive Assistant to Business 
Services and Human Resources as presented. The job description is included in this 
month’s board packet. 
 
Should you have any questions on concerns regarding this memo, please do not hesitate 
to contact one of us. 
 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIAL  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

To: Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
 Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO 
 
From: Mrs. Kendra Wallace, Principal 
 
Date: March 14, 2016 
 
Re: Position Revisions and Recommendations 
 
 
 
Math Coach/Math Intervention Specialist 
Background: During the SY 2014-15, the position of Math Coach was developed and 
implemented to support math instruction, the alignment of curriculum with CCSS and 
support the mathematic learning community at Sears.  As this position has existed for 2 
years now, the emphasis and focus for scope of work has begun to ask for direct 
instruction to small groups of children to support with early intervention, enrichment 
and extension of the current curriculum.  There is still some need to support curriculum, 
but the scope of the work day has begun to engage our Math Coach from before school, 
throughout the school day and at lunch, leaving many days without a planning period. 
 There is clearly a demand for additional math intervention and support. 
 
Researching practice in neighboring districts, there are math facilitators/coaches at both 
the elementary and junior high schools.  The research surrounding early intervention 
indicated the importance of providing early-targeted support for students.  During the 
SY 2015-16, we moved our reading support to first grade and we are now able to 
provided targeted support and document growth for these scholars earlier.  We 
currently have two literacy specialists to provide targeted support 1st thru 8th grade. 
 We would like to mirror this model with mathematics. 
 
Recommendation: 
Transition our current math facilitator position to a math intervention specialist and add 
one position. We would have 2 FTE dedicated to providing targeted support in the field 
of mathematics.  Candidates would be highly qualified educators in the field of 
mathematics and have expertise and experience with the grade levels being supported. 
This would establish a Math Intervention Specialist grades K-4th and one serving grades 
5th-8th.  Depending on the need, the specific grade levels supported might be adjusted. 
 
This recommendation would add 1 FTE to our current staffing recommendation.  
 
Some Research: 
University of Chicago 
 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIAL  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

Hanover Study 
 
Math Intervention 
 
 
Junior High RtI-Gifted Coordinator/Differentiation Facilitator 
Background: Kenilworth School District No. 38 established the Junior High RTI/Gifted 
Education Coordinator Position for the SY 2013-14.  This position worked with teachers 
to identify RTI strategies, support the RTI program and lead meetings and provide RTI 
intervention where needed.  In addition, the position was to provide teachers with 
support and resources to work with gifted learners. 
 
Recommendation: 
As we begin to look at what our RTI model should look like as it evolves to MTSS, the 
general education instruction becomes a focus.  How are we supporting various learners 
in the classroom setting and ensuring that there is differentiation to meet the needs in 
our classroom.  Initial tiers of this model happen in the classroom and the basis for 
adjustments root in differentiation.  The goal in making the title shift and adjusting the 
scope of work is to support differentiation schoolwide.   
 
Kenilworth School District No. 38 supports the needs of all learners through the practice 
of differentiation. Put simply, differentiation is a way for teachers to meet students 
where they are in the learning process and help maximize their learning and 
achievement. Differentiation is a student-centered philosophy that calls for a wide 
variety of best practice teaching strategies. This ensures that all students are able to 
obtain optimal learning outcomes by varying content, process, and product based on 
student readiness, interests, and preferred learning styles. All students meet rigorous 
state standards, but the teacher may adjust the degree of support, depth of knowledge, 
and modes of expression to find ways to meet the needs and preferences of various 
students within the classroom.  
 
Flexible grouping is a hallmark of differentiated instruction. Within a differentiated 
classroom, teachers regularly use forms of assessment, knowledge of students, and 
student input to arrange students in a wide variety of flexible groupings. According to 
Dr. Carol Ann Tomlinson, a leading expert in the field: “In a differentiated classroom, 
students experience learning in many configurations –working in small groups (with 
peers having similar or different readiness, interests, or learning preferences), with a 
partner, individually, and as a whole group.” (The Differentiated Classroom: Responding to 
the Needs of all Learners)  Through the use of flexible groupings, teachers are able to act as 
learning coaches/ facilitators and effectively customize learning activities for students ’ 
readiness, interests, and preferred learning style. 
 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIAL  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

Part of this work would also include what happens if students are still not acquiring new 
information.  We would then need to extend their differentiation and support to 
programs outside the general learning minutes.  
 
We would like to shift the title and job description of our Junior High RTI/Gifted 
Education Coordinator to Differentiation Facilitator. 
 
 
Practical Arts Teacher/Outdoor Garden Coordinator 
Background: Kenilworth School District 38 offers practical arts as part of the elective 
wheel. This program includes finance and career education, cooking, and elements that 
relate to food and nutrition. This course has included domestic arts including sewing, 
home organization, etc. in the past. 
 
In partnership with the JSSPVA, an outdoor garden was established on the greens at the 
back of the Joseph Sears School.  This space has shifted in balance in terms of who and 
what is managing the space.  There has also been a shift from assumption of funding 
from the JSSPVA to the school site.  With the growing accountability of the school and 
the integrations of this space to a learning space and resource for the school, the school is 
beginning to assume responsibility for the area and will continue to work with the 
JSSPVA for parent volunteers and the operation of a few annual events. 
 
Recommendation: 
We continue to staff and offer Practical Arts grades 5th through 8th grade.  This position 
will be .5 FTE.  This curriculum will be shifted to include a Farm to Table component as 
well as education about creating and maintaining a home garden, organic foods and 
healthy food preparation.  This position will be married with an Outdoor Garden 
Coordinator that will assume responsibility for the outdoor garden space including 
maintaining and harvest the garden year round, coordinating services, establishing and 
implementing a vision and leading a committee to support the space.  This position will 
work K-8th grade aligning curriculum with the outdoor garden space and providing 
opportunity for all students to work and engage in the garden. 
 
This will include supporting and monitoring the resources and lessons in the new 
science materials that include needing to go outdoors. 
 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIAL  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

To: Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
 
From: Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/Chief School Business Official 
 Mrs. Kendra Wallace, Principal 
 Ms. Julia Jones, Director of Student Services 
 
Date: March 14, 2016 
 
Re: Administrative Structure Proposal 
 
 
 
Background 
 
During the 2014-2015 school year, the current administration assessed the needs of the 
Administrative Leadership Team.  The following recommendations were made for the 
2015-2016 school year: 
 

• The Superintendent and Chief School Business Official positions were combined 
into one position 

• The Instructional Facilitator position was added to assist the principal with 
professional development and curricular responsibilities 

• The Communication Coordinator position was added to assist the administrative 
leadership team with communications and board packet assembly 

• The Executive Administrative Assistant to the Superintendent was revised to The 
Executive Administrative Assistant to the Administration, which includes 
additional front office duties 
 

Now that the Administrative Team has had an opportunity to live with these 
recommendations, we have found success in many of the changes, as well as room for 
growth in others.  The combination of the Superintendent and business manager 
positions and the addition of the Instructional Facilitator and Communication 
Coordinator positions are all going well.  The revised Executive Assistant to the 
Administration position is also going fairly well, but there is opportunity to better utilize 
the resources of this position.  However, the Business & Human Resources Coordinator 
is one position that we did not foresee as having such a significant increase in duties. The 
ramifications of the Administrative Structure on the Business Services & Human 
Resources Coordinator position are addressed in a separate memo. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIAL  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

Administrative Restructure 
 
The positions within the Administrative Leadership team also need to re-evaluated. The 
following chart outlines the current roles of the instructional positions with an additional 
column highlighting the needs: 
 
 

Current 
Principal 

(Administrator) 
Director of Student Services 

(Administrator) 
Needs 

• Sets, creates and implements 
curriculum in accordance with 
best practices 

• Supervises curriculum 
implementation, renewal and 
material selection 

• Monitors and oversees 
instructional and assessment 
best practices 

• Manages professional 
development 

• Sets, fosters and manages 
school culture 

• Serves as instructional leader 
of the school 

• Performs teacher evaluations 
(50%) 

• Manages school staffing 
• Manages employment of 

school personnel 
• Oversees data and assessment 

practices 
• Facilitates master schedule 

 

• Oversees comprehensive 
student support services 
including IEPs, 504 Plans and 
ELL services 

• Provides leadership and 
expertise in student gifted 
identification 

• Develops procedures for 
assessment, placement and 
evaluation of student needs 
related to Student Services 

• Manages school culture in 
tandem with Principal 

• Manages instructional assistant 
staffing  

• Oversees Response to 
Intervention initiatives 

• Performs teacher evaluations 
(50%) 

• Ensures compliance of 
State/Federal student services 
regulations 

• Educates community on District 
Student Services  

• Serves as District Treasurer 
 

• Additional student 
discipline support 

• Additional daily school 
operations and 
supervision support 

• Additional educator 
and committee support 

 
 
Recommendation 
 
In order to address the needs of the current structure, the Administrative Leadership 
Team recommends the following restructure: 
  



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIAL  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

Recommendation for Restructure – March 14, 2016 
 

Principal 
(Administrator) 

Director of Student Services 
(Administrator) 

Teacher Resource Coordinator 
(Teacher-level) 

10-Month 
Evaluated by 

Superintendent/CSBO 
Evaluated by 

 Superintendent/CSBO 
Evaluated by 

Principal 
• Sets, creates and implements 

curriculum in accordance with 
best practices 

• Supervises curriculum 
implementation, renewal and 
material selection 

• Monitors and oversees 
instructional and assessment 
best practices 

• Manages professional 
development 

• Sets, fosters and manages 
school culture 

• Serves as instructional leader 
of the school 

• Performs teacher evaluations 
(50%) 

• Manages school staffing 
• Manages employment of 

school personnel 
• Oversees data and assessment 

practices 
• Facilitates master schedule 

 

• Oversees comprehensive 
student support services 
including IEPs, 504 Plans and 
ELL services 

• Provides leadership and 
expertise in student gifted 
identification 

• Develops procedures for 
assessment, placement and 
evaluation of student needs 
related to Student Services 

• Manages school culture in 
tandem with Principal 

• Manages instructional assistant 
staffing  

• Oversees Response to 
Intervention initiatives 

• Performs teacher evaluations 
(50%) 

• Ensures compliance of 
State/Federal student services 
regulations 

• Educates community on District 
Student Services  
Serves as District Treasurer 

• Lead professional 
development as part of 
the curriculum renewal 
process 

• Analyze and review data 
as it pertains to student 
growth 

• Additional educator and 
committee support 

• Additional student 
discipline support 

• Additional daily school 
operations and 
supervision support 
 

 
 
Summary: The Director of Student Services would retain all of the duties of the current 
Director of Student Services position. The Teacher Resource Coordinator would lead 
professional development as part of the curriculum renewal process.  They would also 
analyze and review data as it pertains to student growth. Additionally, the position 
would be responsible for student supervision before, after and throughout the day. This 
position may be temporary (2-3 years) depending on the needs of the District. 
 
This model highlights the following benefits: 

• Continuity of an administrator leading the Student Services Department 
• Addition of the Teacher Resource Coordinator will improve consistency and 

quality of daily building operations 



 

DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIAL  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 

     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 

• The shift in daily operational duties, as well as assistance with the curriculum 
process and student data analysis would result in a workload reduction for the 
Principal. 

• Maintaining a three person administrative team allows for a larger opportunity 
for strategic planning, professional growth and availability to the faculty and 
staff. 

 
Finally, it is important to note that these recommendations represent the current state of 
the District.  Over time, as the District settles into the new restructure and the 
Administrative Leadership Team develops into a highly functioning team, the need for 
the Teacher Resource position and/or other support positions may need to be revisited. 



	
  

KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38 
Teacher 

	
  

1 | Page	
  

Proposed Title Change 3-12-2016	
  

Certified Personnel	
  
Job Description	
  

JOB TITLE:      Differentiation Facilitator	
  
	
  
	
  
ORGANIZATIONAL UNIT:   School	
  
	
  
ORGANIZATIONAL RELATIONSHIP 	
  
Reports to: Principal or Director of Student Services	
  
	
  
LENGTH OF POSITION: For full time employees, 180 Work Days with 

185 days reserved for emergency days, only if 
needed; Hours to reflect the daily student 
hours (6 hours and 55 minutes) inclusive of a 
30 minute duty free lunch period.  Salary, 
benefits and work year will be established in 
accordance with the Board of Education and 
the Kenilworth Education Association (KEA) 
Professional Agreement.  Teachers working less 
than full time will be prorated, as appropriate.	
  

	
  
TYPE OF POSITION:    Exempt	
  
	
  
Evaluation: Performance will be evaluated in accordance 

with the Teacher Evaluation Plan.	
  
	
  
GENERAL RESPONSIBILITIES:  	
  
	
  
The Differentiation Facilitator shall perform such duties and responsibilities associated 
with the teaching profession, those outlined in District 38 policies, and as are required 
by the Illinois School Code and in the Kenilworth Education Association Professional 
Agreement.  	
  
	
  
This job description is intended to describe the general nature and level of the work 
being performed by the teachers and is not an exhaustive list of all duties and 
responsibilities.  The District reserves the right to amend and change the responsibilities 
to meet business and organizational needs, as necessary.	
  
	
  



	
  

KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38 
Teacher 

	
  

2 | Page	
  

Proposed Title Change 3-12-2016	
  

Certified Personnel	
  
Job Description	
  

QUALIFICATIONS: The following skills and certifications/licensures are preferred for 
this position: 	
  
	
  
● Illinois State Board of Education Professional Educator Licensure/Endorsement 

appropriate to subject matter and instructional level of assignment (required) 
● Clearance of FBI Background check, tuberculosis free and physical exam noting 

fitness for duty (all required) 
● Ability to understand and carry out oral and written directions 
● Ability to visually supervise students 
● Ability to exercise sound judgment in making decisions regarding the safety and 

welfare of students 
● Ability to perform assigned duties and tasks with minimal direction 
● Ability to establish and maintain effective public, student and collegial 

relationships 
● Ability to speak, write, read, and understand English 
● Ability to handle student information with confidentiality 
● Ability to meet physical requirements to include the following: 

✓ Moderate degree of physical stamina with occasional lifting of 10 to 15 pounds 
and occasional lifting of up to 50 pounds is required in the physical assistance 
of students with special needs 

✓ Move freely to various locations within the classroom, office, outside grounds 
and other business and community settings. 

✓ Frequent standing, walking sitting, and bending 
✓ Frequent repetitive activities including hands, arms, and legs for clerical 

related work 
✓ Tolerate exposure to noise and activity of a school setting 
✓ Tolerate exposure to outdoor weather conditions 

	
  
ESSENTIAL JOB PERFORMANCE EXPECTATIONS:	
  

1. Collaborate with teachers to develop, plan, and implement creative and enriching 
instruction within the classroom setting that requires the maximum use of higher 
level thinking skills, problem-solving, and creative thinking skills.	
  
1. In consultation with classroom teachers, research, identify, modify and prepare 

materials based upon readiness, learning styles and interests. 
2. Co-teach with the classroom teachers as appropriate modeling differentiation 

strategies. 



	
  

KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38 
Teacher 

	
  

3 | Page	
  

Proposed Title Change 3-12-2016	
  

Certified Personnel	
  
Job Description	
  

3. Develop and maintain a reservoir of materials to support the curriculum 
4. Serve as a resource person to assist in compacting and differentiating the 

curriculum. 
5. Participate on Building Leadership Team and Curriculum Team. 
6. Provide Professional Development in the area of differentiation to teachers 

through workshops, modeling various strategies, and the sharing/ creation of 
resources. 

7. Coordinate with administrative team to promote differentiation  
8. Model for teachers the use of data/ pre-assessment in order to effectively 

differentiate for various learners and set further learning goals. 
9. Teach and co-teach students in flexible groups where appropriate  
10. Use technology to differentiate. 
11. Generate documents used by district to communicate with the community about 

differentiation. 
12. Collaborate with departments and grade levels throughout the curriculum 

renewal cycle to review curriculum, preview materials and support the 
implementation and professional development opportunities 

13. Completes all District Compliance Training 
14. Performs other assignments as directed by the Superintendent, Principal or 

Director of Student Services as aligned to the KEA Professional Agreement 



KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38 

Math Intervention Specialist 

	
  

1 | P a g e  
Approved by the Kenilworth Board of Education on 3-14-16 

Certified Personnel 
Job Description 

JOB	
  TITLE:	
  	
   	
   	
   	
   	
   Math	
  Intervention	
  Specialist	
  
	
  
ORGANIZATIONAL	
  UNIT:	
  	
   	
   	
   School	
  
	
  
ORGANIZATIONAL	
  RELATIONSHIP	
  	
  
Reports	
  to:	
   Principal	
  or	
  Director	
  of	
  Student	
  Services	
  
	
  
LENGTH	
  OF	
  POSITION:	
   For	
  full	
  time	
  employees,	
  180	
  Work	
  Days	
  with	
  

185	
  days	
  reserved	
  for	
  emergency	
  days,	
  only	
  if	
  
needed;	
  Hours	
  to	
  reflect	
  the	
  daily	
  student	
  hours	
  
(6	
  hours	
  and	
  55	
  minutes)	
  inclusive	
  of	
  a	
  30	
  
minute	
  duty	
  free	
  lunch	
  period.	
  	
  Salary,	
  benefits	
  
and	
  work	
  year	
  will	
  be	
  established	
  in	
  accordance	
  
with	
  the	
  Board	
  of	
  Education	
  and	
  the	
  Kenilworth	
  
Education	
  Association	
  (KEA)	
  Professional	
  
Agreement.	
  	
  Teachers	
  working	
  less	
  than	
  full	
  time	
  
will	
  be	
  prorated,	
  as	
  appropriate.	
  

	
  
TYPE	
  OF	
  POSITION:	
   	
   	
   	
   Exempt	
  
	
  
Evaluation:	
   Performance	
  will	
  be	
  evaluated	
  in	
  accordance	
  

with	
  the	
  Teacher	
  Evaluation	
  Plan.	
  
	
  
GENERAL	
  RESPONSIBILITIES:	
  	
  	
  
	
  
The	
  Math	
  Intervention	
  Specialist	
  shall	
  support	
  students	
  and	
  staff	
  members	
  through	
  
consultation,	
  collaboration	
  and	
  by	
  providing	
  direct	
  instruction	
  in	
  a	
  variety	
  of	
  intensive	
  
programs	
  designed	
  to	
  close	
  the	
  performance	
  gap	
  for	
  struggling	
  students.	
  The	
  Math	
  
Intervention	
  Specialist’s	
  extensive	
  knowledge	
  of	
  academic	
  programs	
  will	
  assist	
  in	
  the	
  
implementation	
  of	
  such.	
  	
  The	
  Math	
  Intervention	
  Specialist	
  will	
  work	
  collaboratively	
  with	
  
teams	
  to	
  create	
  positive	
  solutions	
  for	
  difficult	
  problems.	
  The	
  Specialist	
  will	
  be	
  self-­‐directed,	
  
resourceful	
  and	
  positive	
  in	
  implementing	
  and	
  managing	
  a	
  math	
  student	
  support	
  program.	
  
	
  
QUALIFICATIONS:	
  The	
  following	
  skills	
  and	
  certifications/licensures	
  are	
  preferred	
  for	
  this	
  
position:	
  	
  
	
  

• Illinois	
  State	
  Board	
  of	
  Education	
  Professional	
  Educator	
  Licensure/Endorsement	
  
appropriate	
  to	
  subject	
  matter	
  and	
  instructional	
  level	
  of	
  assignment	
  (required)	
  

• Clearance	
  of	
  FBI	
  Background	
  check,	
  tuberculosis	
  free	
  and	
  physical	
  exam	
  noting	
  
fitness	
  for	
  duty	
  (all	
  required)	
  

• Successful	
  math	
  teaching	
  experience	
  
• Ability	
  to	
  understand	
  and	
  carry	
  out	
  oral	
  and	
  written	
  directions	
  
• Ability	
  to	
  visually	
  supervise	
  students	
  
• Ability	
  to	
  exercise	
  sound	
  judgment	
  in	
  making	
  decisions	
  regarding	
  the	
  safety	
  and	
  



KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38 

Math Intervention Specialist 

	
  

2 | P a g e  
Approved by the Kenilworth Board of Education on 3-14-16 

Certified Personnel 
Job Description 

welfare	
  of	
  students	
  
• Ability	
  to	
  perform	
  assigned	
  duties	
  and	
  tasks	
  with	
  minimal	
  direction	
  
• Ability	
  to	
  establish	
  and	
  maintain	
  effective	
  public,	
  student	
  and	
  collegial	
  relationships	
  
• Ability	
  to	
  speak,	
  write,	
  read,	
  and	
  understand	
  English	
  
• Ability	
  to	
  handle	
  student	
  information	
  with	
  confidentiality	
  
• Ability	
  to	
  meet	
  physical	
  requirements	
  to	
  include	
  the	
  following:	
  

ü Moderate	
  degree	
  of	
  physical	
  stamina	
  with	
  occasional	
  lifting	
  of	
  10	
  to	
  15	
  pounds	
  
and	
  occasional	
  lifting	
  of	
  up	
  to	
  50	
  pounds	
  is	
  required	
  in	
  the	
  physical	
  assistance	
  of	
  
students	
  with	
  special	
  needs	
  

ü Move	
  freely	
  to	
  various	
  locations	
  within	
  the	
  classroom,	
  office,	
  outside	
  grounds	
  
and	
  other	
  business	
  and	
  community	
  settings.	
  

ü Frequent	
  standing,	
  walking	
  sitting,	
  and	
  bending	
  
ü Frequent	
  repetitive	
  activities	
  including	
  hands,	
  arms,	
  and	
  legs	
  for	
  clerical	
  related	
  

work	
  
ü Tolerate	
  exposure	
  to	
  noise	
  and	
  activity	
  of	
  a	
  school	
  setting	
  
ü Tolerate	
  exposure	
  to	
  outdoor	
  weather	
  conditions	
  

	
  
ESSENTIAL	
  JOB	
  PERFORMANCE	
  EXPECTATIONS:	
  

1. Meets	
  and	
  instructs	
  assigned	
  students	
  in	
  the	
  locations	
  and	
  at	
  times	
  designated	
  
2. Serves	
  as	
  a	
  member	
  of	
  the	
  Student	
  Services	
  Team	
  
3. Attends	
  team	
  meetings	
  for	
  collaboration	
  and	
  consultation	
  purposes	
  when	
  

appropriate	
  
4. Maintains	
  availability	
  to	
  students,	
  staff,	
  parents	
  and	
  administrators	
  for	
  education-­‐

related	
  purposes	
  during	
  the	
  school	
  day	
  
5. Supports	
  the	
  District’s	
  comprehensive	
  philosophy	
  of	
  education	
  
6. Identifies	
  student	
  needs	
  and	
  assists	
  other	
  professional	
  staff	
  in	
  solving	
  academic	
  

problems	
  
7. Meets	
  with	
  staff	
  to	
  discuss	
  academic	
  plans	
  for	
  children	
  who	
  receive	
  specialized	
  

instruction	
  
8. Plans	
  and	
  implements	
  a	
  differentiated	
  program	
  using	
  research-­‐based	
  methods	
  and	
  

materials	
  that	
  meet	
  the	
  needs	
  of	
  the	
  identified	
  struggling	
  students	
  
9. Develops	
  and	
  implements	
  an	
  academic	
  improvement	
  plan	
  for	
  each	
  identified	
  

student	
  
10. Monitors,	
  assesses	
  and	
  reports	
  progress	
  on	
  all	
  goals	
  for	
  all	
  identified	
  students	
  
11. Identifies	
  methods	
  to	
  be	
  used	
  for	
  both	
  specialized	
  and	
  general	
  education	
  instruction	
  

for	
  selected	
  students,	
  evaluating	
  them	
  on	
  an	
  ongoing	
  basis	
  
12. Prepares	
  for	
  classes	
  assigned	
  and	
  shares	
  plans	
  with	
  building	
  principal	
  and	
  teams	
  

when	
  appropriate	
  
13. Fosters	
  a	
  classroom	
  environment	
  that	
  is	
  conducive	
  to	
  learning	
  
14. Establishes	
  clear	
  objectives	
  and	
  communicates	
  these	
  to	
  staff	
  and	
  students	
  
15. Employs	
  a	
  variety	
  of	
  research-­‐based	
  instructional	
  methods	
  and	
  materials	
  

determined	
  by	
  the	
  individual	
  needs	
  of	
  students	
  involved	
  
16. Assesses	
  and	
  reports	
  student	
  performance	
  on	
  a	
  regular	
  basis	
  to	
  parents,	
  staff	
  and	
  

administrators	
  



KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38 

Math Intervention Specialist 

	
  

3 | P a g e  
Approved by the Kenilworth Board of Education on 3-14-16 

Certified Personnel 
Job Description 

17. Maintains	
  accurate	
  and	
  complete	
  records	
  as	
  required	
  by	
  law,	
  District	
  policy	
  and	
  
administrative	
  procedures	
  

18. Actively	
  maintains	
  professional	
  certification	
  and	
  cometencies	
  
19. Supports	
  the	
  administration	
  and	
  staff	
  in	
  implementing	
  current	
  District	
  practices	
  and	
  

programs	
  
20. Performs	
  other	
  related	
  duties	
  as	
  assigned	
  by	
  an	
  administrator	
  for	
  the	
  purpose	
  of	
  

ensuring	
  the	
  efficient	
  and	
  effective	
  functioning	
  of	
  the	
  school	
  and	
  the	
  District	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  



	
  

KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38 
Practical Arts Teacher /Outdoor Garden Coordinator 

	
  

1 | Page	
  

Adopted by the Kenilworth Board of Education on 3-14-16	
  

Certified Personnel	
  
Job Description	
  

JOB	
  TITLE:	
  	
   	
   	
   	
   	
   Practical Arts Teacher/Outdoor Garden Coordinator	
  
	
  
	
  
ORGANIZATIONAL	
  UNIT:	
  	
   	
   	
   School	
  
	
  
ORGANIZATIONAL	
  RELATIONSHIP	
  	
  
Reports	
  to:	
   Principal	
  or	
  Director	
  of	
  Student	
  Services	
  
	
  
LENGTH	
  OF	
  POSITION:	
   For	
  full	
  time	
  employees,	
  180	
  Work	
  Days	
  with	
  

185	
  days	
  reserved	
  for	
  emergency	
  days,	
  only	
  if	
  
needed;	
  Hours	
  to	
  reflect	
  the	
  daily	
  student	
  hours	
  
(6	
  hours	
  and	
  55	
  minutes)	
  inclusive	
  of	
  a	
  30	
  
minute	
  duty	
  free	
  lunch	
  period.	
  	
  Salary,	
  benefits	
  
and	
  work	
  year	
  will	
  be	
  established	
  in	
  accordance	
  
with	
  the	
  Board	
  of	
  Education	
  and	
  the	
  Kenilworth	
  
Education	
  Association	
  (KEA)	
  Professional	
  
Agreement.	
  	
  Teachers	
  working	
  less	
  than	
  full	
  time	
  
will	
  be	
  prorated,	
  as	
  appropriate.	
  

	
  
TYPE	
  OF	
  POSITION:	
   	
   	
   	
   Exempt	
  
	
  
Evaluation:	
   Performance	
  will	
  be	
  evaluated	
  in	
  accordance	
  

with	
  the	
  Teacher	
  Evaluation	
  Plan.	
  
	
  
GENERAL	
  RESPONSIBILITIES:	
  	
  	
  

 
Practical	
  Arts	
  Teacher/Outdoor	
  Garden	
  Coordinator	
  shall	
  perform	
  such	
  duties	
  and	
  
responsibilities	
  associated	
  with	
  the	
  teaching	
  profession,	
  those	
  outlined	
  in	
  District	
  38	
  
policies,	
  and	
  as	
  are	
  required	
  by	
  the	
  Illinois	
  School	
  Code	
  and	
  in	
  the	
  Kenilworth	
  Education	
  
Association	
  Professional	
  Agreement.	
  	
  	
  
	
  
This	
  job	
  description	
  is	
  intended	
  to	
  describe	
  the	
  general	
  nature	
  and	
  level	
  of	
  the	
  work	
  being	
  
performed	
  by	
  the	
  teachers	
  and	
  is	
  not	
  an	
  exhaustive	
  list	
  of	
  all	
  duties	
  and	
  responsibilities.	
  	
  
The	
  District	
  reserves	
  the	
  right	
  to	
  amend	
  and	
  change	
  the	
  responsibilities	
  to	
  meet	
  business	
  
and	
  organizational	
  needs,	
  as	
  necessary.	
  



	
  

KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38 
Practical Arts Teacher /Outdoor Garden Coordinator 

	
  

2 | Page	
  

Adopted by the Kenilworth Board of Education on 3-14-16	
  

Certified Personnel	
  
Job Description	
  

	
  
QUALIFICATIONS:	
  The	
  following	
  skills	
  and	
  certifications/licensures	
  are	
  preferred	
  for	
  this	
  
position:	
  	
  
	
  
● Illinois	
  State	
  Board	
  of	
  Education	
  Professional	
  Educator	
  Licensure/Endorsement	
  

appropriate	
  to	
  subject	
  matter	
  and	
  instructional	
  level	
  of	
  assignment	
  (required)	
  
● Clearance	
  of	
  FBI	
  Background	
  check,	
  tuberculosis	
  free	
  and	
  physical	
  exam	
  noting	
  

fitness	
  for	
  duty	
  (all	
  required)	
  
● Ability	
  to	
  understand	
  and	
  carry	
  out	
  oral	
  and	
  written	
  directions	
  
● Ability	
  to	
  visually	
  supervise	
  students	
  
● Ability	
  to	
  exercise	
  sound	
  judgment	
  in	
  making	
  decisions	
  regarding	
  the	
  safety	
  and	
  

welfare	
  of	
  students	
  
● Ability	
  to	
  perform	
  assigned	
  duties	
  and	
  tasks	
  with	
  minimal	
  direction	
  
● Ability	
  to	
  establish	
  and	
  maintain	
  effective	
  public,	
  student	
  and	
  collegial	
  relationships	
  
● Ability	
  to	
  speak,	
  write,	
  read,	
  and	
  understand	
  English	
  
● Ability	
  to	
  handle	
  student	
  information	
  with	
  confidentiality	
  
● Ability	
  to	
  meet	
  physical	
  requirements	
  to	
  include	
  the	
  following:	
  

✓ Moderate	
  degree	
  of	
  physical	
  stamina	
  with	
  occasional	
  lifting	
  of	
  10	
  to	
  15	
  pounds	
  
and	
  occasional	
  lifting	
  of	
  up	
  to	
  50	
  pounds	
  is	
  required	
  in	
  the	
  physical	
  assistance	
  of	
  
students	
  with	
  special	
  needs	
  

✓ Move	
  freely	
  to	
  various	
  locations	
  within	
  the	
  classroom,	
  office,	
  outside	
  grounds	
  
and	
  other	
  business	
  and	
  community	
  settings.	
  

✓ Frequent	
  standing,	
  walking	
  sitting,	
  and	
  bending	
  
✓ Frequent	
  repetitive	
  activities	
  including	
  hands,	
  arms,	
  and	
  legs	
  for	
  clerical	
  related	
  

work	
  
✓ Tolerate	
  exposure	
  to	
  noise	
  and	
  activity	
  of	
  a	
  school	
  setting	
  
✓ Tolerate	
  exposure	
  to	
  outdoor	
  weather	
  conditions	
  

	
  
ESSENTIAL	
  JOB	
  PERFORMANCE	
  EXPECTATIONS:	
  

1.	
   Planning	
  and	
  Preparation	
  
(1a.)	
  Demonstrating	
  Knowledge	
  of	
  Content	
  and	
  Pedagogy	
  -­‐	
  The	
  teacher’s	
  plans	
  and	
  
practice	
  reflect	
  solid	
  knowledge	
  of	
  the	
  content,	
  prerequisite	
  relationships	
  between	
  
important	
  concepts,	
  and	
  the	
  instructional	
  practices	
  specific	
  to	
  that	
  discipline.	
  
(1b.)	
  Demonstrating	
  Knowledge	
  of	
  Students	
  -­‐	
  The	
  teacher	
  actively	
  seeks	
  knowledge	
  
of	
  students’	
  backgrounds,	
  cultures,	
  skills,	
  language	
  proficiency,	
  interests,	
  and	
  special	
  
needs,	
  and	
  attains	
  this	
  knowledge	
  for	
  groups	
  of	
  students.	
  



	
  

KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38 
Practical Arts Teacher /Outdoor Garden Coordinator 

	
  

3 | Page	
  

Adopted by the Kenilworth Board of Education on 3-14-16	
  

Certified Personnel	
  
Job Description	
  

(1c.)	
  Setting	
  Instructional	
  Outcomes	
  -­‐	
  Instructional	
  outcomes	
  are	
  stated	
  as	
  goals	
  
reflecting	
  high-­‐level	
  learning	
  and	
  curriculum	
  standards.	
  They	
  are	
  suitable	
  for	
  most	
  
students	
  in	
  the	
  class,	
  represent	
  different	
  types	
  of	
  learning,	
  and	
  can	
  be	
  assessed.	
  The	
  
outcomes	
  reflect	
  opportunities	
  for	
  coordination.	
  
(1d.)	
  Demonstrating	
  Knowledge	
  of	
  Resources	
  -­‐	
  The	
  teacher	
  is	
  fully	
  aware	
  of	
  the	
  
resources	
  available	
  through	
  the	
  School,	
  District	
  or	
  other	
  professional	
  organizations	
  
and	
  sources	
  to	
  enhance	
  own	
  knowledge,	
  to	
  use	
  in	
  teaching,	
  or	
  for	
  students	
  who	
  
need	
  them.	
  
(1e.)	
  Designing	
  Coherent	
  Instruction	
  -­‐	
  The	
  teacher	
  coordinates	
  knowledge	
  of	
  content,	
  
students,	
  and	
  resources	
  to	
  design	
  a	
  series	
  of	
  learning	
  experience	
  aligned	
  to	
  
instructional	
  outcomes	
  and	
  suitable	
  to	
  groups	
  of	
  students.	
  The	
  lesson	
  or	
  unit	
  has	
  a	
  
clear	
  structure	
  and	
  is	
  likely	
  to	
  engage	
  students	
  in	
  significant	
  learning.	
  

	
  
2.	
  	
   The	
  Classroom	
  Environment	
  

(2a.)	
  Creating	
  an	
  Environment	
  of	
  Respect	
  and	
  Rapport	
  -­‐	
  Classroom	
  interactions,	
  both	
  
between	
  teacher	
  and	
  students	
  and	
  among	
  students,	
  are	
  polite	
  and	
  respectful,	
  
reflecting	
  general	
  warmth	
  and	
  caring,	
  and	
  are	
  appropriate	
  to	
  the	
  cultural	
  and	
  
developmental	
  differences	
  among	
  groups	
  of	
  students.	
  
(2b.)	
  Establishing	
  a	
  Culture	
  for	
  Learning	
  -­‐	
  The	
  classroom	
  culture	
  is	
  characterized	
  by	
  
high	
  expectations	
  for	
  most	
  students	
  and	
  genuine	
  commitment	
  to	
  the	
  subject	
  by	
  both	
  
teacher	
  and	
  students,	
  with	
  students	
  demonstrating	
  pride	
  in	
  their	
  work.	
  
(2c.)	
  Managing	
  Classroom	
  Procedures	
  -­‐	
  Little	
  instructional	
  time	
  is	
  lost	
  because	
  
classroom	
  routines	
  and	
  procedures	
  for	
  transitions,	
  handling	
  of	
  supplies,	
  and	
  
performance	
  of	
  non-­‐instructional	
  duties	
  occur	
  smoothly.	
  
(2d.)	
  Managing	
  Student	
  Behavior	
  -­‐	
  Standards	
  of	
  conduct	
  appear	
  to	
  be	
  clear	
  to	
  
students,	
  and	
  the	
  teacher	
  monitors	
  students	
  behavior	
  against	
  those	
  standards.	
  The	
  
teacher	
  response	
  to	
  student	
  misbehavior	
  is	
  appropriate	
  and	
  respects	
  the	
  students’	
  
dignity.	
  

	
  
3.	
  	
   Instruction	
  

(3a.)	
  Communicating	
  with	
  Students	
  -­‐	
  Expectations	
  for	
  learning,	
  directions	
  and	
  
procedures,	
  and	
  explanations	
  of	
  content	
  are	
  clear	
  to	
  students.	
  Communications	
  are	
  
appropriate	
  for	
  students’	
  cultures	
  and	
  levels	
  of	
  development.	
  
(3b.)	
  Using	
  Questioning	
  and	
  Discussion	
  Techniques	
  -­‐	
  Most	
  of	
  the	
  teacher’s	
  questions	
  
elicit	
  a	
  thoughtful	
  response,	
  and	
  the	
  teacher	
  allows	
  sufficient	
  time	
  for	
  students	
  to	
  
answer.	
  All	
  students	
  participate	
  in	
  the	
  discussion,	
  with	
  the	
  teacher	
  allowing	
  



	
  

KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38 
Practical Arts Teacher /Outdoor Garden Coordinator 

	
  

4 | Page	
  

Adopted by the Kenilworth Board of Education on 3-14-16	
  

Certified Personnel	
  
Job Description	
  

students	
  to	
  lead,	
  when	
  appropriate.	
  
(3c.)	
  Engaging	
  Students	
  in	
  Learning	
  -­‐	
  Activities	
  and	
  assignments,	
  materials,	
  and	
  
grouping	
  of	
  students	
  are	
  fully	
  appropriate	
  for	
  the	
  instructional	
  outcomes	
  and	
  
students’	
  cultures	
  and	
  levels	
  of	
  understanding.	
  All	
  students	
  are	
  engaged	
  in	
  work	
  of	
  a	
  
high	
  level	
  of	
  rigor.	
  The	
  lesson’s	
  structure	
  is	
  coherent,	
  with	
  appropriate	
  pace.	
  
(3d.)	
  Using	
  Assessment	
  in	
  Instruction	
  -­‐	
  Assessment	
  is	
  regularly	
  used	
  in	
  instruction,	
  
through	
  self-­‐assessment	
  by	
  students,	
  monitoring	
  of	
  progress	
  of	
  learning	
  by	
  the	
  
teacher	
  and/or	
  students,	
  and	
  high-­‐quality	
  feedback	
  to	
  students.	
  Students	
  are	
  fully	
  
aware	
  of	
  the	
  assessment	
  criteria	
  used	
  to	
  evaluate	
  their	
  work.	
  
(3e.)	
  Demonstrating	
  Flexibility	
  and	
  Responsiveness	
  -­‐	
  The	
  teacher	
  promotes	
  the	
  
successful	
  learning	
  of	
  all	
  students,	
  making	
  adjustments	
  as	
  needed	
  to	
  instruction	
  
plans	
  and	
  accommodating	
  student	
  questions,	
  needs,	
  and	
  interests.	
  

	
  
4.	
  	
   Professional	
  Responsibilities	
  

(4a.)	
  Reflecting	
  on	
  Teaching	
  -­‐	
  The	
  teacher	
  provides	
  an	
  accurate	
  and	
  objective	
  
description	
  of	
  each	
  lesson,	
  citing	
  specific	
  evidence.	
  The	
  teacher	
  makes	
  some	
  specific	
  
suggestions	
  as	
  to	
  how	
  the	
  lesson	
  might	
  be	
  improved.	
  
(4b.)	
  Maintaining	
  Accurate	
  Records	
  -­‐	
  The	
  teacher’s	
  systems	
  for	
  maintaining	
  both	
  
instructional	
  and	
  non-­‐instructional	
  records	
  are	
  accurate,	
  efficient	
  and	
  effective.	
  
(4c.)	
  Communicating	
  with	
  Families	
  -­‐	
  The	
  teacher	
  communicates	
  with	
  families	
  and	
  
successfully	
  engages	
  them	
  in	
  the	
  instructional	
  program.	
  Information	
  to	
  families	
  
about	
  individual	
  students	
  is	
  conveyed	
  in	
  a	
  culturally	
  appropriate	
  manner.	
  
(4d.)	
  Participating	
  in	
  a	
  Professional	
  Community	
  -­‐	
  The	
  teacher	
  participates	
  actively	
  in	
  
the	
  professional	
  community	
  and	
  in	
  school	
  and	
  district	
  events	
  and	
  projects,	
  and	
  
maintains	
  positive	
  and	
  productive	
  relationships	
  with	
  colleagues.	
  
(4e.)	
  Growing	
  and	
  Developing	
  Professionally	
  -­‐	
  The	
  teacher	
  seeks	
  out	
  opportunities	
  for	
  
professional	
  development	
  based	
  on	
  an	
  individual	
  assessment	
  of	
  need	
  and	
  actively	
  
shares	
  expertise	
  with	
  others.	
  The	
  teacher	
  welcomes	
  feedback	
  from	
  supervisors	
  and	
  
colleagues.	
  
(4f.)	
  Showing	
  Professionalism	
  -­‐	
  The	
  teacher	
  displays	
  a	
  high-­‐level	
  of	
  ethics	
  and	
  
professionalism	
  in	
  dealings	
  with	
  students,	
  colleagues	
  and	
  parents,	
  also	
  complies	
  
fully	
  and	
  voluntarily	
  with	
  School	
  and	
  District	
  regulations.	
  

	
  
5.	
  	
  	
  Maintain	
  the	
  outdoor	
  garden	
  including	
  organizing	
  planting,	
  harvest,	
  volunteers	
  and	
  
maintenance.	
  
	
  



	
  

KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38 
Practical Arts Teacher /Outdoor Garden Coordinator 

	
  

5 | Page	
  

Adopted by the Kenilworth Board of Education on 3-14-16	
  

Certified Personnel	
  
Job Description	
  

6.	
  	
   Creating	
  and	
  establishing	
  a	
  long	
  term	
  plan	
  for	
  the	
  garden	
  and	
  the	
  farm	
  to	
  table	
  
component	
  that	
  includes	
  goals	
  and	
  potential	
  financial	
  implications.	
  
	
  
7.	
  	
   Establish	
  a	
  committee	
  to	
  oversee	
  and	
  provide	
  input	
  on	
  the	
  direction	
  of	
  the	
  garden.	
  
	
  
8.	
  	
   Collaborate	
  with	
  other	
  Garden	
  Facilitators	
  and	
  organizations	
  to	
  ensure	
  that	
  best	
  
practice	
  in	
  the	
  field	
  and	
  innovation	
  in	
  our	
  upkeep,	
  maintenance	
  and	
  integration	
  into	
  the	
  
learning	
  environment	
  is	
  evident.	
  
	
  
9.	
  	
   Completes	
  all	
  District	
  Compliance	
  Training	
  
	
  
10.	
  Support	
  the	
  work	
  of	
  the	
  science	
  facilitator	
  in	
  supporting	
  and	
  integrating	
  outdoor	
  
garden	
  and	
  support	
  materials	
  into	
  the	
  curriculum.	
  

	
  
10.	
  	
  Performs	
  other	
  assignments	
  as	
  directed	
  by	
  the	
  Superintendent,	
  Principal	
  or	
  

Director	
  of	
  Student	
  Services	
  as	
  aligned	
  to	
  the	
  KEA	
  Professional	
  Agreement	
  



	
  

KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38 
Teacher Resource Coordinator 

	
  

1 | Page	
  

Adopted by the Kenilworth Board of Education on 3-14-16	
  

Certified Personnel	
  
Job Description	
  

JOB	
  TITLE:	
  	
   	
   	
   	
   	
   Teacher	
  Resource	
  Coordinator	
  
	
  
ORGANIZATIONAL	
  UNIT:	
  	
   	
   	
   School	
  
	
  
ORGANIZATIONAL	
  RELATIONSHIP	
  	
  
Reports	
  to:	
   Principal	
  or	
  Director	
  of	
  Student	
  Services	
  
	
  
LENGTH	
  OF	
  POSITION:	
   For	
  full	
  time	
  employees,	
  180	
  Work	
  Days	
  with	
  

185	
  days	
  reserved	
  for	
  emergency	
  days,	
  only	
  if	
  
needed;	
  Hours	
  to	
  reflect	
  the	
  daily	
  student	
  hours	
  
(6	
  hours	
  and	
  55	
  minutes)	
  inclusive	
  of	
  a	
  30	
  
minute	
  duty	
  free	
  lunch	
  period.	
  	
  Salary,	
  benefits	
  
and	
  work	
  year	
  will	
  be	
  established	
  in	
  accordance	
  
with	
  the	
  Board	
  of	
  Education	
  and	
  the	
  Kenilworth	
  
Education	
  Association	
  (KEA)	
  Professional	
  
Agreement.	
  	
  This	
  position	
  includes	
  an	
  additional	
  
5	
  days	
  before	
  and	
  after	
  the	
  school	
  year	
  totaling	
  
10	
  additional	
  work	
  days.	
  

	
  
TYPE	
  OF	
  POSITION:	
   	
   	
   	
   Exempt	
  
	
  
Evaluation:	
   Performance	
  will	
  be	
  evaluated	
  in	
  accordance	
  

with	
  the	
  Teacher	
  Evaluation	
  Plan.	
  
	
  
GENERAL	
  RESPONSIBILITIES:	
  	
  	
  
	
  
Teachers	
  Resource	
  Coordinator	
  shall	
  perform	
  such	
  duties	
  and	
  responsibilities	
  associated	
  
with	
  the	
  teaching	
  profession	
  and	
  supervision	
  of	
  the	
  procedures	
  of	
  the	
  campus	
  pertaining	
  to	
  
policies	
  and	
  procedures.	
  	
  A	
  Teacher	
  Resource	
  Coordinator	
  will	
  perform	
  duties	
  outlined	
  in	
  
District	
  38	
  policies,	
  and	
  as	
  are	
  required	
  by	
  the	
  Illinois	
  School	
  Code	
  and	
  in	
  the	
  Kenilworth	
  
Education	
  Association	
  Professional	
  Agreement.	
  	
  	
  
	
  
This	
  job	
  description	
  is	
  intended	
  to	
  describe	
  the	
  general	
  nature	
  and	
  level	
  of	
  the	
  work	
  being	
  
performed	
  by	
  the	
  teacher	
  resource	
  coordinator	
  and	
  is	
  not	
  an	
  exhaustive	
  list	
  of	
  all	
  duties	
  
and	
  responsibilities.	
  	
  The	
  District	
  reserves	
  the	
  right	
  to	
  amend	
  and	
  change	
  the	
  
responsibilities	
  to	
  meet	
  business	
  and	
  organizational	
  needs,	
  as	
  necessary.	
  



	
  

KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38 
Teacher Resource Coordinator 

	
  

2 | Page	
  

Adopted by the Kenilworth Board of Education on 3-14-16	
  

Certified Personnel	
  
Job Description	
  

	
  
QUALIFICATIONS:	
  The	
  following	
  skills	
  and	
  certifications/licensures	
  are	
  preferred	
  for	
  this	
  
position:	
  	
  
	
  
● Illinois	
  State	
  Board	
  of	
  Education	
  Professional	
  Educator	
  Licensure/Endorsement	
  

appropriate	
  to	
  subject	
  matter	
  and	
  instructional	
  level	
  of	
  assignment	
  (required)	
  
● Clearance	
  of	
  FBI	
  Background	
  check,	
  tuberculosis	
  free	
  and	
  physical	
  exam	
  noting	
  

fitness	
  for	
  duty	
  (all	
  required)	
  
● Ability	
  to	
  understand	
  and	
  carry	
  out	
  oral	
  and	
  written	
  directions	
  
● Ability	
  to	
  visually	
  supervise	
  students	
  
● Ability	
  to	
  exercise	
  sound	
  judgment	
  in	
  making	
  decisions	
  regarding	
  the	
  safety	
  and	
  

welfare	
  of	
  students	
  
● Ability	
  to	
  perform	
  assigned	
  duties	
  and	
  tasks	
  with	
  minimal	
  direction	
  
● Ability	
  to	
  establish	
  and	
  maintain	
  effective	
  public,	
  student	
  and	
  collegial	
  relationships	
  
● Ability	
  to	
  speak,	
  write,	
  read,	
  and	
  understand	
  English	
  
● Ability	
  to	
  handle	
  student	
  information	
  with	
  confidentiality	
  
● Ability	
  to	
  meet	
  physical	
  requirements	
  to	
  include	
  the	
  following:	
  

✓ Moderate	
  degree	
  of	
  physical	
  stamina	
  with	
  occasional	
  lifting	
  of	
  10	
  to	
  15	
  pounds	
  
and	
  occasional	
  lifting	
  of	
  up	
  to	
  50	
  pounds	
  is	
  required	
  in	
  the	
  physical	
  assistance	
  of	
  
students	
  with	
  special	
  needs	
  

✓ Move	
  freely	
  to	
  various	
  locations	
  within	
  the	
  classroom,	
  office,	
  outside	
  grounds	
  
and	
  other	
  business	
  and	
  community	
  settings.	
  

✓ Frequent	
  standing,	
  walking	
  sitting,	
  and	
  bending	
  
✓ Frequent	
  repetitive	
  activities	
  including	
  hands,	
  arms,	
  and	
  legs	
  for	
  clerical	
  related	
  

work	
  
✓ Tolerate	
  exposure	
  to	
  noise	
  and	
  activity	
  of	
  a	
  school	
  setting	
  
✓ Tolerate	
  exposure	
  to	
  outdoor	
  weather	
  conditions	
  

	
  
ESSENTIAL	
  JOB	
  PERFORMANCE	
  EXPECTATIONS:	
  

1.	
   Planning	
  and	
  Preparation	
  
(1a.)	
  Demonstrating	
  Knowledge	
  of	
  Content	
  and	
  Pedagogy	
  -­‐	
  The	
  teacher’s	
  plans	
  and	
  
practice	
  reflect	
  solid	
  knowledge	
  of	
  the	
  content,	
  prerequisite	
  relationships	
  between	
  
important	
  concepts,	
  and	
  the	
  instructional	
  practices	
  specific	
  to	
  that	
  discipline.	
  
(1b.)	
  Demonstrating	
  Knowledge	
  of	
  Students	
  -­‐	
  The	
  teacher	
  actively	
  seeks	
  knowledge	
  
of	
  students’	
  backgrounds,	
  cultures,	
  skills,	
  language	
  proficiency,	
  interests,	
  and	
  special	
  
needs,	
  and	
  attains	
  this	
  knowledge	
  for	
  groups	
  of	
  students.	
  



	
  

KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38 
Teacher Resource Coordinator 

	
  

3 | Page	
  

Adopted by the Kenilworth Board of Education on 3-14-16	
  

Certified Personnel	
  
Job Description	
  

(1c.)	
  Setting	
  Instructional	
  Outcomes	
  -­‐	
  Instructional	
  outcomes	
  are	
  stated	
  as	
  goals	
  
reflecting	
  high-­‐level	
  learning	
  and	
  curriculum	
  standards.	
  They	
  are	
  suitable	
  for	
  most	
  
students	
  in	
  the	
  class,	
  represent	
  different	
  types	
  of	
  learning,	
  and	
  can	
  be	
  assessed.	
  The	
  
outcomes	
  reflect	
  opportunities	
  for	
  coordination.	
  
(1d.)	
  Demonstrating	
  Knowledge	
  of	
  Resources	
  -­‐	
  The	
  teacher	
  is	
  fully	
  aware	
  of	
  the	
  
resources	
  available	
  through	
  the	
  School,	
  District	
  or	
  other	
  professional	
  organizations	
  
and	
  sources	
  to	
  enhance	
  own	
  knowledge,	
  to	
  use	
  in	
  teaching,	
  or	
  for	
  students	
  who	
  
need	
  them.	
  
(1e.)	
  Designing	
  Coherent	
  Instruction	
  -­‐	
  The	
  teacher	
  coordinates	
  knowledge	
  of	
  content,	
  
students,	
  and	
  resources	
  to	
  design	
  a	
  series	
  of	
  learning	
  experience	
  aligned	
  to	
  
instructional	
  outcomes	
  and	
  suitable	
  to	
  groups	
  of	
  students.	
  The	
  lesson	
  or	
  unit	
  has	
  a	
  
clear	
  structure	
  and	
  is	
  likely	
  to	
  engage	
  students	
  in	
  significant	
  learning.	
  

	
  
2.	
  	
   The	
  Classroom	
  Environment	
  

(2a.)	
  Creating	
  an	
  Environment	
  of	
  Respect	
  and	
  Rapport	
  -­‐	
  Classroom	
  interactions,	
  both	
  
between	
  teacher	
  and	
  students	
  and	
  among	
  students,	
  are	
  polite	
  and	
  respectful,	
  
reflecting	
  general	
  warmth	
  and	
  caring,	
  and	
  are	
  appropriate	
  to	
  the	
  cultural	
  and	
  
developmental	
  differences	
  among	
  groups	
  of	
  students.	
  
(2b.)	
  Establishing	
  a	
  Culture	
  for	
  Learning	
  -­‐	
  The	
  classroom	
  culture	
  is	
  characterized	
  by	
  
high	
  expectations	
  for	
  most	
  students	
  and	
  genuine	
  commitment	
  to	
  the	
  subject	
  by	
  both	
  
teacher	
  and	
  students,	
  with	
  students	
  demonstrating	
  pride	
  in	
  their	
  work.	
  
(2c.)	
  Managing	
  Classroom	
  Procedures	
  -­‐	
  Little	
  instructional	
  time	
  is	
  lost	
  because	
  
classroom	
  routines	
  and	
  procedures	
  for	
  transitions,	
  handling	
  of	
  supplies,	
  and	
  
performance	
  of	
  non-­‐instructional	
  duties	
  occur	
  smoothly.	
  
(2d.)	
  Managing	
  Student	
  Behavior	
  -­‐	
  Standards	
  of	
  conduct	
  appear	
  to	
  be	
  clear	
  to	
  
students,	
  and	
  the	
  teacher	
  monitors	
  students	
  behavior	
  against	
  those	
  standards.	
  The	
  
teacher	
  response	
  to	
  student	
  misbehavior	
  is	
  appropriate	
  and	
  respects	
  the	
  students’	
  
dignity.	
  

	
  
3.	
  	
   Instruction	
  

(3a.)	
  Communicating	
  with	
  Students	
  -­‐	
  Expectations	
  for	
  learning,	
  directions	
  and	
  
procedures,	
  and	
  explanations	
  of	
  content	
  are	
  clear	
  to	
  students.	
  Communications	
  are	
  
appropriate	
  for	
  students’	
  cultures	
  and	
  levels	
  of	
  development.	
  
(3b.)	
  Using	
  Questioning	
  and	
  Discussion	
  Techniques	
  -­‐	
  Most	
  of	
  the	
  teacher’s	
  questions	
  
elicit	
  a	
  thoughtful	
  response,	
  and	
  the	
  teacher	
  allows	
  sufficient	
  time	
  for	
  students	
  to	
  
answer.	
  All	
  students	
  participate	
  in	
  the	
  discussion,	
  with	
  the	
  teacher	
  allowing	
  



	
  

KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38 
Teacher Resource Coordinator 

	
  

4 | Page	
  

Adopted by the Kenilworth Board of Education on 3-14-16	
  

Certified Personnel	
  
Job Description	
  

students	
  to	
  lead,	
  when	
  appropriate.	
  
(3c.)	
  Engaging	
  Students	
  in	
  Learning	
  -­‐	
  Activities	
  and	
  assignments,	
  materials,	
  and	
  
grouping	
  of	
  students	
  are	
  fully	
  appropriate	
  for	
  the	
  instructional	
  outcomes	
  and	
  
students’	
  cultures	
  and	
  levels	
  of	
  understanding.	
  All	
  students	
  are	
  engaged	
  in	
  work	
  of	
  a	
  
high	
  level	
  of	
  rigor.	
  The	
  lesson’s	
  structure	
  is	
  coherent,	
  with	
  appropriate	
  pace.	
  
(3d.)	
  Using	
  Assessment	
  in	
  Instruction	
  -­‐	
  Assessment	
  is	
  regularly	
  used	
  in	
  instruction,	
  
through	
  self-­‐assessment	
  by	
  students,	
  monitoring	
  of	
  progress	
  of	
  learning	
  by	
  the	
  
teacher	
  and/or	
  students,	
  and	
  high-­‐quality	
  feedback	
  to	
  students.	
  Students	
  are	
  fully	
  
aware	
  of	
  the	
  assessment	
  criteria	
  used	
  to	
  evaluate	
  their	
  work.	
  
(3e.)	
  Demonstrating	
  Flexibility	
  and	
  Responsiveness	
  -­‐	
  The	
  teacher	
  promotes	
  the	
  
successful	
  learning	
  of	
  all	
  students,	
  making	
  adjustments	
  as	
  needed	
  to	
  instruction	
  
plans	
  and	
  accommodating	
  student	
  questions,	
  needs,	
  and	
  interests.	
  

	
  
4.	
  	
   Professional	
  Responsibilities	
  

(4a.)	
  Reflecting	
  on	
  Teaching	
  -­‐	
  The	
  teacher	
  provides	
  an	
  accurate	
  and	
  objective	
  
description	
  of	
  each	
  lesson,	
  citing	
  specific	
  evidence.	
  The	
  teacher	
  makes	
  some	
  specific	
  
suggestions	
  as	
  to	
  how	
  the	
  lesson	
  might	
  be	
  improved.	
  
(4b.)	
  Maintaining	
  Accurate	
  Records	
  -­‐	
  The	
  teacher’s	
  systems	
  for	
  maintaining	
  both	
  
instructional	
  and	
  non-­‐instructional	
  records	
  are	
  accurate,	
  efficient	
  and	
  effective.	
  
(4c.)	
  Communicating	
  with	
  Families	
  -­‐	
  The	
  teacher	
  communicates	
  with	
  families	
  and	
  
successfully	
  engages	
  them	
  in	
  the	
  instructional	
  program.	
  Information	
  to	
  families	
  
about	
  individual	
  students	
  is	
  conveyed	
  in	
  a	
  culturally	
  appropriate	
  manner.	
  
(4d.)	
  Participating	
  in	
  a	
  Professional	
  Community	
  -­‐	
  The	
  teacher	
  participates	
  actively	
  in	
  
the	
  professional	
  community	
  and	
  in	
  school	
  and	
  district	
  events	
  and	
  projects,	
  and	
  
maintains	
  positive	
  and	
  productive	
  relationships	
  with	
  colleagues.	
  
(4e.)	
  Growing	
  and	
  Developing	
  Professionally	
  -­‐	
  The	
  teacher	
  seeks	
  out	
  opportunities	
  for	
  
professional	
  development	
  based	
  on	
  an	
  individual	
  assessment	
  of	
  need	
  and	
  actively	
  
shares	
  expertise	
  with	
  others.	
  The	
  teacher	
  welcomes	
  feedback	
  from	
  supervisors	
  and	
  
colleagues.	
  
(4f.)	
  Showing	
  Professionalism	
  -­‐	
  The	
  teacher	
  displays	
  a	
  high-­‐level	
  of	
  ethics	
  and	
  
professionalism	
  in	
  dealings	
  with	
  students,	
  colleagues	
  and	
  parents,	
  also	
  complies	
  
fully	
  and	
  voluntarily	
  with	
  School	
  and	
  District	
  regulations.	
  

	
  
5.	
  	
  	
  Execute,	
  supervise	
  and	
  support	
  the	
  schoolwide	
  discipline	
  plan.	
  
	
  
6.	
  Support	
  daily	
  school	
  operations	
  and	
  oversee	
  campus	
  supervision.	
  



	
  

KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38 
Teacher Resource Coordinator 

	
  

5 | Page	
  

Adopted by the Kenilworth Board of Education on 3-14-16	
  

Certified Personnel	
  
Job Description	
  

	
  
7.	
  Serve	
  on	
  school	
  committees	
  and	
  supervise	
  various	
  campus	
  and	
  curriculum	
  initiatives.	
  
	
  
8.	
  Manages	
  school	
  culture	
  in	
  tandem	
  with	
  Principal	
  
	
  
9.	
  	
  Completes	
  all	
  District	
  Compliance	
  Training	
  

	
  
6.	
  	
  	
  Performs	
  other	
  assignments	
  as	
  directed	
  by	
  the	
  Superintendent,	
  Principal	
  or	
  Director	
  

of	
  Student	
  Services	
  as	
  aligned	
  to	
  the	
  KEA	
  Professional	
  Agreement	
  



 1 

PRINCIPAL'S EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 AGREEMENT made this 9th day of March, 2016, between the BOARD OF EDUCATION 
OF KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 38, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, hereinafter 
referred to as the "Board,” and KENDRA WALLACE, hereinafter referred to as the "Principal.” 
 
 W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
A. EMPLOYMENT AND COMPENSATION 
 
 1. The Board hereby employs the Principal for two (2) years commencing June 1, 
2016, and terminating on June 30, 2018, with such responsibilities and duties in that connection 
as may be fixed by the Board in this Agreement and in its policies, rules and regulations. 
 
 2. The Board shall pay to the Principal an annualized salary of ONE HUNDRED 
FORTY-FIVE THOUSAND, THREE HUNDRED FIFTY-THREE DOLLARS AND SIXTY CENTS 
($145,353.60) for the 2016-2017 contract year in equal installments in accordance with the rules 
of the Board governing payments of other administrative staff members in the District.  The 
Principal’s annual salary for the 2017-2018 contract year will increase by the CPI-U percentage 
increase for the previous 12-month period effective December, 2016 as utilized by the Cook 
County Assessor’s Office for PTELL (“tax cap”) purposes.  The Principal hereby accepts 
employment upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth.   
 

a. In addition, the Principal will be eligible for an annual merit bonus based 
upon her summative performance evaluation rating.  The Principal shall 
receive bonus of up to 3% The merit bonus payments will not be 
cumulative or increase the Principal’s annual base salary amount for any 
contract year. 

  
 3. In addition to the annual salary stated in paragraph A.2 of this Agreement, the 
Board shall make a contribution on behalf of the Principal to the State of Illinois Teachers' 
Retirement System (“TRS”), in satisfaction of the Principal's entire required (8.40%) retirement 
contribution to TRS.  It is the intention of the parties to qualify all such payments paid by the 
Board on the Principal’s behalf as employer payments pursuant to Section 414(h) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  The Principal does not have any right or claim to these 
amounts except as they may become available at the time of retirement or resignation from 
TRS.  Both parties acknowledge that the Principal did not have the option of choosing to receive 
the contributed amounts directly, instead of having such contributions paid by the Board to TRS, 
and that such contributions are made as a condition of employment to secure the Principal's 
future services, knowledge and experience. 
 
 4. Any salary or other modification made during the term of this Agreement shall be 
in the form of a written amendment and shall become a part of this Agreement, but such 
modification shall not be construed as a new Agreement with the Principal, or as an extension of 
the termination date of this Agreement. 
 
 5. During the term of this Agreement, the Principal shall hold a valid and properly 
registered certificate issued by the State of Illinois Teachers' Certification Board qualifying her to 
act as a Principal for the District. 
 
 6.   The Principal acknowledges that by accepting the terms of the multi-year 

Unknown
Field Code Changed



 2 

Principal’s Employment Agreement, the Principal waives any right to tenure or continued 
contractual service in the School District for the duration of this multi-year contract or any multi-
year contract extension pursuant to Section 5/10-23.8a of The School Code. 
 
B. DUTIES 
 
 1. The Principal shall supervise the operation of The Joseph Sears School as the 
Board shall determine necessary. The Principal shall also assume administrative responsibilities 
and instructional leadership, under the supervision and direction of the Superintendent in 
consultation with the Board of Education and in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois 
and the policies, rules and regulations of the Board, for the planning, operation and evaluation 
of the educational program of The Joseph Sears School. The Principal’s job description 
identifying the Principal’s essential duties is attached as Appendix A. 
 
 2. The Principal shall submit recommendations, as requested, to the 
Superintendent concerning the appointment, retention, promotion and assignment of all 
personnel at Sears School and shall keep such other registers and records and make such 
other reports as may be directed by the Superintendent and the Board or required by law. 
 
 3. The Principal shall suspend students guilty of gross disobedience or misconduct 
from school (and from the school bus) in accordance with the requirements of Section 10-22.6 
of The School Code and Board policy. 
 
 4. The Principal agrees to devote her best efforts to the educational program of the 
District.  The Principal shall not undertake or accept other employment or responsibilities that 
will conflict with her assigned duties, without the Superintendent’s pre-approval. 
 
C. BENEFITS 
 
 1. The Board will provide the Principal with the following benefits: 
 

a. Full-family health, dental and long-term disability insurance coverage, as 
provided under the programs effective in the District; 

 
  b. Term life insurance in the amount of $100,000.00, as provided under the 

program effective in the District; and 
 

c. Liability insurance, as provided to other District administrators, and in 
accordance with Section 10-20.20 of The School Code. 

 
 2. The Principal shall be entitled to paid vacation of twenty (20) working days per 
contract year during the term of this Agreement, to be used as mutually agreed upon by the 
Principal and Superintendent.  Vacation days must be taken within the contract year, provided 
that any earned, unused vacation days may be carried over into the following contract year with 
the approval of the Board.  The Principal shall also be entitled to all legal school holidays 
observed by the District.  Winter, Spring, and Summer recess periods shall constitute working 
days unless specifically scheduled and credited toward the vacation days listed above. 
 
 3. The Principal shall be granted sick leave, as defined in Section 24-6 of The 
School Code, of fifteen (15) working days per contract year during the term of this Agreement.  
Unused sick days may be accumulated to a maximum of three hundred sixty (360) days.  The 



 3 

Principal shall not be entitled to payment for any accrued but unused sick leave upon separation 
of employment from the District for any reason. 
 
 4. The Principal shall be granted personal leave of three (3) working days per 
contract year during the term of this Agreement which may also be used as sick leave.  Earned, 
unused personal days shall carry over into the next school year without limit and shall be added 
to the Principal’s balance of sick leave.  The Principal shall not be entitled to payment for any 
accrued but unused personal leave upon separation of employment from the District for any 
reason. 
 

5.  The Principal shall be reimbursed for District business travel in her personal vehicle 
at the IRS approved mileage reimbursement rate. 

 6. The Principal shall be reimbursed for participation in professional development 
courses and activities and up to one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) per contract year for dues 
and membership fees to professional organizations.  All professional development courses or 
activities and/or memberships in professional organizations must be approved, in advance, by 
the Superintendent to qualify for reimbursement.   
 

7. The Principal shall be allocated a maximum amount of two thousand, five 
hundred dollars ($2,500) per contract year for tuition reimbursement for graduate coursework 
pre-approved by the Superintendent. 

 
D. TERMINATION 
 
 1. This Agreement may be terminated by: 
 

a.  Mutual agreement of the parties; 
 

b.  Permanent disability (as defined below) of the Principal; 
 

c.  Discharge of the Principal for cause (as defined below); 
 
d.. Resignation, provided, however, the Principal shall provide the Board at 

least one hundred and twenty days (120) days advance written notice of 
the resignation; or 

 
  e..  Death of the Principal. 
 
 2. Permanent Disability 
 
 The Board may terminate this Agreement for reasons of permanent disability or 
incapacity at any time after the Principal has exhausted her accumulated sick leave, personal 
leave and vacation benefits, has been absent from her employment for a continuous period of 
three (3) months, or presents to the Board upon request a physician's statement certifying that 
she is permanently disabled or incapacitated.  All contractual obligations of the Board shall 
cease upon written notice of termination for permanent disability or incapacity, provided that the 
Principal shall be entitled to a meeting before the Board if she so requests.  The Board reserves 
the right to require the Principal to submit to a medical examination, either physical or mental, 
whenever the Board deems the Principal disabled.  Such examination shall be performed by a 



 4 

physician licensed to practice medicine in all its branches, who is mutually selected and paid by 
the Board.  The Principal expressly agrees that the physician shall prepare a detailed report of 
the state of her physical and/or mental health and submit it to the Board. 
 
 3. Discharge for Cause 
 
 Discharge for cause shall be for any conduct, act, or failure to act by the Principal which 
is detrimental to the best interests of the District, or for violation of this Agreement.  Reasons for 
discharge for cause shall be given in writing to the Principal, who shall be entitled to notice and 
an opportunity to request a hearing before the Board to discuss such causes.  If the Principal 
chooses to be accompanied by legal counsel, she shall bear any costs therein involved.  The 
Board hearing shall be conducted in closed session. 
 
 4. Termination without Cause 
 
 If the Board elects to terminate the contract prior to its expiration date, it must provide 
written notice to the Principal by January 1, 2017, and the contract will terminate on June 30, 
2017. 
 
E. STUDENT PERFORMANCE AND ACADEMIC IMPROVEMENT GOALS 
 
 The Principal acknowledges that pursuant to Section 10-23.8a of The School Code, this 
multi-year Agreement is subject to performance-based goals which are linked to student 
performance and academic improvement attributable to the responsibilities and duties of the of 
the Principal. The Principal’s student performance and academic improvement goals for the 
2016-2017 contract year will be developed and approved by the Board and incorporated into 
Appendix B by contract amendment prior to July 1, 2016.  As part of the Principal’s annual 
evaluation, the Principal and Superintendent shall meet to review the Principal’s progress 
towards meeting the student performance and academic improvement goals. The 
Superintendent will review and assess the Principal’s overall performance on an annual basis 
based upon the student performance and academic improvement goals, and any other 
objectives established by the Board.  The Board reserves the right to annually adjust or modify 
the student performance and academic improvement goals listed herein and to establish other 
goals and objectives for the Principal.  
  
F. EVALUATION 
 
 The Superintendent, in consultation with the Board of Education, will annually review 
and assess the Principal’s performance by March 1 of each contract year. The Superintendent 
will prepare a written summative evaluation based upon a review and assessment of the 
Principal’s progress towards meeting the student performance and academic improvement 
goals and the Principal’s evaluation criteria in accordance with Section 5/24A-15 of The School 
Code.  
 
G. NOTICE 
 
 All notices under this Agreement shall be deemed sufficient if given in writing and served 
upon the Principal and the President of the Board personally or by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, addressed as follows: 
 
 (1) If to the Board:  Board of Education 



 5 

      Kenilworth School District No. 38 
      542 Abbotsford Road 
      Kenilworth, IL  60043 
 
 (2) If to the Principal:  Kendra Wallace 
      110 DeWindt Road 
      Winnetka, IL 60093 
 

(or at such other address as may be hereinafter furnished by the Principal in 
writing.) 

 
H. MISCELLANEOUS  
 
 1. This Agreement is subject to The School Code, the regulations of the State 
Board of Education and the Superintendent of the Educational Service Region of Cook County, 
and the policies of the Board. 
 
 2. This Agreement contains all the terms agreed upon by the parties with respect to 
the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes all prior agreements, arrangements, and 
communications between the parties, whether oral or written, concerning such subject matter.  
Except as may otherwise be provided herein, no subsequent alteration, amendments, change or 
addition to this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties unless reduced in writing and duly 
authorized and signed by each of the parties. 
 

3. This Agreement has been executed in the State of Illinois and shall be governed 
in accordance with the laws of Illinois. If any provision of this Agreement is deemed illegal or 
unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of the Agreement shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 

4. Section headings and paragraph numbers have been inserted for convenience of 
reference only.  In the event of any conflict between any such headings or numbers and the text 
of this Agreement, the text shall control. 
 

5. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts each of which 
shall be considered an original, and all of which taken together shall be considered one and the 
same instrument. 
 

6. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Principal, 
her successors, assigns, heirs, executors, and personal representatives, and shall be binding 
upon, and inure to the benefit of the Board, its successors, and assigns. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed in 
their respective names and, in the case of the Board, by its President and Secretary on the day 
and year first above written. 
 
PRINCIPAL      BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 

KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 
38, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 
____________________________   By:_____________________________ 
 Kendra Wallace      President 



 6 

 
Date: _______________________   ATTEST: 
 

By:_____________________________ 
        Secretary 

 



 7 

APPENDIX A 
 

[Insert Principal Job Description]



 8 

APPENDIX B 
 
 

PRINCIPAL’S STUDENT PERFORMANCE AND ACADEMIC  
IMPROVEMENT GOALS (2016-2017) 

 
[Goals to be developed and approved by the Board via contract amendment prior to July 

1, 2016] 


	Agenda 031416
	FOIA Report 031416
	Superintendent Report 031416
	CSBO Report 031416
	Principal Report 031416
	Curriculum Renewal Plan Draft 031416
	March Enrollment Report with Projections 031416
	Enrollment Projection Report 2016-2017 03-09-16
	Enrollment Report 2015-2016 03-09-16

	Minutes 02-08-16 (Open Session)
	January Monthly Financials 031416
	Monthly Financial - Title Page - January 2016
	Monthly Financials - March Board Meeting 2016 (January 2016)
	Balance Sheet - January 2016
	Balance Sheet - January 2016 Summary
	Cash and Investments - January 2016

	February Monthly Financials 031416
	Monthly Financial - Title Page - February 2016
	Monthly Financials - March Board Meeting 2016 (February 2016)
	Balance Sheet - February 2016
	Balance Sheet - February 2016 Summary
	Cash and Investments Report - February 2016

	January Investment Report 031416
	Investment Certification Statement CL - 15-16 - January
	January 2016 Investment Report

	February Investment Report 031416
	Investment Certification Statement CL - 15-16 - February
	February 2016 Investment Report

	Accounts Payable February to March 031416
	Summary Accounts Payables February 5th to March 14th 2016 (1)
	Report from 1761.tculhane  (28)
	Report from 1761.tculhane  (29)

	Executive Assistant to Business Services and Human Resources Job Description 031416
	Executive Assistant to Business Services and Human Resources Memo 031416
	Position Revisions and Recommendations Memo 031416
	Joint Administrative Structure Proposal 031416
	Differentiation Facilitator Job Description 031416
	Math Intervention Specialist Job Description 031416
	Practical Arts Outdoor Coordinator Job Description 031416
	Teacher Resource Coordinator Job Description 031416
	Principal Contract Final 031416



